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THE TIDE HAS TURNED 

IN OUR COUNTRY. CURRENTS 

HAVE SHIFTED IN OUR OCEANS. 

NEW POTENTIAL IS LAPPING 

AGAINST OUR SHORES. 

WHAT STARTED AS A DROP 

HAS BECOME A WAVE. 

BRINGING NEW IDEAS, 

NEW ENERGY, NEW PROSPERITY 

TO OUR PEOPLE. IN THIS NEW TIDE 

OF GROWTH WE STAND STRONG, 

WE STAND TALL. WE SHINE, 

WE GUARD, WE CALL BECAUSE 

WE ARE THE LIGHTHOUSE 

OF OUR SEAS.

TOGETHER
WE SHOW THE WAY.

LOOKING OUTWARD. MOVING FORWARD.



INCOMING CHAIRPERSON’S

FOREWORD

The Authority has made huge strides towards 

a national posture, which recognises the significance 

of South Africa’s maritime heritage, its oceans 

real estate and the trade facilitation capability that 

has for long been under exploited to the full benefit 

of the South African people. There is increased 

evidence that South Africa is gaining pace in turning 

the tide, from a nation surrounded by oceans 

to a maritime nation firmly aware of its 

maritime endowments.

The South African Maritime Safety Authority has over the past 5 years 

emerged as the leading agent of change and a champion in the pursuit 

of safe seas, clean seas, competent seafaring and a maritime economy 

that is sustainable, transformative and locally beneficial. 

INTRODUCTIONBACKGROUND

I am deeply humbled and excited to be granted 

the opportunity to steer the SAMSA ship towards 

an orderly, sustainable and beneficially transformed 

maritime economy for the country. The future 

of SAMSA lies not just in what it has achieved over 

the past 5 years but how effectively it negotiates 

the journey that lies ahead. I am however under 

no illusions about the enormity of the challenges 

and the great task that awaits us all given the national 

socio-economic challenges of the country, changes 

and developments in shipping and the broader 

maritime sector.   

There is a saying in Maritime that “A ship is safe 

in the Harbour, but that is not what ships are built 

for”. This Ship is built to sail and that it shall, we will 

safely and effectively negotiate all the vagrancies 

of the seas to ensure that we fulfill the essential 

purpose, a clear and unambiguous destination 

embraced by all in it. The SAMSA crew is the 

most important resource in our journey and they

can be assured of my support and leadership 

as their Captain.  
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SAMSA is entering a period of great opportunity 

for the maritime sector. The maritime economy 

is now at the centre stage of South Africa’s 

growth agenda as a sector that has the potential 

to significantly contribute to:

-  Job creation

-  Sustainable employment, and 

-  Poverty alleviation. 

The recently concluded Oceans Lab process, 

under the auspices of Operation Phakisa has 

placed a strategic focus on the oceans economy. 

This process, which is aimed at optimally exploiting 

the opportunities presented to South Africa 

by the Oceans places the Department of Transport 

and SAMSA front and centre, as custodians of 

the key legislative and regulatory instruments 

for a sustainable maritime economy. 

Internally SAMSA needs to prepare to exploit 

the opportunities emerging from these and other 

developments to enhance the fulfillment of its 

mandate. SAMSA, led by the Department of Transport 

incoming to play key roles at the International Maritime 

Organisation (IMO) and its various committees. 

International maritime conventions are being 

adopted requiring the Department to play its part 

in ensuring implementation through the promulgation 

of supporting legislation. This will enable South 

Africa to maintain its respected position amongst 

its peers in the global maritime fraternity. 

The African Continent has also woken 

up to the enormous opportunities 

of the oceans economy. The AU Heads 

of State have formally adopted the 

African Integrated Maritime Strategy 

2050 marking the dawn of a new 

chapter in Africa’s maritime domain. 

It is within these contexts that SAMSA 

has a great deal to be optimistic 

about going into the future.

SAMSA is therefore faced with a strategic need 

to augment its resources and capabilities in order 

to support the maritime sector and to truly fulfill 

its mandate of ensuring orderly seas, to secure 

the environment from pollution resulting from ships 

and to promote the Republic’s maritime interests. 

Our capability to respond and effectively manage 

incidents and emergencies at sea needs to be 

bolstered and managed in a well-coordinated manner. 

We therefore have to forge new partnerships with 

other entities and stakeholders along the maritime 

value chain to sustainably develop and regulate 

maritime activities. New approaches need to be 

pursued with various public and private sector 

stakeholders to leverage on State assets for greater 

efficiencies and increased enforcement capability. 

THE JOURNEY
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I would like to express my gratitude for the hard 

work of SAMSA’s management and staff, which has 

contributed to the continued improvement of service 

delivery and sustained growth and development 

of the Authority. I would also like to acknowledge 

the work of the outgoing Acting Chairperson of 

the SAMSA Board, Adv. Brenda Madumise recognising 

the sterling work she has concluded over the past 

few months and that she will not be lost to the entity 

as she will be assisting me with leading the entity 

in her new role as the Deputy Chairperson. I would 

also like to acknowledge the immense work carried 

outgoing by the previous Chairperson Mr Comfort Ngidi, 

Ms. Nadeema Syms and Mr. Ronny Mkhwanazi, 

outing members of the board who have served 

their term with distinction. 

It is an exciting era that we enter 

as an organisation and I look 

forward to working with the SAMSA 

shareholder, members of the board 

and management team in fulfilling 

the promise of maritime for the 

good of the country.

HERE’S TO LOOKING OUTWARD, 
MOVING FORWARD!

VICE ADMIRAL JOHANNES MUDIMU (RET)

Chairperson
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We shine a spotlight on the global maritime 

picture. Moving from a macro to a micro, 

regional, localised view. We will illuminate 

our role in the big picture and our incredible 

capacity to become a leading beacon in maritime. 

We have all the building blocks to stand tall 

and light the way to a new legacy. The tide 

is turning, and we are ready to be chartered 

on the world’s maritime map.

S  34° 01’ 42’’  |  E  25° 42’ 06”

CAPE RECIFE LIGHTHOUSE
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90% OF 
WORLD TRADE 
IS CARRIED 
BY SEA

THE VOLUME OF MARITIME TRADE 

IS THEREFORE EXPECTED TO INCREASE 

SIGNIFICANTLY AS THE WORLD ECONOMY 

AND POPULATION CONTINUE TO EXPAND.

MARITIME PERSPECTIVE
GLOBAL
The international shipping industry facilitates world trade, economic 

development and the improvement of global living standards.

The system of international maritime signal flags 

is one system of flag signals representing individual 

letters of the alphabet in signals to or from ships. 

It is a component of the International Code 

of Signals (ICS).

005’
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2.2% IN 2013

5%

T H E  G L O B A L S E A B O R N E  T R A D E
H A S  I N C R E A S E D  B Y

THE RATE OF WORLD OUTPUT WAS 

EMERGING MARKET 
GROWTH IS UP BY

007’

THE GLOBAL SPOTLIGHT  |  Global Maritime Perspective

WHEREAS THE WORLD FLEET IS EXPECTED 

TO HAVE EXPANDED BY ALMOST 9% 

TOTAL VOLUME OF GOODS
LOADED WORLDWIDE
HAS INCREASED UP TO
8.7 BILLION TONS IN 2013

INTERNATIONAL TRADE IN GOODS AND SERVICE HAS NOT RETURNED TO THE RAPID GROWTH RATE 

OF THE YEARS  PRECEDING THE 2009 RECESSION.

4.3%



Though driven by growing domestic 

demand in China and increased 

intra-Asian and South-South trade, 

seaborne trade nevertheless 

remains vulnerable to the persistent 

downside risks facing the world 

economy and trade. Freight rates 

have remained low and volatile 

in the various market segments 

(container, liquid and dry bulk). 
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INTRA-ASIA TRADE AGAIN 
REGISTERED THE HIGHEST 
GROWTH IN THE WORLD

7.2
MILLION

have reported 

 9 percent growth in

cargo carried on intra-Asia 

routes, totalling

TEUs IN 2013

IN
T

R
A

-A

SIA
 DISCUSSION AGREEM

E
N

T
 

THE SHARE OF CHINESE 
MAINL AND PORTS IN TOTAL 
WORLD CONTAINER PORT 
THROUGHPUT, REMAINS AT 
AN ESTIMATED OF 25%

To put this in perspective,

that is more cargo than was shipped between

EUROPE AND THE WHOLE
OF NORTH AMERICA IN 2013

(6.7 MILLION TEUs),
AND OVER DOUBLE (THE MARKET’S)

ANNUAL GROWTH RATE
OF 4.3 PERCENT.
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To assist in the implementation of a set of 

technical and operational measures to increase 

energy efficiency and reduce greenhouse gas 

emissions from international shipping, which 

entered into force on 1 January 2013, additional 

guidelines and unified interpretations were 

adopted at the International Maritime Organization 

(IMO) in October 2012 and May 2013. In addition, 

a Resolution on the Promotion of Technical 

Cooperation and Transfer of Technology relating 

to the Improvement of Energy Efficiency of Ships 

was adopted in May 2013, and an agreement was 

reached that a new study will be done to update 

the greenhouse gas emissions estimate 

for international shipping. 

Following ratification by the Russian Federation 

and the Philippines in August 2012, the MLC 2006 

entered into force on 20 August 2013. The convention, 

which had been adopted in 2006 by the International 

Labour Organisation (ILO) and the IMO, consolidates 

and updates more than 68 international labour 

standards relating to seafarers, setting out their 

responsibilities and rights on labour and social 

matters in the maritime sector. It is considered 

an important fourth pillar, complementing three 

major IMO conventions, namely the International 

Convention for the Safety of Life at Sea (SOLAS), 

1974, the International Convention on Standards 

of Training, Certification and Watchkeeping for 

Seafarers (STCW), 1978, and the International 

Convention for the Prevention of Pollution from 

Ships (MARPOL).

In 2013 the 2006 Maritime Labour Convention (MLC 2006) 

(effective 20 August 2013), and the 2002 Athens Convention relating 

to the Carriage of Passengers and their Luggage by Sea (PAL 2002) 

(effective 23 April 2014) and range of regulations relating to maritime, 

supply-chain security and environmental issues came into effect.
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ONLY 94 SHIP LOSSES IN 2013.

THE NUMBER OF SHIPS LOST CONTINUED

ON A DOWNWARD TREND, COMING IN BELOW

100 FOR ONLY THE SECOND TIME

IN 12 YEARS.

011’
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Losses declined 20% from 2012 

when there were 117 reported 

losses. Total worldwide shipping 

losses declined 44% since 2003.

Around the world, more than a third of the vessels 

lost were cargo ships with fishery and bulk carriers 

the only other type to record double-digit losses. 

The loss of two bulk carriers in Asian waters in 

2013, Harita Bauxite and Trans Summer, highlighted 

the importance of proper handling and stowage 

of bulk cargoes. The common cause of losses in 

the past year was foundering (sinking or submerging), 

mainly due to bad weather, accounting for about 

75% of all losses, which was a major increase from 

2012 (47%) and the previous 10-year average of 44%. 

Shipping casualties in Arctic Circle waters increased 

by an average of 45 per year between 2009 and 

2013 from only 7 between 2002 and 2007. Damage 

to machinery caused a third of these incidents, 

which was higher than the average elsewhere, 

reflecting the harsher operating environment.

More than two years after the Costa Concordia 

disaster, improving passenger ship safety 

continues to be a priority, with 2014 likely to see 

the 100th loss of a passenger vessel since 2002. 

Asia remains a hotspot for passenger shipping 

losses, especially smaller vessels and ferries 

as demonstrated by the sinking of the ferry 

St. Thomas of Aquinas in a collision with another 

vessel off Cebu in the Philippines in August 2013, 

with the loss of at least 116 lives. 
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ASIA HAD THE HIGHEST NUMBER 

OF REPORTED SHIP LOSSES. 

Closely followed by the seas 

around JAPAN, KOREA AND 

NORTH CHINA with 17 ships. 

SOUTH CHINA, INDO CHINA, 

INDONESIA & THE PHILIPPINES 

region saw the highest number 

of losses with 18 ships.
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Piracy attacks in Somalia have declined substantially 

with only seven incidents in 2013 compared with 

160 in 2011. Piracy costs the global economy about 

US$18 billion a year in increased trade costs. 

International military operations in 2013 are estimated 

to have cost at least US$1.35 billion. The use of armed 

guards has increased and currently an estimated 

40% to 50% of the 40,000 vessels crossing the seas 

around Somalia have them. Large-scale naval law 

enforcement interventions are believed to have been 

successful in curbing the number of attacks but they 

are only effective as long as they are deployed 

which is likely to be costly and unsustainable 

in the long run. 

Growing maritime insecurity, terrorism, piracy 

and illegal immigration have highlighted the need 

to share information more effectively and to coordinate 

responses to security challenges. Many useful 

initiatives are already underway, such as the 

regional cooperation agreement on combating 

piracy and armed robbery in South East Asia 

and the maritime safety and security information 

system. But there is a need to improve international 

coordination and integration in an affordable manner 

and with the use of technology.

In 2013, piracy attacks declined 

11% to 264 incidents worldwide, 

according to International 

Maritime Bureau statistics, 

106 of these occurred in Indonesia, 

which has seen a 700% increase 

in attacks since 2009. Most remain 

low level opportunistic thefts 

carried out by small bands 

of individuals but a third of 

incidents in these waters were 

reported in the last quarter of 2013 

and there is potential for attacks 

to escalate into more organised 

piracy unless they are controlled.

WITH MORE ORGANISED CRIME

IN THE GULF OF GUINEA 

WITH 48 INCIDENTS IN 2013, 

ACCOUNTING FOR 18% 

OF ALL ATTACKS 

WORLDWIDE.

AN EMERGING PIRACY HOTSPOT

18%

THE GLOBAL SPOTLIGHT  |  Global Maritime Perspective

PIRACY ATTACKS
DECLINED 11% TO 

264 INCIDENTS
WORLDWIDE
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The shipping industry is preparing for the entry 

into force of the IMO ballast water management 

convention which aims to curb the potential damage 

to local marine ecosystems that can be caused 

by the unwanted transfer of invasive species.

By 2020, the shipping industry expects to invest 

more than $100 billion to fit the new treatment 

equipment that will be required. 

Maritime transport is facing a complex environment 

that involves both challenges and opportunities. 

Energy security, costs, climate change, 

and environmental sustainability are the biggest 

challenges. Combatting climate change is high 

on the international policy agenda, and affects 

shipping and port businesses.

The shipping industry is expected to spend more than hundred billion dollars
by 2020 to achieve enhanced compliance with new environmental requirements. 
This is to comply with a range of new environmental standards recently 
adopted by the IMO. 

THE INTERNATIONAL 
CHAMBER OF SHIPPING
IS CONFIDENT THAT THE INDUSTRY 
WILL REDUCE ITS 

CO2  EMISSIONS 
PER TON OF 
CARGO MOVED 
ONE KILOMETRE 
BY 20% BY 2020. 
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MARITIME PERSPECTIVE
AFRICAN

However, the two largest economies of the continent, 

Nigeria and South Africa, face considerable 

downside risks due to faltering external demand 

for their products and some weaknesses on the 

supply side. In addition, several least developed 

countries (LDCs) of the region remain vulnerable 

to sudden and drastic swings in demand for 

commodities. Africa depends more on foreign 

trade as a percentage of GDP than other regions. 

Africa, gross domestic product (GDP) growth has remained stable, 

at above 5% due to continued high earnings from exports of 

commodities and relatively strong public and private investment 

in some countries. 

THE GLOBAL SPOTLIGHT  |  African Maritime Perspective

FOREIGN DIRECT 
INVESTMENT INFLOWS ROSE 
4% TO $57 BILLION, DRIVEN 
BY INTERNATIONAL AND 
REGIONAL INFLOWS, 
AND INFRASTRUCTURE 
INVESTMENTS. 

AFRICA RECORDED 
GPD GROWTH 
OF 5.4% IN 2013
UNDERPINNED BY THE PERFORMANCE OF OIL-EXPORTING 

COUNTRIES, STATE SPENDING ON INFRASTRUCTURE PROJECTS 

AND GREATER ASIAN INVESTMENT AND TRADE LINKAGES.



However, rising intra-African investments have 

not yet triggered the consolidation of regional 

value chains. In terms of participation in global 

value chains Africa ranks high by international 

comparisons: its participation rate in 2013 was 

54% compared with the developing-country 

average of 52% and the global average of 59%. 

However, an analysis of global value chain rates 

of participation shows that the African downstream

(exports that are incorporated in other products and 

re-exported) represents a much higher share than 

the upstream component (foreign value added 

in exports). This high share reflects the important 

contribution of African natural resources to other 

countries’ exports. 

AFRICA 
CONTRIBUTED
TO 3.1% OF 
WORLD SEABORNE TRADE IN 2013.

Though Africa’s share of 

shipping is still comparatively 

small, it is poised to expand 

as the continent exploits its vast 

resources and as consumption 

demand increases in tandem with 

improved income levels. Africa is 

becoming increasingly attractive 

to investors looking for untapped 

markets, in particular to Asians, 

with the value of trade between 

the regions steadily rising.
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Following another discovery

of natural gas off the coast 

of Tanzania, an international 

oil company is planning the 

construction of a LNG facility 

worth $20 to 40 billion in Lindi 

by 2020. 

Maritime business in Africa could thrive on such 

developments, which would help the continent 

develop from merely being a niche market for 

shipping operators to gaining mainstream status. 

According to the African Development Bank, port 

throughput in Africa will rise from 265 million tons 

in 2009 to more than two billion tons in 2040, while 

transport volumes will increase six- to eightfold. 

Some landlocked countries are expected to increase 

transport volumes by up to 14 times. Investments 

in the free zones of Nigeria are reported  to have 

reached $9.4 billion, with six out of 25 free zones 

said to be under construction and four in the 

design phase.

 TO MORE THAN 

PORT THROUGHPUT IN AFRICA 

WILL RISE FROM 

2009
IN 

MILLION
TONS

265 

2040
IN 

BILLION
TONS

2 
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This downward trend is notable given there were 

237 attacks attributed to Somali piracy in 2011. 

These and other threats such as terrorism add 

shipping costs thus curbing a sustainable recovery 

of the sector. Increased insurance premiums and 

regulatory expenses including provisions of the 1996 

convention on limitation of liability for maritime 

claims and IMOs SOLAS Convention amendments 

to ensure further protection of maritime commerce 

add to the cost of doing business. 

Since 2005 more than 100 hijackings have 

occurred in traditional fishing places. At least 

44 fishing vessels have been hijacked, and some 

are still captive. Fishing vessels are of particular 

interest to pirates because they can be used 

as floating bases from which to launch further 

attacks. The tuna catch alone has dropped 

26.8% annually in areas affected by pirates.  

019’

Africa’s potential in shipping is threatened by the continued, yet decreasing 

risk of piracy incidents which target higher value container ship cargo than 

dry bulk. A total of 79 incidents occurred around Africa in 2013. Of these, 

15 were attributed to Somali pirates and occurred near Somalia and the 

Horn of Africa; down from 75 Somali piracy-attributed attacks in 2012. 

INCIDENTS OCCURED 

AROUND AFRICA IN 2013 

15 INCIDENTS
OCCURED NEAR 
SOMALIA & 
AROUND THE 
HORN OF AFRICA

THE GLOBAL SPOTLIGHT  |  African Maritime Perspective
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The 2050 AIM strategy provides 

an overall understanding of the 

maritime sector that encompasses 

the economic, social, environmental 

and security dimensions. Its vision, 

which it derives from a 2002 

Constitutive Act, is “to foster more 

wealth creation from Africa’s 

oceans, seas and inland water 

ways developing a thriving 

maritime economy and realising 

the full potential of sea-based 

activities in an environmentally 

sustainable manner”.

The 2050 AIM strategy envisions the establishment 

of a combined exclusive maritime zone of Africa 

(CEMZA), to enhance awareness of maritime issues 

by engaging stakeholders to strengthen maritime 

capacity and capabilities, ensure maritime safety 

and security, minimise environmental damage 

and prevent criminal and hostile acts at sea.

It also seeks to protect people, especially coastal 

communities, maritime heritages (e.g. biodiversity) 

and critical infrastructure from pollution and toxic 

and nuclear waste dumping and improve the 

management of integrated coastal zones. It also 

aims to get the ratification, domestication and 

implementation of international legal instruments 

and create a harmonised regulatory environment 

on the African continent.
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Source: AU

JULY

SEAS & OCEANS

SEAS & OCEANS

AFRICAN 
DAY OF 

D
ECADE OF AFRICAN

2015-2025
The 22nd summit of the African Union 

was held on 31 January 2014 in Addis 

Ababa. It adopted the 2050 Africa 

Integrated Maritime (AIM) strategy 

and the plan of action to address maritime 

challenges relating to sustainable 

development and competitiveness. 

THE SUMMIT ALSO DECLARED 2015 

TO 2050 AS THE DECADE OF AFRICAN 

SEAS & OCEANS AND 25 JULY AS 

THE AFRICAN DAY OF SEAS & OCEANS.
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MARITIME PERSPECTIVE
REGIONAL
Economic performance in the Southern African 

Development Community (SADC) region grow 

on average by 4.6% 2013, less than the 7% target 

set by SADC. The slowdown in the SADC economic 

growth in 2013 was attributable to the slow and 

fragile recovery of the global economy, particularly 

the weakness in advanced economies, which 

has adversely affected global demand. Since most 

of the SADC economies are export led, the reduction 

in global demand and trade, as well as economic 

growth, would have had a negative impact 

on economic performance.

The Protocol on Transport, Communications 

and Meteorology encourages Member States 

of SADC to facilitate development of port 

and inland waterway infrastructure throughout 

Southern Africa. 

This will foster an integrated, multimodal 

transportation sector in support of further economic 

and social development in the region. Member States 

agreed to cooperate on a harmonised regional policy 

for maritime and inland waterway transport, 

establishing a framework that ensures the sector 

operates in an economically viable and environmentally 

sustainable manner based on the standards 

and recommended practices of the International 

Maritime Organisation (IMO).

RECORDED
POSTIVE
GROWTH

RATES

ALL THE FOURTEEN 
REPORTING COUNTRIES

182
MILLION

TONS

PROCESSED

IN
 2

013 THE SADC REGIO
N

MARITIME TRANSPORT
IS AN ESSENTIAL COMPONENT

OF INTERNATIONAL TRADE.

C A R G O  

Although the general economic

performance of the SADC was subdued



Oil and gas finds off the SADC 

region present opportunities for the 

continent and the region. These finds 

have attracted companies, investors 

and financiers into investing 

in capital projects in the region. 

The exploration and production 

thereof is generating employment 

and providing a catalyst for private 

sector growth by opening up access 

to capital for small and 

medium enterprises. 

Notwithstanding the economic benefits of oil 

and gas finds, no overarching framework exists 

on the use of the seas around Southern Africa. 

There needs to be a process put in place to develop 

clear strategic guidance for marine environment 

protection for the entire southern region.

South Africa signed and adopted the new Benguela 

Current Commission (BCC) with Angola and Namibia, 

which will see the three countries work together 

in marine conservation matters. The agreement 

is a five-year strategic plan that aims to promote 

the long-term conservation and protection of 

the Benguela Current Large Marine Ecosystem.

The implementation of the SADC Regional 

Infrastructure Development Master Plan, released 

in 2012, will address the challenges relevant to 

maritime transport in Southern Africa. Dar-es-Salaam 

(Tanzania) anticipates several projects to develop 

its port infrastructure, increasing the number 

of available berths at existing ports and installing 

new ports at Mwambani Bay and Mbegani near 

Bagamoyo. Likewise, Walvis Bay – one of only 

two established deep-water ports in the region 

– will see additional berths, container terminals, 

maintenance quays, and marina development over 

the next 25 years.

023’
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There were no ship losses reported 

in the SADC region for the year 2013, 

which is as a result of regional 

safety enforcement coordination 

within the region. 

South Africa, Mozambique and Tanzania have been 

working jointly to address the scourge of piracy 

and other maritime security operations in the Indian 

Ocean following the adoption of the SADC Maritime 

Security Strategy by heads of state in Luanda 

in 2011. This is the world’s third-largest ocean, 

and it carries half of the planet’s oil trade. The navy 

frigate SAS Spioenkop is currently patrolling 

the Mozambique Channel as part of the anti-piracy 

Operation Copper. The idea was that South Africa 

takes the lead in these operations (utilising its four 

frigates and 11 warships) until such time as the other 

navies can build capacity. In some countries 

in the region, defence spending now far outstrips that 

of South Africa. Angola, for example is spending 

4,2% of its budget on defence and Namibia 3,9% 

which has seen large-scale naval law enforcement 

interventions which have been successful 

in curbing the number of attacks.

South Africa signed the Djibouti Code of Conduct 

(DCoC) for the repression of piracy and armed 

robbery against ships in the Gulf of Aden and West 

Indian Ocean in May 2013. The DCoC is based 

on four pillars - information sharing, prosecution 

of piracy suspects, training and capacity building.
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South Africa’s derives its 

maritime interests from its trade 

and geo-economic structure, 

its geopolitical aspirations 

and the obligations arising from 

being a regional power located 

at the southern tip of Africa.

South Africa’s GDP slowed down to 1.8% in 2013 

and is expected to remain tepid in 2014 after 

a 0.6% contraction in the first quarter. Though 

a recession is not expected, the slowdown 

has negatively affected business sentiment. 

The slowdown in the economic growth in 2013 

was attributable to the slow and fragile recovery 

of the global economy, particularly the weakness 

in advanced economies, which has adversely 

affected global demand.

MARITIME PERSPECTIVE
SOUTH AFRICAN

SOUTH AFRICA IS A MARITIME

COUNTRY DEFINED BY THE 

CHARACTERISTICS OF ITS OCEANS, 

HERITAGE, INTERNATIONAL TRADE 

PATTERNS AND GEOGRAPHY AND 

BOASTS OF A SIGNIFICANT MARINE 

REAL ESTATE. 

SA
W

ELCOME TO



In 2013, South Africa 

amended the Merchant Shipping 

(Radio Installation) Regulations, 

2002 to align it to the recent 

International Telecommunications 

Union (ITC) Regulations and 2010 

STCW Convention. 

Those amendments were signed into law on 2 July 

2013 under the Merchant Shipping (Radio Installation) 

Regulations, 2013. South Africa acceded to 

the 1969 Civil Liability Convention (CLC). In 2004, 

South Africa denounced the Convention and 

acceded to the 1992 CLC Protocol as well as the 1992 

Protocol to the International Oil Pollution Compensation 

Fund Convention, 1971 (IOPC Fund Convention). 

However it had not passed legislation to give effect 

to both Protocols. The Bills were presented before 

Parliament and adopted by both the National 

Assembly and National Council of Provinces.

027’
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2013
There were no ship losses reported 

in the country for the year 2013, which is 

as a result of safety enforcement coordination 

within the country. In 2013, the country 

had two major shipping incidents 

(MV KIANI SATU and MV SMART) which 

were successfully managed in line with 

the International standards and practise.

NO SHIP LOSSES IN 2013, THE MARITIME SECTOR 
CONTRIBUTED R55 BILLION TO THE 

COUNTRY’S 
GDP THUS 

CONTRIBUTING
13.6% OF THE 

TOTAL GDP.



The freight transport sector in South Africa is driven primarily by two forces:

private consumption in the country and its mining sector. In 2013, South Africa 

processed 152 million tonnes (average growth of 9% compared to 2012) 

of cargo through its primary seaport at Durban, Richards Bay, and other 

ports along the country coast. In 2013 South Africa spent over R31.8 bn 

on improvements of infrastructure of South African ports.

Ship registry is set to grow with the coming into 

effect of Treasury bill on tax incentives for international 

shipping. This will create the right environment and 

ensure that there are incentives in place which would 

not only encourage owners to register their ships 

in South Africa, but to provide an attractive location 

for businesses owning and operating ships.

On 04 December 2013, Cabinet approved the 

National Security Strategy and Plan of Action.  

The strategy identifies four (04) threats to national 

security - outsourcing of state security to private 

security service providers, cyber security, espionage, 

domestic instability and threats to territorial integrity 

(border control, illegal migration and terrorism).  

The strategy and action plan provide for the 

establishment of the South African Coast Guard 

Service within the Department of Defence and 

Military Veterans.
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We stand tall, proud and strong. A lighthouse 

in our seas. By looking inwards we map out 

our new vision, a vision that points to a legacy 

of potential and change waiting for us all. 

This is our heartbeat, the wind in our sails. 

Who we are affects what we do and where 

we are going. Our light is shining bright, 

we are leading a new way.

CAPE AGULHAS LIGHTHOUSE

Acting Chairperson’s report

Our Mandate

Our Legislative Environment 

Our Vision

Our Mission

Our Values

Our Achievements & Awards
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ACTING CHAIRPERSON’S

REPORT

In 2014 South Africa celebrates 20 years of 

freedom and democracy. It is therefore proper 

that we reflect on the gains we as a country 

and as an organisation have made over this period. 

The timeline of the organisation points to the 

strides we have made and continue to push 

for in realising South Africa’s maritime potential. 

We are involved in various other initiatives in order 

to achieve our aims of maritime development.

SAMSA delivered encouraging service delivery 

performance in a market under significant social 

and economic pressure. The early to mid 2000s 

was characterised by sensational growth of global 

trade and a strong maritime industry, which has been 

eroded by the recent uncertain global economic 

climate. SAMSA has successfully achieved 

the majority of its key performance indicators. 

SAMSA continues to fulfil its mandate, namely 

to ensure safety of life and property at sea, to prevent 

and combat pollution of the marine environment 

by ships and to promote the Republic’s maritime 

interests. It is encouraging to note that our waters 

remain among the safest in the world. While this 

is commendable, SAMSA continues to invest 

and strive for new and improved ways to drive down 

the number of maritime incidents as well as improve 

our systems and policies to the benefit of our 

stakeholders. We have not had any major environmental 

disasters over the past five years and will endeavour 

to sustain this performance.

I am pleased to present my report as Acting Chairperson of the South 

African Maritime Safety Authority (SAMSA) in a year that has been testament 

to the resilience, stability and expertise of SAMSA.
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We successfully managed two potentially catastrophic incidents 

in South African waters. The M.V. SMART, a Panamanian registered bulk 

carrier which ran aground outside Richards Bay in August 2013 and the 

Kiani Satu, a Japanese geared bulk carrier which was pushed aground 

in Buffels Bay. In addition, SAMSA managed to rescue and save the lives 

of 193 people during the year under review. 

033’

South Africa continues to battle with enormous 

socio economic development challenges, 

which include the triple challenges of poverty, 

unemployment and inequality. The maritime sector 

presents an enormous opportunity for South 

Africans to benefit both economically as well as 

from a job creation perspective. We will endeavour 

to significantly contribute to addressing these 

challenges, particularly focusing on transformation 

and employment creation. We will build on our 

human capacity development programme focusing 

on women and the youth in maritime to ensure 

that the sector is transformed to become much 

more representative and beneficial to South Africans.

SAMSA continues to play a leading role on 

the global and African continent with the support 

of the Department of Transport. South Africa 

was elected as interim chair of the newly formed 

Association of African Maritime Administration 

(AAMA) launched in Sandton, Johannesburg 

on 23 November 2013. SAMSA was also elected 

as a member of the three-country secretariat 

of the Association. This has been a major thrust 

of the organisation in line with the National Priority 

of fostering greater African integration and promoting 

regional and continental trade. The African Union 

(AU) recently adopted the African Integrated 

Maritime Strategy 2050 (AIMS 2050) at the meeting 

of Heads of States in January 2014, which bares 

testament to the work SAMSA has been able 

to contribute to under the leadership of the 

Department of Transport.
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I also wish to thank management and staff for their efforts in discharging 

SAMSA’s mandate in the best interest of our country and also express 

appreciation to all our stakeholders in the public and private sector 

who supported us in all our endeavours through the year under review.

The year under review has been characterised 

by transitionfrom interim board to the appointment 

of the new board in January 2014 with me as interim 

chairperson and the appointment of the new 

Chairperson in the new financial year. SAMSA's 

resilience through this potentially disruptive time 

is a testament to the organisation's leadership 

focus on continuingto deliver on its mandate 

for the betterment of the people of South Africa. 

As I move into my new role as Deputy Chairperson

I wish to reassure management of my continued 

support inexercising my fiduciary responsibilities 

as member of the newboard and as a representative 

of the aspiration of the shareholder.

Finally, I wish to congratulate our Minister 

of Transport, Honourable Dipuo Peters (MP) 

and her deputy, Honourable Sindisiwe Chikunga 

on their re-appointment. I extend a warm welcome 

to them, into their re-appointed portfolios and hope 

their leadership and guidance will continue to assist 

us to contribute to the achievement of the vision 

for the Transport Sector as:

Transport, the heartbeat of South Africa’s economic 

growth and social development!  

ADV. BRENDA MADUMISE
Acting Chairperson of the SAMSA Board
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OUR

MANDATE
SAMSA was established under the transport policy 

promulgated in 1996. The national transport policy 

envisioned an integrated system and infrastructure. 

It put forward the following strategic objectives 

for a national maritime transport policy: 

• To facilitate and enhance the 

expansion of international trade, 

tourism, and exports; 

• Ensure that economic decisions 

 are, as far as possible, left to market 

forces, subject to general competitive 

principles to add to consumer choice 

and  satisfaction and create jobs;  

• Promote the development of an 

efficient and productive maritime 

industry capable of competing 

 on international markets;

• Maintain control over maritime 

services within a regulatory framework 

that is flexible enough to cater for 

changing needs and circumstances 

and to ensure orderly, safe and reliable 

maritime transport services;

• Promote international relations 

 with other countries and international 

organisations involved in 

 maritime activities. 

The policy laid the cornerstone for the work of 

SAMSA and assigned it the following responsibilities: 

•   To promote South Africa’s maritime interests;

•   Ensure the safety of life and property at sea; 

•   Combat pollution of the marine environment 

 by ships;

•   Contribute to realising the potential of the  

 maritime industry and to the modernisation 

 of shipping administration in South Africa;

•   Facilitate and enhance the expansion of 

 international trade, tourism and exports;

•   Encourage and support the maritime transport  

 industry in a manner consistent with government’s  

 socio-economic development policies; and 

•   Promote the development of an efficient 

 and productive maritime industry capable 

 of competing on international markets. 

 The policy defined maritime  

 transport as encompassing 

 all forms of transport by sea,  

 intermodal links and inland  

 ports. It also acknowledged 

 that maritime caters almost  

 entirely for the freight market,  

 operates in an international  

 environment and is subject 

 to considerable competition 

 and economic pressure. 

ILLUMINATING WHO WE ARE |  Our Mandate
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OUR LEGISL ATIVE

ENVIRONMENT
1.   To ensure safety of life and property at sea;

2.  To prevent and combat pollution of 

      the marine environment by ships; and 

3.  To promote the Republic’s maritime interests.

The South African Maritime 

Safety Authority Act, 1998 

(Act No. 5 of 1998) is the enabling 

legislation, which establishes 

the Authority and details the 

mandate and functions of SAMSA. 

The legislated objectives 

of SAMSA are:

SAMSA’s mandate was expanded in 2007 to include 

the regulation of marine activities on inland waters 

and to enforce regulations, including inspections, 

licensing, surveying, safety promotion and awareness, 

accident investigation, development of examination 

standards, certificates of competence and be the 

authority awarding certificates of fitness. 

SAMSA also has the responsibility for monitoring 

ships traversing South African waters and ensure 

their safe navigation at a distance that is secure 

for South Africa and its territorial interests.  

SAMSA is therefore tasked with implementing 

the following laws:

•   Merchant Shipping Act, 1951 

•   Marine Traffic Act, 1981  

•   Marine Pollution (Control and Civil Liability) Act, 1981 

•   Carriage of Goods by Sea Act, 1986

•   Marine Pollution (Prevention of Pollution from 

Ships) Act, 1986

•   Marine Pollution (Intervention) Act, 1987

•   Maritime Zones Act, 1994 

•   Wreck and Salvage Act, 1996 

•   SAMSA Act, 1998 

•   SAMSA Levies Act, 1998

•   Ship Registration Act, 1998

ILLUMINATING WHO WE ARE |  Our Legislative Environment, Our Vision, Our Mission, Our Core Values



Respect and caring for 

our employees 

6.CARING4.HIGH PERFORMANCE

Delivering service excellence
2.ENTERPRISING

Forward thinking and innovative

in our business solutions

Recognising the support

of others in building the future

Strength in our diversity

as a true South African entity

OUR

VISION

OUR CORE

VALUES

OUR

MISSION

The following outlines the core 

philosophy and values that guide 

each activity we undertake and 

how we behave when creating 

value for our stakeholders.

To promote South Africa's maritime interests, 

develop and position the country as an international 

maritime centre while ensuring maritime safety, 

health and environmental protection.

THE AUTHORIT Y 
CHAMPIONING 

SOUTH AFRICA'S 
GLOBAL MARITIME 

AMBITIONS.

“AN ENTERPRISE OF INTEGRIT Y”

3.TEAMWORK

1.DIVERSIT Y

5.INTEGRIT Y

Our business conduct 

and credibility beyond reproach 

7.SUSTAINABILIT Y

Acting responsibly and ensuring lasting continuance 

of all our well-meant efforts and the environment 

within which we operate 
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OUR ACHIEVEMENTS

AWARDS & NOMINATIONS

& AWARDS
•  Top Woman in the Public Sector Award 

Ms. Sindiswa Nhlumayo: Executive Head, Centre for Maritime Excellence;

•  Top 4th Best Company to Work For in the 

Transport Sector by Deloitte Annual Survey

•  Top Maritime Skills Development Programme    

    for the National Cadetship Programme 

      at the BHP Billiton Skills Summit.

SAMSA was again nominated 

for various prestigious awards 

in 2013/14 notably achieving:

SAMSA was nominated for this award 

for its contribution to the development 

of maritime skills and shipping. The African 

Maritime Agency Awards are the only continental 

awards dedicated to the promotion of excellence, 

integrity and quality service in the maritime, 

oil and gas industry on the continent.

SAMSA was voted as a Top Performer for the 

Top Performing Companies publication in 2013. 

This accolade positioned SAMSA as one of only 

a few companies that were innovative, 

sustainable, growing, with significant size 

and quality of operation.

NOMINATED AMONGST THE TOP
PERFORIMING COMPANIES IN SA

AFRICAN MARITIME AGENCY 
OF THE YEAR 2013

This was won at the Oliver Empowerment 

Awards in April 2013 efforts, involvement 

and commitment to rebuilding South Africa’s 

shipping industry and for providing opportunities 

to those previously excluded from 

the maritime sector.

SAMSA’s work in the maritime sector was 

once again given recognition when it became 

a finalist in three categories at the Oliver 

Empowerment Awards for the most transformed 

public sector award, the public sector leader 

award and future black leader award. 

SAMSA NOMINATED FOR 
TOP PUBLIC SECTOR AWARDS

LIFETIME ACHIEVEMENT AWARD: 
COMMANDER TSIETSI MOKHELE  

ILLUMINATING WHO WE ARE |  Our Achievements & Awards
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SAMSA Commander T. Mokhele, CEO Mr. Collins Makhado, Executive Head: 

Centre for Strategy

NOMINATIONS INCLUDED

BEST PUBLIC SECTOR PUBLIC SECTOR LEADER FUTURE LEADER AWARD
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In conjunction with understanding our 

strategic position, our structure and our people, 

is understanding our course, setting our compass 

and pulling up anchor. It is our game plan of 

change, it’s the order that will get us swiftly, 

efficiently and safely to where our light 

is pointing.
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CEO’S

REPORT

The struggle for freedom took long and at the 

cost of many lives but the continued renewed 

sense of hope and faith did not dampen the 

spirit of many South Africans who badly wanted 

to see and taste liberty.

Today, I salute all who in diverse ways contributed 

to the freedom of this country. I also wish to take 

this opportunity to salute uTata uMadiba, who will 

always be remembered as one of the greatest sons 

of Africa. The passage of time shall not extinguish 

the flame he kindled in our hearts by teaching 

us tolerance and forgiveness and for sacrificing 

his life for the liberation of South Africa. May God 

bless his dear Soul.

For the first five years of my term at SAMSA, 

such has been our focus and advocacy that 

this beautiful country will wake up to its massive 

opportunities that lie in the maritime industry 

and be able to interact with and connect 

all the multi-faceted perspectives of maritime.

In order to continue to mould and shape our 

maritime industry to realise the government’s 

aspirations, the Shareholder deemed it important 

to appoint me for another five-year term which 

commenced in April 2013. 

I wholeheartedly accepted the appointment having 

the old Roman saying in mind – Homo non sibi soli 

natus est sod Patria – “Man was not born for himself 

alone, but for his country”. The democratic South 

Africa was delivered to us with huge sacrifices. 

It is necessary that we should all be conscious 

of our own and personal individual responsibility 

in utilising the freedom we have today in building 

our nation which we are all part of. I will therefore 

continue to count on the goodwill received in my 

previous term in fulfilling the plans of my second term.

I would not be able to mention in detail all that 

we have achieved or have transpired in the 2013/14 

financial year. But I would like to briefly mention 

some of the highlights as follows: 

The close of the 2013/14 financial year coincides with the 20th anniversary 

of democracy in South Africa and 16 years of SAMSA’s existence. I wish to take 

this opportunity to congratulate all South Africans who dedicated their lives 

to the freedom we so freely enjoy today. We should however recognise 

the support and sacrifices made by our fellow brothers and sisters from 

various countries on the continent and around the world.
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SAMSA, like all other public entities, 

has numerous responsibilities 

in terms of legislative compliance 

and corporate governance. 

In this context, the year under review was a challenging 

one for the entity. Due to resignations, the board 

could not quorate to make key decisions. Four interim 

non-executive members were appointed adding 

to the existing two non-executive members of the 

board. Management wishes to extend its gratitude 

to the acting Board members especially the acting 

Board Chairperson, Adv. Brenda Madumise during 

the period under review. It is also our sincerest 

hope and desire to work in close collaboration with 

the board in achieving SAMSA's mandate and helping 

to achieve the ideals of the liberation struggle for 

the people of South Africa. Further management 

welcomes the appointment of a full Board under 

the able Chairmanship of Vice Admiral Mudimu.

THE NEW SAMSA BOARD

DIRECTING CHANGE  |  CEO’s Report



Former Minister of Transport, Ben Martins, declared 

2013 the Maritime Year as part of the government’s 

commitment to a turnaround in the maritime industry 

so that it is able to play a bigger role in the economy. 

This was also in recognition that the maritime 

sector is a new economic frontier that can make 

a greater contribution to socio-economic development. 

Awareness was raised through targeted events 

and campaigns aimed at the general public, rest 

of government, academia, and the private sector. 

The net impact was that at the 

end of 2013, the Cabinet adopted 

a resolution on the development 

of the maritime economy which 

was dubbed the blue economy.

2013, THE YEAR OF MARITIME
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THE 2ND HEADS 
OF AFRICAN MARITIME 
ADMINISTRATIONS 
CONFERENCE 

Following the first meeting in Kenya in 2012, 

SAMSA held the second Heads of African Maritime 

Administrations and African Ship-Owners Association 

meeting in Sandton. The meeting brought together 

public sector administrators and other stakeholders 

from the industry and from regional and 

international organisations. 

The meeting resolved to establish 

the Association of African Maritime 

Administrations (AAMA) with South 

Africa nominated as interim chair

for two years until the constitution 

is approved. 

I am proud that SAMSA helped 

develop the 2050 AIM strategy. 

It addresses socio-economic challenges by 

promoting the concept of African indigenous 

tonnage supported by African shipping companies; 

aims to enhance intra-African trade and integration 

and reverse the shortcomings in maritime research 

and skills development.

2050 AIM STRATEGY
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In 2010 SAMSA organised that the ocean-going 

vessel SA Agulhas to sail with an all-female crew 

from Cape Town to Durban with a stop-over 

in Port Elizabeth. In all three harbours the vessel 

was attended to by female crews, whether they 

were tugmasters, engineers, nautical pilots, 

berthing gangs and vessel traffic services operators. 

The voyage, together with a female-only supply 

chain was a world first. SAMSA used the occasion 

to highlight the role played by female seafarers 

in the maritime sector. 

SAMSA will continue to create 

awareness of career opportunities 

in the maritime sector for women 

so as to make progress in addressing 

gender inequality while observing 

the Decade of Women in Maritime. 

SAMSA aims to provide more opportunities for 

black businesses by arranging training sessions 

and conferences to enhance their understanding 

of the maritime industry.

WOMEN IN MARITIME

DIRECTING CHANGE  |  CEO’s Report
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We are optimistic that the new 

shipping provisions in South Africa's 

Taxation Laws Amendment will assist 

in reviving the maritime sector. 

We would continue to create the right environment 

and ensure that there are incentives in place which 

would not only encourage SA ship owners to register 

their ships in South Africa, but also to incentivise 

the business of owning and operating ships. 

THE FUTURE
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THANK YOU

On behalf of Management and myself, I wish to 

express my gratitude to the former Minister of 

Transport, Honourable Ben Martins for providing 

SAMSA with leadership especially during some 

of its difficult times and for the confidence he 

had in re-appointing me for another five year 

term. I applaud the efforts of our current Minister, 

Honourable Dipuo Peters, MP and her Deputy, 

Honourable Sindisiwe Chikunga, MP for their 

continuous leadership and guidance. 

To all our strategic partners 

and stakeholders, I wish to take 

this opportunity to re-affirm 

our good relations and express 

my appreciation for your support 

during the financial year under 

review. I believe that all that we 

achieved together would further 

strengthen our partnership and 

mutual understanding. We look 

forward to continue to work together. 

On the occasion of the sweet sixteenth anniversary 

of SAMSA on 1 April 2014, it is both a pleasure 

and an honour for me to express congratulations 

and good wishes to the entire SAMSA staff for 

supporting the organisation to come this far and 

has the potential for even greater accomplishments 

in the years to come. I wish SAMSA well on this 

day and wish it well in all the years ahead. 

Finally, I believe in the destiny of South Africa and 

the African continent and will continue to pursue 

with faith and purpose every worthy cause until 

both have attained social and economic freedom.

May God’s blessing continue to be on SAMSA 

and on this beautiful rainbow nation.  

Thank you

CDR. TSIETSI MOKHELE
Chief Executive Officer
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OUR

STRATEGY
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To deliver highly competent and globally

competitive South African Seafares 

To deliver a beneficially transformed and

globally competitive maritime sector
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SAMSA’S STRATEGIC OUTCOMES ARE TO

DIRECTING CHANGE  |  Our Strategy



1

052’

03˚CHAPTER 

OUR CORE BUSINESS

Implementation of international 

maritime conventions acceded 

to by government

2
Maritime governance 

and regulatory development

3
Maritime Sea Watch 

& Response

4
Safe operation and 

compliance of ships 

9
Facilitate and support

SA’s Maritime interest

10
Stakeholder management

5
Boating safety

6
Seafarer and

stevedore safety and welfare

7
Seafarer training

and examination

8
Prevention of

pollution from ships



The Public Finance Management 

Act No 1 of establishes the Minister 

of Transport as the Executive 

Authority for SAMSA and is the 

only Shareholder in SAMSA on behalf 

of the South African Government.

The Accounting Authority, which is represented 

by the SAMSA Board of Directors reports to the 

Minister of Transport. The board is made up of six 

non-executive members and the Chief Executive 

Officer. The Chief Executive Officer manages 

SAMSA under the strategic guidance of the Board 

of Directors. 

The structure of SAMSA is made up of the following 

functions, which report directly to the CEO:

053’

OUR 

STRUCTURE
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EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE (EXCO)

MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE (MANCO)

Centre for Policy 
& Regulation Centre for Ships

Centre for
Maritime Excellence

Centre for
Corporate Service

Centre for Seawatch 
& Response

Centre for Boating
& inland Waterways Centre for Seafarers

Centre for Fishing
Centre for

Corporate Affairs
Centre for

Corporate Strategy

MINISTRY 
OF TRANSPORT

DEPARTMENT
OF TRANSPORT

BOARD OF
DIRECTORS

CHAIRPERSON

Audit & Risk Committee

Maritime Industry 
Committee

Remuneration & Human 
Resources Committee

CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

OFFICE OF THE
CEO

OFFICE OF THE
COO
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OFFICE OF THE
COMPANY SECRETARY

BOARD
COMMITTEES

CHAIRPERSON
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BOARD OF

DIRECTORS

MS. NADEEMA SYMS
Deputy Chairperson 

Adv Motsehoa Brenda Madumise is a legal consultant with over 

25 years’ business experience. She has worked for a range 

of public and private organisations in a diversity of sectors 

– from mining and health to finance and agriculture. She has 

served as Chairperson of various organisations and is currently 

a member of the PetroSA Board.

ADV. BRENDA MADUMISE
Acting Chairperson

B.Proc, LLB (Wits) | MBA (Bond University)

Graduate Diploma in International Trade Law (Wits)

Ms. Syms is currently the National Treasurer of the South 

African Textile and Allied Workers Union (SATAWU). Ms. Syms 

has been working in the Trade Union Movement since 2003. 

She is the Deputy Chairperson of the Board and the Chairperson 

of the Remuneration Committee.

MR. BRETT NAIDOO
Bachelor of Accountancy (U KZN)

Post Graduate Diploma in Accountancy (U KZN) | MBA (Unisa)

MR. RONNIE MKHWANAZI
B.Proc (UP) | LLM (Manchaster, UK)

Ronny Mkhwanazi is a Managing Director of Mkhwanazi 

Incorporated and specialist in Corporate Governance, Commercial 

Law and International Trade Law. He is also a part-time Lecturer 

on International Trade at the University of Pretoria’s Trade 

and Investment Masters Programme. In addition to being 

Board member, he also sits on the Audit and Risk Committee 

at SAMSA.

Mr Naidoo is currently a director at Executive with over 

25 years of progressive experience in the FMCG space. 

His experience includes Coca Cola South Africa and Shanduka 

Beverages. He is a qualified Chartered Accountant with 

a strong commercial and financial acumen acquired 

in his various executive leadership roles. He also has experience 

in general management, commercial operations, market 

execution, finance and strategy both locally and in Africa.
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Commander Mokhele was appointed as the Chief Executive 

Officer in 2008. Prior to joining SAMSA he was part of the 

executive management team at the National Ports Authority 

from 1999-2007. He commenced his maritime career in 1987 

in the then Soviet Union at the Caspian Higher Naval College  

and later went on to serve as a Cadet Officer. He achieved 

the rank of Commander in the SA Navy and one of the leaders 

the Naval integration process after 1994. 

Mr. Jacobs is currently the non-Executive Chairman of 

the South African arm of A.P. Møller – Mærsk. He also serves 

on various boards both locally and internationally including 

the South African Association of Ship Operators and Agents 

and the South African Chamber of Chamber of Commerce 

& Industry. He has participated in several government task 

teams with principal focus on BBBEE, skills development 

and job creation in the Maritime and allied sectors. 

MR. FRED JACOBS
MBCH (U KZN)

B.Med Sc (Hons) Pharmacology (U KZN) | Msc- Med (Wits)

Certificate in Economics & Finance (Heriot University)

CDR. TSIETSI MOKHELE
CEO

Sc (Ship Navigation, Command)

MA-Executive Defence Management (Wits)
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Dr. Michael Hendricks is the former Provincial Director-General 

of the Northern Cape Provincial Administration, as well 

as the former Head of Department of the Northern Cape 

Department of Health. He brings to the Board his experience 

and skills in management, leadership, financial management 

and knowledge of the national health system.

MR. MOYAHABO RAPHADU
Company Secretary

B.lur | LLB degree (Unin) | LLM (Oxford) 

Post Graduate Diploma in Governance (UJ)

DR. MICHAEL HENDRICKS
Pitmans Bookkeeping Diploma (Intermediate)

Diploma in Personnel Management | Certified Thomas Analyst

Certified Predictive Index Analyst | Certified Interaction Management Instructor

Executive Programme: Cranfield University

MR. LISOLOMZI FIKIZOLO
Shareholder's Representative
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EXECUTIVE

HEADS

CDR. TSIETSI MOKHELE
CEO

MR. SOBANTU TILAYI
COO

MR. BOETSE RAMAHLO
Office of the CEO

CAPTAIN KARL OTTO
Centre for Sea Watch 

& Response

CAPTAIN NIGEL CAMPBELL
Centre for Ships, Boating & Fishing

MR. SAMUEL NKOSI 
Centre for Policy 

& Regulation

MS. SINDISWA NHLUMAYO
Centre for Maritime Excellence

MS. AYANDA MNGADI
Centre for Corporate Affairs

MR. COLLINS MAKHADO
Centre for Strategy
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EXECUTIVE

MANAGERS

MR. PULE MASHILOANE
Acting Chief Human 

Capital Officer

MR. TUDOR HUNGWE
Acting Chief

Financial Officer

MR. DANIEL VUMA
Acting Chief Procurement

Officer

MR. MOSALA MOSEGOMI
Chief Information Officer

CAPTAIN FRANCIS CHILALIKA
Regional Manager | 

Inland Region

CAPTAIN SAROOR ALI
Regional Manager | 

Eastern Region

CAPTAIN DAVE COLLY
Regional Manager | 

Western Region

(RESIGNED)

MR. BENARD BOBISON-OPOKU
EXCO Secretary & General Counsel
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INL AND REGION
• Pretoria

SAMSA OPERATES 
FROM THE FOLLOWING 
GEOGRAPHICAL LOCATIONS

EASTERN REGION

SOUTHERN REGION

WESTERN REGION

• Richards Bay

• Durban

• Cape Town

• Saldanha

• Port Nolloth

N

S

W E

• East London

• Ngqura

• Port Elizabeth

• Mossel Bay

OUR

FOOTPRINT
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Creating a legacy of prosperity needs all 

hands on deck. From performance to running 

programmes that produce the best people 

and results. On every level, in every detail, 

we are turning the tide, we are navigating, 

we are shifting currents.

S  29° 43 ’42’’  |  E  31° 05’ 18’’

UMHL ANGA LIGHTHOUSE

SHIFTING CURRENTS  |  SAMSA Annual Report

Our Performance Information

Service Delivery Excellence Programme

Maritime Sector Development Programme

Organisational Capability Improvement Programme

Maritime Safety Programme

Maritime Environment Protection Programme

Maritime Governance Programme
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OF ITS INDICATORS
IN LINE WITH

TREASURY REGULATIONS
ON ACCEPTABLE
PERFORMANCE.

The SAMSA annual performance plan and budget were key instruments in our journey to expansion. 

Despite the difficult global shipping environment SAMSA continues to promote growth in the sector. 

The maritime economy is still being shaped as key stakeholders continue to improve their engagement 

and new ones emerge, adding impetus to the sector’s growth ambitions. SAMSA continues to build 

on the successes of a previous turnaround process as outlined in the 2012/13 report. This section of 

the report outlines SAMSA’s performance and highlights the achievements and areas of improvement.

OUR PERFORMANCE

INFORMATION

SAMSA 
ACHIEVED 

73.3% S
A

M
S

A
 A

C
H

IE
VEMENT OF STRATEGIC O

B
JE

C
T

IV
E

S

13.4%

13.3%

73.3%

Not Achieved Partly Achieved Achieved
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To grow & transform the maritime sector from a level of late maturity to early growth

PERFORMANCE

INFORMATION REPORT

065’

KPI Annual Target
Annual 

Achievements
Reason for Variance Planned Corrective ActionsNO

Percentage of registered 

customer complaints that 

have been attended to.

1 100% of all 

registered 

complaints

100% of all 

registered 

complaints

Achieved

No variances as all complaints 

that have been formally 

registered through official 

channels of communications 

have been attended to.

SAMSA plans to implement 

a tailor-made customer relations 

management system in the coming 

financial year to improve the 

management of customer queries.

Rating achieved on the 

stakeholders satisfaction 

survey.

2 83% rating 

achieved

The survey 

has not been 

conducted 

 Not 

Achieved

The survey has not been 

conducted due to unexpected 

problems in implementing a 

corrective plan to address the 

outcomes of last year’s 

stakeholder survey.

A follow up survey will be conducted 

during the 2014/15 financial year. 

The intention is to conduct an annual 

survey to establish levels of stakeholder 

satisfaction with SAMSA.

KPI Annual Target
Annual 

Achievements
Reason for Variance Planned Corrective ActionsNO

Increase in the number of 

South Africans qualifying 

as seafarers:

1 The underachievement 

has been due to the slow 

implementation of a programme 

to train unemployed students 

through the 12 FET colleges 

identified by SAMSA and 

government. There are 

constraints to the intake 

at Cape Peninsula University 

of Technology and Durban 

University of Technology. 

SAMSA will continue to support and 

facilitate the awareness of maritime 

as a career, provide access to training 

berths and strategic partnerships 

on seafarer development with DHET, 

its education institutions and the 

maritime industry.

Certificate of Competency 

- Deck and Engine Officers

650 161

Partly

Achieved

Ratings Qualification 420 248

Partly

Achieved

SHIFTING CURRENTS  |  Our Performance Information

3.2

MARITIME SECTOR DEVELOPMENT PROGRAMME

3.1 To achieve excellence in the delivery of maritime services

SERVICE DELIVERY EXCELLENCE PROGRAMME
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KPI Annual Target
Annual 

Achievements
Reason for Variance Planned Corrective ActionsNO

Number of interventions 

implemented to facilitate 

maritime sector development 

2

4

No Variance. The achievement of planned actions 

(outcomes) from the SAMIC 2012 

conference need to be communicated 

to all SAMIC stakeholders.

Implementation 

of the 2012 

SAMIC 

conference 

and maritime 

careers and 

job summit 

outcomes

All targeted 

interventions 

have been 

implemented in 

line with the plan

Achieved

3 No Variance. SAMSA will continue to provide technical 

advice and support to South African 

entrepreneurs wanting to enter 

the maritime sector where possible.

10 10 entrepreneurs 

entering the 

maritime sector. 

Achieved

Number of South African 

entrepreneurs who have been 

supported into entering the 

maritime sector

A variance was due to an 

increased uptake of seafarers by 

a Norwegian shipping company.

SAMSA will continue to develop strategic 

partnerships, which can contribute to job 

creation and addressing the scourge 

of unemployment.

250 265 jobs have 

been created 

(these include 

FTE and 

non-permanent 

jobs)

Achieved

Number of maritime jobs 

that have been created 

through SAMSA facilitated 

partnerships

5 No ships registered on the 

South African Ship Registry.

This indicator will be removed from 

SAMSA’s plans for the next financial 

year as the carriage is outside our 

control in the short to medium term.

Capture 

2% of the 

cargo for the 

financial year

0% of the 

cargo for this 

financial year

Not 

Achieved

Percentage of cargo carried 

on South African ships by 2016

04˚CHAPTER 
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KPI Annual Target
Annual 

Achievements
Reason for Variance Planned Corrective ActionsNO

Level achieved on SAMSA 

Long Term Financial 

Sustainability (LTFS)

1

2

A  Long Term Financial 

Sustainability implementation 

plan has not been developed in 

line with the indicator.

The department of transport is being 

engaged on the issue of unfunded 

mandates.  In addition, revenue 

enhancement initiatives are being 

considered for implementation. 

A  Long Term Financial Sustainability 

strategy and plan will be developed 

and implemented during 2014-2015.

Level 3 of the 

SAMSA Long 

Term Financial 

Sustainability 

(LTFS) Model

A  Long Term 

Financial 

Sustainability 

implementation 

plan has not 

been developed

Not 

Achieved

There is a lag between 

implementation and  realization 

of the outcomes of the  

implemented internal controls.

Continue with implementing the 

audit compliance improvement plan.

Unqualified 

audit (with 

matters of 

emphasis)

Unqualified 

audit

Audit opinion achieved on

the Auditor General's report.

3 An IT Capability Maturity 

framework is yet to be developed. 

SAMSA intends to develop an ICT 

Capability Maturity plan over 

the 2014/2015 financial year.

Managed 

(maturity level

No ICT Maturity 

Framework 

developed 

to measure 

maturity level.

Not 

Achieved

Level achieved on the SAMSA 

ICT Maturity Framework

4 No Variance. A detailed plan to achieve the Level 1 

rating will be implemented in the 

next financial year in line with the 

new BBBEE codes.

An initial 

independent 

assessment 

completed

An initial 

independent 

assessment 

has been 

completed .A 

detailed plan to 

achieve rating 

Level 1 has 

been finalised.

Achieved

Level of contribution achieved 

on the BBBEE scorecard

SHIFTING CURRENTS  |  Our Performance Information
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ORGANISATIONAL CAPABILIT Y IMPROVEMENT PROGRAMME
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KPI Annual Target
Annual 

Achievements
Reason for Variance Planned Corrective ActionsNO

Number of seafarer 

certificates issued 

per year (small vessels)

1 Due to delays in the conversion 

of the current certificates (deck 

and engine) to the new Manila 

compliant certificate formats.

Continue to implement performance 

improvement plan starting in the next 

financial year.

17 700 14 521

Partly

Achieved

Number of fatalities in 

South African waters

2 Fatalities have reduced from 

a 2012/2013 baseline of 32 

to 10 during this year. A reduction 

of over 220%. This is due to a 

successful preventative safety 

awareness programme.

Continue to Implement the Safety 

improvement plan, specifically focusing 

on fishing safety.

11 10 

Fatalities have 

reduced from a 

2012/13 baseline 

of 32 to 10 during 

the year.

Number of inspections carried 

out on eligible foreign ships 

visiting South African ports.

3 There has been an increase in 

the number of surveyors and as 

a result more surveys were done. 

Continue to implement performance 

improvement plan.

254 302

Achieved

Number of inspections carried 

out on South African ships. 

4 There has been an increase in 

the number of surveyors and as 

a result more surveys were done. 

Continue to implement performance 

improvement plan.

9 867 10 852

Achieved

Number of small boats 

inspected for safety 

compliance

5 This is due to heightened 

implementation of the 

boating safety programme.

Implement performance 

improvement plan.

650 1 021

Achieved

Percentage of accredited 

organisations eligible for audits 

that have been audited 

6 No variance. Continue to implement the audit plan.100% 100% of eligible 

institutions 

audited. 

13 training 

institutions 

were accredited

Achieved

04˚CHAPTER 
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KPI Annual Target
Annual 

Achievements
Reason for Variance Planned Corrective ActionsNO

Number of people covered 

through safety and 

awareness interventions: 

7 Positive variance is due to the use 

of strategic partners to engage 

our stakeholders on matters 

of safe practices and awareness 

of regulations. For example the 

National Sea Rescue Institute 

and National Fishing Forum.

Continue with the communities safe 

fishing outreach initiatives. 

• Fishing Communities 5 000 10 604 through 

National 

Fishing Forum 

publications

Achieved

• Recreational 

 Boating communities

450 000 547 850 

coverage 

through 

magazine 

publications, 

Television (SABC 

Morning Live) 

and radio shows

Achieved

• Shipping 

 communities

1 000 1 806 through 

maritime sector 

publications, 

search and 

rescue training 

and awareness 

and the launch 

of a stevedore 

safety DVD 

163 000 children 

have been 

covered through 

educational 

outreach 

initiatives 

through 

the NSRI 

partnership.

Achieved
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KPI Annual Target
Annual 

Achievements
Reason for Variance Planned Corrective ActionsNO

Time taken to initiate 

response to save people 

in distress situations

8 This is due to a heightened 

focus on managing the time 

taken to respond to incidents.

Operations centre manned twenty four 

hours per day. Regular meetings with 

relevant SASAR stakeholders, e.g. DoT, 

TNPA, NSRI.

Average of 

30mins 

An average of 

29.2 minutes, 

which is within 

the timeframe

Achieved

KPI Annual Target
Annual 

Achievements
Reason for Variance Planned Corrective ActionsNO

% Compliance with the 

ISPS Code

1 No variance. The DoT has indicated a desire to 

allow SAMSA to manage the pre-arrival 

notifications (PAN's) vetting process, 

where SAMSA would be enabled to 

takeover the MSCC function, which 

currently resides within DoT in Pretoria.

100% 

compliance 

based on 

activity report

100% compliance 

with the 

ISPS Code

Achieved

Time taken to distribute 

maritime domain 

awareness information

3 This is an improvement based 

on focused attention on 

managing the distribution 

of maritime information.

Implementation of the improvement plan.

Update distribution list as appropriate.

15 minutes Average of 

14.3 minutes 

to distribute 

maritime domain 

awareness 

information

Achieved

Availability of 

MRCC Systems

2 The COSPAS-SARSAT LUT 

installation at Telkom Maritime 

is well beyond its expiry date, and 

problems of detection are being 

experienced. The coastal maritime 

radio communications set-up 

under Telkom Maritime is also 

in a very poor state.

Dot has signed a contract appointing 

Telkom as the service provider of 

maritime coastal radio communications 

and the Cospas-Sarsat programme for 

the next five years. The SLA document 

has been drafted and signed by both 

parties what is left now is to allow Telkom 

internal processes to take its course. 

The systems should be up and running 

by June 2015.

95% 96% compliance 

with system 

uptime standard

Achieved
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KPI Annual Target
Annual 

Achievements
Reason for Variance Planned Corrective ActionsNO

% of serious pollution 

incidents that have been 

successfully managed.

1 100% All incidents have 

been successfully 

managed.

Achieved

All incidents have been 

successfully managed.

Implementation of improved pollution 

prevention protocols.

% of ships that have 

been successfully held 

accountable for pollution.

2 95% 100% 

of known polluting 

ships have been 

held accountable. 

Achieved

100% of known polluting 

ships have been held 

accountable.

Implementation of programme to 

improve the tracking and identification 

of polluting ships.

Frequency of drills 

undertaken to test 

the national contingency 

readiness.

3 1 per annum. Maritime contingency 

plan must still 

be compiled.

No drill has been 

conducted. The plan 

is however awaiting 

approval in 

2014-2015.

Partially Achieved  

Maritime contingency 

plan must still be 

compiled. No drill 

has been conducted.

Implementation of the performance 

improvement plan.

KPI Annual Target
Annual 

Achievements
Reason for Variance Planned Corrective ActionsNO

IMO endorsement 

of seafarers qualification 

system as being 

compliant with 

international standards.

1 IMO 

Whitelist

IMO Whitelist 

All quarterly 

targets for the 

maintenance of 

IMO whitelist 

status have been 

implemented.

Achieved

No Variance. Implementation of the plan.

Level achieved towards 

the drive to achieve total 

operational excellence.

2 Total 

operational 

excellence 

strategy 

and plan 

approved.

The operational 

excellence 

strategy and plan 

has been 

developed. A Proof 

of Concept 

workshop was held 

in January 2014 

to test the 

methodology 

and approach.

Achieved

No Variance. Phased implementation of plan.
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3.6 To reduce risk of pollution and degradation of maritime environment

MARITIME ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION PROGRAMME

3.7 To be independently recognised for operational excellence
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KPI Annual Target
Annual 

Achievements
Reason for Variance Planned Corrective ActionsNO

Level of staff performance 

managed in line with 

SAMSA Policies.

1 All Staff

(240) are 

performance 

managed.

All staff have 

performance 

engagements to 

finalise the 

2014-2015 

performance 

agreements.

Partially Achieved 

The SAMSA Employee 

Performance Management 

Policy is yet to be 

approved.

The draft policy will be submitted 

to the board for approval through 

REMCO.

Rating achieved on the 

Employee Satisfaction 

Survey.

2 85% 92% - Achieved on 

the Deloitte Survey 

Top 50 of employer 

of choice achieved.

Achieved

50% of staff in 

operations {70 

employees trained 

to date}.

Achieved

A slight variance in 

the methodology applied 

for the survey.

Will continue to implement the 

proposed action items recommended.

Percentage of staff in 

operations that have 

received training on core 

maritime competencies.

3 50% No Variance. Implementation of quarter plan.
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KPI Annual Target
Annual 

Achievements
Reason for Variance Planned Corrective ActionsNO

Targeted legal instruments 

that have been submitted 

to the DoT for approval and 

processing.  

1 No variance. Make the required inputs and monitor 

review and ratification of legal 

instruments.

All draft 

comment and 

industry 

consultation in 

line with DoT 

programme. 

Targeted submissions 

have been made to 

DoT for approval.

Achieved

3.8 To improve the strength of South Africa’s maritime governance from developing to mature

MARITIME GOVERNANCE PROGRAMME

3.9 To improve level of competency in administration of South Africa`s maritime from advanced to expert

ORGANISATIONAL CAPABILIT Y IMPROVEMENT PROGRAMME 
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SERVICE DELIVERY EXCELLENCE

PROGRAMME

S
ET

TI
NG NEW STANDARDS FO

R

WORLD CLASS
QUALITY

SAMSA has identified the need to integrate 

performance information and enhance the entity’s 

capacity for generating and disseminating 

management decision-making information 

in a manner that is both efficient and timely manner. 

The central idea was to ensure that management 

structures across SAMSA are empowered with 

a single version of performance information that 

is accurate, timely, easily accessible, transparent 

and relevant to the nature of decisions management 

is required to make at a tactical, operational 

and strategic level. 

INTEGRATED CORPORATE PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT SYSTEMS 

This programme will focus on the implementation of a total quality 

management system to improve and optimise SAMSA's core and support 

business processes. The SAMSA excellence programme is critical to cost 

containment, setting new standards for world-class quality, satisfying 

ever more demanding stakeholders or being at the forefront of service 

design and Innovation.

SHIFTING CURRENTS  |  Service Delivery Excellence Programme
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This electronic system is also meant to support 

management in gaining rapid strategic insights, 

implementing timely corrective measures, 

the management of performance outcomes, 

corporate reporting and performance management. 

To this end SAMSA has elected to follow an integrated approach towards 

the implementation of a robust electronic solution that will enable 

the efficient and effective collation and transformation of vast amounts 

of operational data into useful analysis for the purpose 

of supporting management. 

In addition to these elements the system 

will also integrate the enterprise risk management 

process. This will ensure that the approach 

to enterprise risk management is aligned the overall 

corporate performance management system 

and that it also benefits from the advantages 

of an electronic system. 
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SAMSA has entered its third phase 

of implementing the SIOMS system, 

which is an automated platform for 

managing core business operational 

processes across SAMSA with the 

intention of standardising practices 

and improving operational efficiencies. 

An accelerated programme of training staff has 

been implemented over the 2013/2014 financial 

year has been conducted across SAMSA. This year 

has also seen us pilot the modules and allow for 

rigorous testing of our systems to ensure that they 

deliver excellent customer results in the long run. 

SAMSA INTEGRATED 
OPERATIONS MANAGEMENT 
SYSTEM 

In addition to the above system a Finance and 

Supply Chain Management System Enhancement 

Process has been undertaken to improve the quality 

of internal controls through the automation of core 

business processes, activation of additional modules 

on our current SCM system and addressing 

identified high-risk processes. 

FINANCE & SUPPLY CHAIN 
MANAGEMENT SYSTEM 
ENHANCEMENTS 
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MARITIME SECTOR DEVELOPMENT

PROGRAMME
SAMSA aims to enhance the 

maritime sector’s contribution 

towards addressing the social 

and economic developmental 

challenges of our country 

by promoting and facilitating 

the development of a wealth 

creating maritime sector, 

developing scarce and critical 

maritime skills for South Africa 

as well as transforming the 

maritime sector towards 

a socially, environmentally 

and economically sustainable 

core sector of our economy.

The programme will focus on the following areas 

of maritime sector development:

•  Sea resource-based industries;

•  Maritime systems design and construction industries;

•  Maritime capital markets and financial services;

•  Marine tourism and leisure (recreation);

•  Maritime trade, operations and related shipping industries; 

•  Maritime advisory and professional service providers;

•  Maritime education, research and innovation service  

 areas; and

•  Maritime equipment and technology development 

 and service provision.

The aim is to use targeted interventions to develop 

South Africa’s maritime skills and expertise, grow 

the sector, develop South Africa’s ship register, enhance 

Maritime’s contribution to GDP and transform 

South Africa into a globally competitive and leading 

maritime destination.

SHIFTING CURRENTS  |  Maritime Sector Development Programme
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South Africa is located a long 

distance away from its largest 

trading partners in the European 

Union and China, making shipping 

a critical component of its trade 

relations. Despite the disadvantage 

of distance to market, it is among 

the top 15 trading countries 

in the world and generates 3,5% 

of the world’s sea-borne trade. 

International trade is the backbone of the maritime 

sector as approximately 12 000 deep-sea trading 

vessels regularly call at South African ports to ship 

out about 96% of the country exports. All the cargo 

is carried on foreign ships as South Africa has no 

merchant ship on its Ship Registry. This therefore 

means that South Africa’s economy and its security 

of trade is dependent on ships owned and regulated 

in foreign countries. Maritime trade consists of four 

aspects:  the coastal trading system, international 

trading system, regional trading system 

and continental trading system. 

The year 2013 saw National Treasury propose 

generous tax exemptions in the Taxation Laws 

Amendment Bill 2013 to enhance the competitiveness 

of South Africa and encourage ship owners 

to register their ships in the country. South Africa 

has abandoned its previously proposed tonnage 

tax in favour of an outright exemption for South 

African ship owners. The new shipping tax regime 

will exempt qualifying ship owners from income tax, 

capital gains tax, dividend tax, and the withholding 

tax on interest for years of assessment beginning 

on or after 1 April 2014. The proposals, once 

promulgated, will also allow a qualifying shipping 

company to utilise a currency other than the South 

African Rand as the company’s functional currency. 

An international shipping company will furthermore 

not be subject to currency gains and losses. 

Further proposals will allow for 

officers and crew of domestically 

flagged ships designed for 

international traffic to be wholly 

exempt from South African tax 

on their salaries.

MARITIME TRADE



TOURISM & TRAVEL 

Tourism continues to be one of the world`s largest 

industries with its value demonstrated by a sizable 

contribution of 9% to global GDP, which translates

to more than $6 trillion and accounts for 255 million 

jobs. Marine tourism is comprised of several

subsectors, which includes yachting, cruising, 

ferrying, and hospitality and entertainment.

This subsector also comprises sports and recreation 

(diving, swimming, and sailing), and leisure (eco-marine 

tourism, real estate, adventure and viewing) activities. 

Maritime tourism is a growing industry however 

challenges such as the lack of access to berths, 

port facilities and high security risks pose have 

had a constraining effect on its ability to develop 

in South Africa. An integrated multi-stakeholder 

approach is required if South Africa is to effectively 

exploit South Africa’s rich maritime heritage 

and inland waterways that can contribute a lot 

to tourism and sports. There are strong linkages 

between the marine cruise industry, boating, ports, 

and other maritime infrastructure which need 

to be developed through an integrated approach 

to ensure that all constraints are overcome. 

To this end SAMSA has embarked on a process 

to support and facilitate the process of developing 

and implementing a multi-stakeholder integrated 

marine tourism and leisure strategy to promote 

the sector. 

MARINE TOURISM &
LEISURE

Marine manufacturing includes the construction, 

maintenance and repair of offshore infrastructure 

such as drill platforms and oil and gas rigs; 

offshore operational vessels such as floating 

production storage offload vessels (FPSO), 

floating storage offload vessels (FSOs), anchor 

handling tug supply vessels (AHTS), supply 

vessel, barges, commercial ships, dredgers, 

cable layers, trawlers, harbour craft, yachts, 

speed boats, jet-skis, other pleasure craft 

and water sport equipment. 

The industry ranges from offshore fabrication, 

to commercial vessels, to small vessels, to leisure 

boats. The shipbuilding industry has been in decline 

since the withdrawal of incentives and due to greater 

competition from international players who enjoy 

incentives from their governments. Only the boatbuilding 

sector has enjoyed success on the back of strong 

demand from the US after the destruction 

of 65,000 leisure boats by Hurricane Katarina. 

It continues to be competitive and produces high 

quality products.  However, boat builders have 

to raise export credit from the Export Credit 

Insurance Corporation (ECIC) as this sector 

is export-led. 

MARINE MANUFACTURING

CONTINUES TO BE ONE OF THE  WORLD’S LARGEST INDUSTRIES 
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PORT CONSULTATIVE 
COMMIT TEE

The scope of issues discussed at the respective 

PCCs’ includes port efficiencies, competitiveness 

and timeous capital investment translating into 

what is considered a fair tariff amongst others. 

Ordinarily issues discussed are steeped in conflict 

directly linked to the varied interests from a wide 

membership as articulated in the Ports Act of 2005. 

One of the single main focus areas remain reducing 

the cost of doing business in South Africa.

The 2013/14 PCC meetings commenced in May 2013 

followed by a structured PCC roadshow with the main 

aim of creating awareness of the role and functions 

of the PCC and NPCC. During 2013/14 Port users 

requested more engagement on the Port Development 

Framework plans, Capital investment plans and port 

performance related issues. It was understood that 

although the National Ports Authority has its own 

structured engagement sessions with port users 

across the Port system, further engagement 

was required. To this end the PCCs' agreed to have 

a PCC roadshow ahead of the start of the new 

financial year. 

SAMSA facilitated the establishment of a South 

African Port Consultative Committee website 

www.pccsa.org.za, which was established during 

2013/14. Main objective was to ultimately have an 

interactive website where Port users across the 

country can have access to all National and Ports 

Consultative Committee information. Furthermore 

to be able to register Agenda items following the 

structured processes. The website, when fully 

matured, should be able to give port users a clear 

indication as to where issues are in terms of progress 

and track these both at a PCC level per port 

and at an NPCC.

The National Ports Consultative Committee (NPCC) 

and the Ports Consultative Committee (PCC) were 

established in terms of the National Ports Act, 

No. 12 of 2005, chapter 11 and the Ports Regulations 

of 2007. The legal basis for the establishment 

of the Port Consultative Committees (PCCs’) 

is Section 81 of the National Ports Act. The Minister 

of Transport was appointed as the Chairperson 

and SAMSA as the entity responsible for the provision 

of Secretariat services and responsible for 

the Administration of the PCCs’ and NPCC.

These committees provide a legitimate platform

for dialogue amongst decision makers across

the South African port system. Ports Consultative

Committee Meetings commenced March 2010

and the first NPCC meeting February 2011. Although

the PCC and NPCC meetings have been taking place 

Membership related teething issues for both the 

PCC and NPCC. This was informed by several issues:

-  Where port users would ideally want to represent

    themselves as several single associations;

-  The issue of standing invitees and the implications    

    of same;

-  The need to create large scale awareness

    as to how Port users can participate within

    the different tiers of the PCC and NPCC;

-  Members understanding their roles and obligations. 
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This project has put South Africa's 

Maritime Education and Training (MET) 

on the world map, with interest in its 

workings and organisation the subject 

of enquiries from many countries 

and media stories.

Seafarer education and training require, in part, 

the fulfilment of sea-time, on-the-job exposure for 

candidate officers (cadets), to be acquired on-board 

seagoing ships. With South Africa having no commercial 

cargo ships on her register, such a requirement had

become a bottleneck in seafarer training.  

Hence, the  acquisition of the SA Agulhas and its 

conversion and re-launch as a country's first ever, 

Africa's only, and 1 of not more than 5 ships globally, 

trading ocean-going Dedicated Training Vessel (DTV), 

is such a strategic intervention.

The Dedicated Training Vessel has successfully been 

converted into a dedicated facility for training Marine 

Engineering, Navigation and Hospitality. It boasts of 

high-tech classrooms fitted with training simulators, 

communication systems, with appointed lecturers 

on board on a full-time basis. The vessels can carry 

up to 90 cadets, rotated once every 4 or 3 months, 

giving South Africa's seafarer system an annual 

production capacity of 240 to 360 on-board training berths. 

NATIONAL CADETSHIP 
AND THE DEDICATED TRAINING VESSEL
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SAMSA has covered the length and breadth 

of South Africa, attending and exhibiting Open Days 

at institutions, using media platforms, hosting 

careers and jobs expos and clinics in all the provinces 

culminating in the Maritime Careers Expo held 

back to back with Maritime Jobs Summit held 

in KwaZulu-Natal, June 2013. Due to this awareness 

and promotion campaigns we touched directly more 

than a million students and learners, thousands 

of job seekers and millions of South Africans. 

SAMSA also partnered with Sci-Bono to host 

the Maritime Week in 2013 and was able to reach 

more than 4 000 learners from the Gauteng Province.  

SAMSA will this year host the Careers Expo and 

Job Summit in the Eastern Cape.

Given that the country's Universities of Technologies 

produce about 120 cadet officers per annum, 

the bottleneck has shifted away from sea berths 

to shore based institutions. 

The targeted numbers of seafarer jobs in the 

SAMSA Plan are 45 000 to 60 000 over the next 

decade, with officers accounting for 20% (i.e. 9 000 

to 12 000) and the rest being ratings (artisan types). 

There is a reported world-wide shortage of 32 000 

Officers and 224 000 ratings on the world fleet 

which are available to people from any country 

with the required qualifications.

Already SAMSA has managed to place over 500 

cadets on the world fleet through a Cadet Placement 

Programme, also securing employment for the 

graduates of this programme through the Seafarer 

Job Placement Programme. Both SAMSA initiated 

programmes prepare the cadets and graduates 

and market their services to the global employers. 

The demand is growing and South Africa's supply 

side numbers are criticised by employers for being 

too low to meet the potential demand.

MARITIME AWARENESS

GRADUATED

TOTAL OF
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The first ever draft Programme 

Qualifications Matrix was developed 

by the Department of Higher 

Education and Training and was 

workshopped with the institutions 

of higher learning and industry. 

It was decided that institutions needed to engage 

at a regional level and agree as a collective which 

programmes they were interested in to complement 

the economic and social profile of their region.  

Based on this, Mangosuthu University of Technology 

expressed interest in offering marine engineers 

studies. The University of Zululand expressed 

interest in offering marine tourism and leisure 

programmes as part of their broader tourism 

programme. Nelson Mandela Metropolitan University 

(NMMU) expressed interest in offering comprehensive 

maritime education and training programmes.  

UNIVERSITIES AND UNIVERSITIES OF TECHNOLOGY 
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FOR THEIR MASTERS AND PhD
IN MARITIME AFFAIRS
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Partnership was forged with the World Maritime 

University after realising that not a single South Africa 

was part of the graduation ceremony. This culminated 

in a Memorandum of Understanding, which saw 

twenty four (24) South Africans enrolling for Masters 

Programme and four (4) South Africans enrolling 

for PhD in maritime affairs. The first group of Masters 

Students will graduate in November 2014. The plan 

is to continue with the programme whilst building 

internal capacity in South Africa to offer comphrehensive 

maritime education and training. 

Currently, the bursary programme, 

which was piloted in the Eastern 

Cape, has benefitted 36 learners 

and students who are now studying 

at Lawhill Maritime Centre, Cape 

Peninsular University of Technology 

and Durban University of Technology. 

The pilot has been extended 

to other coastal provinces as well 

as Northern Cape and KwaZulu-Natal.

MARITIME SCHOLARSHIPS 
& BURSARIES  

Engagements were held with the Department of 

Higher Education and Training where a decision 

was taken to pilot 12 Public Technical Vocational 

Education and Training (TVET) colleges to offer 

maritime education and training.  

FUTHER EDUCATION
& TRAINING COLLEGES 

SAMSA partnered with the Department of Science 

and Technology to host the first ever maritime 

indaba and workshop which will result in a National 

Roadmap for Maritime Research and Innovation.

MARITIME RESEARCH 
DEVELOPMENT & INNOVATION
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SAMSA is in the process of becoming a more effective, 

efficient and strategic contributor to the maritime 

economy, while becoming an employer of choice 

by local and world standards. The implementation 

of an integrated, consistent and effective performance 

management system is helping us do this.

As part of the process of implementing the 

performance management system, SAMSA 

has undertaken a number of reviews to ensure 

that it conforms to legislative and regulatory 

requirements and best practice with regards 

to design and implementation. The reviews also 

assessed whether or not it is an appropriate 

mechanism through which to get optimal 

performance at all levels; keep employees motivated, 

developed and rewarded, to ensure risk and projects 

are effectively managed and the goals of the 

organisation are achieved.  

EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE 
MANAGEMENT

This programme was created 

to expose students who are 

waiting for berths (to go to sea) 

to the workplace environment. 

20 students/graduates were 

placed. The number of students 

in this programme was 22 in 2012/13 

and 18 students in 2013/2014.

WORKPL ACE EXPOSURE 

ORGANISATIONAL CAPABILITY IMPROVEMENT

PROGRAMME
The purpose of this programme is to develop adequate and suitable resources and competencies to achieve 

the SAMSA mandate. The programme will focus on ensuring that SAMSA develops effective organisational 

infrastructure, including the reengineering of business processes, structural arrangements, ICT systems, 

the development of talent and broader staff competencies, governance and strategic control systems  

and other related areas of overall organisational competence. 
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SAMSA acknowledges the value of having 

a diverse workforce and is committed to employment 

equity as set out in the law. Transformation 

and employment equity are priorities and SAMSA 

will ensure that employment equity is achieved by:

- Promoting equal opportunity and fair treatment;

- Implementing affirmative action measures 

 to redress the disadvantages experienced 

 by designated groups (black people, women 

 and people with disabilities), to ensure their  

 equitable representation in all occupational  

 categories and levels in the workforce;

- SAMSA established an employment equity 

 forum as a representative body for employees. 

 The funtion of the body is to ensure that SAMSA  

 considers employee issues in the employment  

 equity plan. The plan was prepared in accordance 

 with the Employment Equity Act.

 

EMPLOYMENT EQUITY

GENDER & LEVEL

87.5%

64.7%
77.1%

53.7%

21.7%

78.3%
66.7%

33.3%

46.3%

22.9%
35.3%

TOP SENIOR SKILLED SEMI-SKILLED UNSKILLEDPROFESSIONAL

12.5%

RACE & LEVEL

87.5%

61.8%
54.3%

83.2%
91.3%

8.7%

100%

00.0%
16.8%

45.7%
38.2%

TOP SENIOR SKILLED SEMI-SKILLED UNSKILLEDPROFESSIONAL

12.5%

Male Female

Blacks Whites
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NUMBER OF INTERNS
FINANCIAL YEAR (2013-2014)
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25 24

2009 2010 2012 2013 20142011

The objective of this programme is to assist students who have completed their studies to get exposure in 

their field of study so that they can acquire experience. This programme commenced in 2009 and has since 

assisted 35 students to date. 11 were permanently employed, and currently there are 24 remaining on this 

programme as graphically illustrated below:

CURRENTLY THE NUMBERS ARE AS ILLUSTRATED BELOW: 

NUMBER OF INTERNS  PLACED DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR:
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MARITIME SAFETY 

PROGRAMME
The programme will be focused on amongst 

others the following areas of maritime safety:

• Enforcing safe and environmentally sound  

 operations of South African flagged vessels  

 throughout the world. 

• Asserting authority over foreign vessels  

 operating in South African Port State Controlled  

 waters to enforce safe, secure, and environmentally  

 sound operations.

• Issuing licences and documents to qualified  

 seafarers, and promote competency through 

 a combination of training courses, requisite  

 experience, and examinations. 

• Conducting inspections of South African and  

 foreign vessels, maritime facilities, and review  

 plans for vessel construction, alteration,  

 equipment, and salvage. 

• Includes the implementation of Safety of Life 

 at Sea (SOLAS), The International Regulations   

 for Preventing Collisions at Sea {COLREGs).    

 Standards of Training, Certification and Watch  

 keeping (STCW) and other conventions.

• Safe navigation of vessels and effective 

 emergency response systems.

South Africa is a member state of the International Maritime Organisation, which is a United Nations agency 

charged with presiding over maritime matters globally. SAMSA, on behalf the Department of Transport implements 

all the international maritime transport conventions which have been acceded to: 

The Maritime safety programme 

is aimed at improving shipping, 

boating, crewman as well as 

Seafarer safety, which also includes 

assistance and coordination 

of safe navigation and responses 

to emergency situations at sea. 

It aims to ensure that South Africa instils safe 

maritime practices, producing safety conscious 

and competent Seafarers, enforcing IMO and ILO 

safety conditions. This shall be achieved through 

the monitoring of compliance to SAMSA standards 

as well as domestic shipping, training, boating and 

navigation regulations. 
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This is the responsibility for all the ships that 

fly the Country’s flag. All ships are required to 

comply with:

•  Vessel Construction regulations. 

•  Various regulations that govern the operation 

 of the vessel including safe manning, operating,  

 maintenance, loading, risk and security, etc.

•  Training, certification and manning, and 

 seafarer welfare.

In discharging its obligations, IMO determines 

that the country must have an inspection regime 

in the form of surveys. The surveys involved 

in ensuring the discharge of Flag State 

Responsibilities are:   

Statutory Surveys - Through the statutory survey, 

the country certifies the ships flying its flag to be 

compliant with international safety and pollution 

prevention requirements. All ships are required 

to display various certificates in prescribed places 

on board to demonstrate their compliance with 

the rules that apply on the type and class of the ship. 

These certificates are issued upon the ship passing 

an inspection (survey) relating to the particular 

rule. The surveyors carry out the inspections and 

there can be up to twenty eight (28) different types 

of surveys for various aspects of compliance. 

It is a condition of trading that the ship must comply 

with all requirements applicable to it before it is 

allowed to trade. Any statutory surveys not carried 

out essentially render the particular ship unseaworthy 

and thus not able to carry out its functions. 

FL AG STATE
RESPONSIBILIT Y

THESE INTERNATIONAL CONVENTIONS CONFER THE FOLLOWING RESPONSIBILITIES:

Countries are required to carry out obligations relating to the safety of navigation (including adequacy 

of all Aids to Navigation), the administration of navigation along the coast (including issue of navigational 

warnings), provision of response for coastal marine casualties (including Search and Rescue), marine 

communications and surveillance (including Identification and Tracking of ships along the coast as well 

as flagged ships wherever they may be in order to account for such ships). 

COASTAL STATE 
RESPONSIBILIT Y

SHIFTING CURRENTS  |  Maritime Safety Programme



092’

Due to the fact that only a flag state has jurisdiction 

over its own ships, IMO developed an inspection 

regime for all ships not registered in the country 

in which the port is located (visiting ships). 

This allows the state to ensure that the visiting 

ship does not pose a risk to the port and its 

environment. IMO also needs this regime in order 

to ensure maintenance of shipping standards 

agreed to internationally. In order to, the country 

in which the port is situated is allowed to carry 

out inspections on visiting ships. These inspections 

are called Port State Control inspections. IMO has 

organised the world into regions and the regions 

are called the Memorandum of Understanding 

on Port State Control. South Africa belongs to two 

MOUs due to it having ports situated on the Indian 

and Atlantic Oceans. 

It is imperative that the Port State has ratified 

each instrument that it seeks to use in order to 

inspect that particular aspect on the ship (example, 

a country would have to have ratified Marine Pollution 

Convention before it would legally inspect ships 

visiting its ports for compliance with the convention, 

or any of its Annexes). Non-compliant ships are 

detained in terms of local legislation giving effect 

to the convention once ratified by the country. 

However, any non-compliant (for example, when 

the state has not ratified an instrument, ships that 

fly its flag are not required to comply with the same 

instrument, only to the extent that they do not leave 

that particular country’s local waters but they remain 

non-compliant when visiting other jurisdictions 

that have ratified the instrument) ship visiting 

a compliant jurisdiction, that ship would be deemed 

non-compliant and the IMO principle of “no more 

favourable treatment applies to the ship” (meaning 

that if the non-compliance warrants it, the Port 

State has a right to issue penalties or even detain 

the ship).

PORT STATE RESPONSIBILITY

04˚CHAPTER 



093’

SHIPPING SAFETY 
SUBPROGRAMME (2013-2014)

MV KIANI SATU

The vessel encountered engine 

room equipment problems while on 

the South African coast off Mossel 

Bay. Investigations indicate that the 

scavenger pump experienced some 

fire leading to the loss of the main 

engines after unsuccessful repairs. 

The vessel’s last port of call was Hong Kong 

bound for Ghana and she was carrying 15 000 tons 

of bagged rice. The vessel grounded in a patch 

of sand along a very rocky area along a stretch 

of beach off Sedgefield. The ship was fully insured  

by Standard Club UK, with USD1 Billion cover for 

pollution and unlimited cover for P&I. It is estimat-

ed that 100 T of oil escaped into the sea after 

grounding and a further 300 T were sealed inside 

the ship. All pollution was cleaned up and the 

salvage and pollution prevention cost were 

estimated to be R60 million.

M.V. SMART 

On August 19, 2013  M.V. SMART, a Panamanian 

registered bulk carrier on a voyage towards 

China loaded with 147650 M/T of coal from RBCT 

ran aground outside Richards Bay harbour shortly 

after the pilot disembarked. The vessel reportedly 

had a steering failure and all crew members were 

evacuated safely. A directive in terms of the 

Merchant Shipping Control and Civil Liability 

Act 6 of 1981 and the Wreck and Salvage Act for wreck 

removal and pollution control was served to 

the owners’ of MV Smart. Wreck removal operations 

for the forward and mid-sections of the MV SMART 

commenced following the award of the wreck 

removal contract to Titan Maritime LLC and T&T 

Salvage LLC. 

Extensive use was made of 

local contractors and resources 

to perform one of the largest 

and most challenging wreck removal 

operations in South African history. 

The wreck removal operation was 

scheduled to take approximately 

550 project days to complete. 

The cost for the wreck removal 

is projected to be at least R1,3 billion.

MA JOR SHIPPING
INCIDENTS IN SOUTH 
AFRICAN WATERS
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A safe environment for ships 

and professionals seafarers is vital 

for a vibrant sector. 

The programme has seen South Africa improve our 

performance on ensuring ship saftey through our 

participation on the Indian Ocean Memorandum of 

Understanding (IOMOU) on Port State Control, Abuja 

MOU and Indian Ocean Memorandum for the financial 

year 2013-2014.

SHIP SAFETY PARTNERSHIPS

Meaning of flag:

Require Medical Assistance

Meaning of flag:

Require Assistance
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SAMSA carried out statutory and 

ad hoc ship surveys and inspections 

in fulfilment of its Flag State 

obligations.

A total of 10 852 survey activities were conducted

with the biggest contributor being small vessels 

under 25 GT inspections (4363), followed by 

Radio Surveys (1540). The table below reflects 

the inspections that were carried out. 

INSPECTION & 
SURVEYING OF 
SOUTH AFRICAN SHIPS 
(FLAGSTATE INSPECTIONS)
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NO. OF INSPECTIONS
CONCLUDED

2008-2009 2009-2010 2010-2011 2011-2012 2012-2013 2013-2014

Tonnage measurement

Loadline

Small vessels  <25GT (Int)

Small vessels  <25GT (Ext)

Fishing vessels >25GT≤400GT

Fishing vessel >400GT

Non fishing 25GT ≤ 500GT

Convention vessel>500GT

Oil Pollution Prevention & Combatting

MARPOL

Ship Stability 

Dangerous Goods 

Approvals, DOTFAS, Life-raft stations

Radio surveys 

TOTAL

SA Ships

219

119

3435

567

1128

215

631

872

64

140

437

735

257

905

9157

13 10 8 50 4 6

113

113

3686

494

1076

146

510

673

38

108

312

470

274

1894

9413

76

84

3093

440

833

177

395

557

38

80

155

168

278

1416

7790

28

69

3770

77

996

180

518

678

130

78

100

348

542

1463

8977

43

91

4034

424

972

226

414

668

59

45

108

189

425

1586

9284

43

84

4363

695

1189

254

700

929

62

88

170

258

477

1540

10852

DETENTIONS
TYPE OF VESSEL

2008-2009 2009-2010 2010-2011 2011-2012 2012-2013 2013-2014
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A total of 302 vessels that called into South Africa 

and were eligible for Port State inspections were 

inspected. A total of five (5) ships were detained 

for various reasons such as serious deficiencies 

relating to safety equipment, expired certificates 

and marine pollution prevention.

VESSEL INSPECTION 
AND DETENTIONS 
UNDER PORT STATE 
CONTROL

097’
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PORT STATE CONTROL INSPECTION

484
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263
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209

18
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302
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MARITIME CASUALTIES

87
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72
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10
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Number of Fatalities Number of Incidents

Port Sates Control Inspections Foreign Ships Detentions
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SAMSA participates in the 

National Inland Maritime Safety 

Programme that promotes inland 

vessel safety, awareness, 

the containment and eradication 

of invasive aquatic species 

and incident management. 

This is a partnership agreement between 

government entities and communities. The aim 

is to enhance the development of a best practice 

model to ensure a safe and structured inland 

maritime environment and culture whilst protecting 

our precious water resources. The programme seeks 

to address the inability to enforce and regulate 

safety, security, environment regulations on South 

African inland waters and creating safety awareness.

In order to empower safety officers, examiners, 

and surveyors from Authorised Agencies, Boating 

Clubs, and small vessel training institutions 

throughout the country, SAMSA conducted 

refresher training sessions covering the small 

vessel regime followed by examinations in Cape 

Town, Port Elizabeth, Durban and Pretoria. A total 

of 747 persons underwent these sessions in 2012 

and 2013 at no cost to them. This has produced 

a good foundation of knowledgeable persons 

across the country with the ability to enforce 

the safety culture.

SAMSA has participated in the Johannesburg, 

Cape Town and Durban Boat shows, LDYC Round 

the Island Race, Rust De Winter Dam Safety 

Awareness Campaign (Limpopo) and Wygboom 

Dam Safety Awareness Campaign (Mpumalanga) 

to enhance awareness of safe boating practices. 

BOATING SAFET Y 
(SMALL VESSEL SAFET Y)

SAMSA is a member of the National Fishing Forum 

(NFF). The forum was established with the mission 

to facilitate growth, development, ensure a competitive 

fishing Industry and safety awareness.

NFF in partnership with Department of Agriculture 

Forestry and Fisheries (DAFF) hosted the Torremolinos 

International Convention for the safety of fishing 

vessels in Cape Town. The objectives were to ensure 

safety of life at sea, particularly in high seas as 

this convention is applicable to fishing vessels 

not less than 24m length. 

The NFF embarked on road shows 

at the beginning of the year 2013 

around the identified coastal 

communities promoting 

safety awareness.

The safety campaigns managed to directly 

reach/cover at least 90,000 people and indirectly 

over 2.5 million people through media publications 

such as Angling Times, Go Fish Magazine, 

Leisure Boating, Ski Boat Magazine, Television 

Coverage: Morning Live, CNBC, Good Morning 

Africa, ANN7 and Boating Assocaitions MIASA 

(Marine Industry Association, Boat Retailers 

Associations).

FISHING SAFET Y 
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During the year 2013/14, the Maritime Response 

Coordination Centre (MRCC) responded to 452 

alerts of which false alerts or inadvertent activations 

were confirmed at 33% of all distress signals. 

193 lives were saved during the period through the 

coordination actions of the MRCC. MRCC assisted 

with 115 medical advice incidents by connecting the 

vessel to local Telemedical Services and coordinated 

the evacuation of 60 crew/passengers from vessels 

offshore to local hospitals. The MRCC passed on 

12 181 pre-arrival messages from ships for the year 

to the Maritime Security Coordination Centre (MSCC)

in Department of Transport (DoT).

MARITIME DOMAIN AWARENSS,
SEARCH & RESCUE

193
LIVES SAVED

MEDICAL EVACUATION “SHARK EXPLORER”

Simonstown NSRI launched to assist with 

a hand injury onboard the shark diving boat 

SHARK EXPLORER off Cape Point. A Swiss tourist 

was apparently bitten through his wetsuit by a blue 

shark but was not seriously injured in an underwater 

shark expedition. The NSRI boat rendezvoused 

with the SHARK EXPLORER 1 mile from the Point 

and a medic was placed on-board to attend to the 

injured tourist. The patient was taken to Simon’s Town 

where an ambulance was waiting to take him 

to hospital for treatment.

EPIRB DETECTION MV PEACE

At 1327UTC ZSC informs MRCC Cape Town about 

an EPIRB detection for the MV PEACE. Contact is 

attempted with vessel without success. A Safetynet 

broadcast is made for the area and the adjacent 

MRCCs, Reunion and Madagascar, are alerted. 

Numerous vessel responded but were all at least 

200nm away and they all confirmed that the tropical 

storm in the area was severe. MRCC Reunion reverted 

stating that the MV Patris has made contact on 

VHF with the MV Peace. The MV Peace crew were 

abandoning ship to the life raft. At 0612UTC on the 

2nd January the MV Patris found the life raft with 

all 9 crew and recovered the castaways. The crew 

was then delivered to Cape Town. The MV Peace hull 

was reported to be drifting and Navwarnings for the 

area were issued and the case closed him to hospital 

for treatment.

EXCEPTS OF REAL LIFE
INCIDENTS



The Maritime security 

subprogramme is concerned 

with the prevention of intentional 

damage and disturbance of South 

African and global maritime supply 

chain networks, deliberate sabotage 

of the sea environment, acts of 

piracy, illegal exploitation of South 

African sea-based resources, 

vessel security, etc. 

Although SAMSA is a key role player and has 

a significant interest in the effective governance 

of the maritime sector, ensuring maritime security 

rests on the existence of a functional partnership 

with all government partners (including SANDF, 

SAPS, SA Navy, Telkom, Dept. of Home Affairs etc.) 

to effect such security. The aim of the subprogramme 

is to ensure security of the national maritime 

infrastructure, the maritime economy 

(incl. trade and supply chains) and the broader 

maritime domain, which we have defined as all 

areas and things of, on, under, relating to, adjacent 

to, or bordering on a sea, ocean, or other navigable 

waterway, including all maritime-related activities, 

infrastructure, people, cargo, and vessels 

and other conveyances. 

The infrastructure and systems that span 

the maritime sector has increasingly become 

a target for the conveyance of dangerous and 

illicit activities. The rapid spread of piracy and other 

illegal maritime activity, impacts of climate change 

and environmental consequences of toxic biochemical 

discharge unto the sea and broader environment 

continue to threaten the sustainability of maritime. 

The impact and likelihood of such events has risen 

significantly over the past few years and has emerged 

as a key focus area of our strategy moving forward. 

The above factors as well as other avoidable 

disruptions to South African trade depend 

on the effective coordination of multi stakeholder 

activities to ensure that we effectively respond 

to these threats to maritime.

MARITIME SECURITY 
SUBPROGRAMME (2013-2014)
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Cabinet approved the National Security Strategy 

and Plan of Action.  The strategy identifies four 

threats to national security - outsourcing of state 

security to private security service providers, cyber 

security, espionage, domestic instability and threats 

to territorial integrity (border control, illegal migration 

and terrorism). 

The strategy and action plan provide 

for the establishment of the South 

African Coast Guard Service within 

the Department of Defence 

and Military Veterans.

NATIONAL SECURIT Y
STRATEGY

SAMSA is part of the 

Inter-Governmental Working Group 

(IWG) working on the position of 

South Africa relating to transport 

security in the Brazil Russia India 

China and South Africa (BRICS) 

negotiations.  SAMSA submitted 

inputs on the BRICS Draft Report 

on Transport Security which covered, 

among others, background 

information on South Africa’s maritime 

regulatory framework, rationale for 

the development of regional transport 

(transhipment) hubs and the impact 

of maritime piracy on South Africa. 

SAMSA inputs have been accepted by the BRICS 

IWG and they will be incorporated in the BRICS 

base document outlining the position of South 

Africa on maritime issues.

BRAZIL,  RUSSIA,  INDIA
CHINA & SOUTH AFRICA
NEGOTIATIONS
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SHIFTING CURRENTS  |  Maritime Safety Programme



102’

04˚CHAPTER 

Most of what SAMSA does daily focuses on 

preventing marine incidents before they occur. 

These include ship surveys, port state inspections 

and the development of safety requirements 

for ships and seafarers and I am grateful for the 

sterling work always carried out by our surveyors. 

We will continue to improve on safety as we are 

required to administer maritime-related statutes 

covering ship registration, seafarer training and 

certification, ship safety & security, and the protection 

of the marine environment from pollution from ships. 

To keep abreast of the latest trends in maritime 

safety, SAMSA and the department of transport 

attend the IMO and International Labour 

Organisation meetings. 

As a signatory to the IMO convention on 

maritime search and rescue 1979, SAMSA provides 

comprehensive facilities to search for missing 

ships and makes the necessary arrangements 

for the rescue of persons in distress within a sphere 

of 27 million square kilometres, which is vast 

considering that South Africa’s landmass is only 

1.2 million square km. Its area of responsibility 

extends all the way to the Antarctic, halfway to Asia 

and halfway to South America. The Maritime Rescue 

Coordination Centre (MRCC) is based in Cape Town 

and responsible for coordination of maritime 

and aeronautical search and rescue operations. 

This year as always, the unit responded to several 

distress signals and ensured that many lives

were saved. 

INTERNATIONAL 
OBLIGATIONS



MARITIME ENVIRONMENT PROTECTION

PROGRAMME

103’

The programme adopts a multi-stakeholder 

approach to ensuring successful and sustainable 

marine environment protection, working with other 

government departments and agencies, the shipping 

industries, oil, chemical and exploration companies, 

emergency services and other environmental 

protection interest groups to enable a strong 

national pollution and environmental 

protection system. 

This involves among other interventions the 

development of integrated policies and regulations, 

national contingency plans and other related 

multi-stakeholder strategies. The international 

convention for the prevention of pollution from ships 

(MARPOL) regulations aimed at preventing and 

minimising pollution from ships, both accidental 

and that from routine operations requires SAMSA 

to ensure that there is compliance by ships 

operating in South African seas.

  

The Maritime Environmental Protection 

programme is aimed at developing 

and enforcing regulations to avert 

the introduction of invasive species 

into the maritime environment, 

stop unauthorised ocean dumping of 

hazardous substances and prevent 

oil and chemical spills. This programme 

is complemented by the Maritime 

Safety programme’s pollution 

prevention activities. 

SHIFTING CURRENTS  |  Maritime Environment Protection Programme



SAMSA in partnership with the Secretariat of 

the Abidjan Convention (UNEP) initiated a project 

to develop a Pan-African process and instrument 

for the governance of the oceans in a sustainable 

and achievable manner, consistent with the goals 

of UNEP and the best interests of the people and 

communities of the African countries concerned. 

To this end, a partnership has been formed with 

the International Ocean Institute - Southern Africa 

(IOI-SA) to support and coordinate the process. 

A Panel of Experts (PoE) on Ocean Governance 

for Africa was developed, with the inaugural meeting 

being hosted by IOI-SA in Cape Town, South Africa. 

The partnership has successfully reached its goals, 

with recommendations from the meeting illustrating 

the need for the UNEP-driven process to reach out 

to a broad range of experts and increase alignment 

with related initiatives such as the AU 2050 AIM 

Strategy. The IOI-SA will continue to coordinate 

the PoE and lead the ongoing development of the 

Policy Blueprint and related documents in preparation 

for the proposed African Summit on Ocean 

Governance, and in cooperation with the Secretariat 

and associated partners.  

OCEAN GOVERNANCE
FOR AFRICA
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BRIEF
DESCRIPTION

DATE PORT VESSEL TYPE OF
VESSEL

PORT OF
REGISTRY

5/04/2013

23/04/2013

05/05/2013

12/08/2013

11/12/2013

12/01/2014

25/02/2014

27/02/2014

7/07/2013

Approximately 20 litres of HFO spilled 

into the harbour 

About 5 to 10 litres of Marine Gas Oil 

spilled overboard

App 50 Litres of Diesel Fuel Oil was 

spilled overboard

App 70 litres of HFO spilled due to 

a leak in the bunker line.

App 100 litres of MGO spilled overboard

 

Unknown amount of Jet Oil spilled into 

the harbour

App 30 litres of diesel spilled overboard

 

Unknown amount of diesel oil sighted

  

Discharged the engine room bilges 

containing oily water mixtures overboard

Durban

Durban

Saldanha

Durban

Durban

Durban

Durban

Cape Town

Durban

Spain

Norway

Cape Town

Funafuti

Malaysia

Isle of Man

St Johns

Cape Town

Zanzibar 

O’Colvelo

M/V Princess

Harvest Kirstina

Theresa Crystal

MV Naukita Resolute

Berg

MV Haren

MFV Connect

Skua

Fishing Vessel

Seismic Survey  

Class X Stern Trawler

Tanker

Utility Support Vessel

Tanker

Cargo Ship

Tuna Fishing Vessel

Tug

105’

OIL POLLUTION INCIDENTS

ADMISSION OF CONTRAVENTIONS

TOTAL OF 9 VESSELS

TOTAL PENALTIES IMPOSED

PENALTIES PAID (RANDS)

14 14 24 24 21 24

669 985 898 741 438 539 438 539 393 000 635 200

2008-2009YEAR 2009-2010 2010-2011 2011-2012 2012-2013 2013-2014

SHIFTING CURRENTS  |  Maritime Environment Protection Programme



OFFENCEDATEVESSEL

05/04/13

07/04/13

22/04/13

22/04/13

22/04/13

22/04/13

23/04/13

08/05/13

06/06/13

17/07/13

22/07/13

03/11/13

04/11/13

04/11/13

04/11/13

05/11/13

20/11/13

06/12/13

27/12/13

12/01/14

14/01/14

16/01/14

Pollution into the harbour during bunkering

Failure to report an accident

No valid load line certificate on board. The Master was 

not duly certificated as prescribed by the Regulations.

Operating without a valid Local General Safety Certificate.

Operating without a valid Local General Safety Certificate.

Operating without a valid Local General Safety Certificate.

Pollution into the harbour during bunkering.

Operating without a valid Local General Safety Certificate.

Unseaworthy vessel and violation of Marine Police Act

Vessel sailed without adhering to the restrictions 

imposed on the LGSC.

Proceeding to sea without a valid Local General Safety Certificate.

The vessel dropped anchor at Tugela mouth light, 

without obtaining permission from the Authority.

Proceeding to sea without a valid Local General Safety Certificate.

Proceeding to sea without a passenger endorsement 

on skippers licence.

Proceeding to sea without a valid Local General Safety 

Certificate and passenger endorsement.

Operating without a valid Dry Dock Certificate.

Operating without a valid Dry Dock Certificate.

Pollution into the harbour during bunkering.

Operating the vessel without a valid COC and without a valid COF.

Jet oil spilled into the harbour.

Operating in a careless manner.

Proceeding to sea without a valid Local General Safety Certificate.

MFV O'Covelo

Calypso Diver

Crane

Diver 1 DTD1655E

Diver 2 DTD1656E

Diver 3 DTD1657E

MV Princess

One One

Skua

Cape Maclear

MV Bella

MV Cebihan

DTR 89 R (M P Mdletshe)

DTR 89 R (M R Mthethwa)

DTR 89 R (A M Mthembu)

Sweet Waters

Nomad

Crimson Polaris

Small Pleasure Vessel
(A20403E)

Berg

Must Byt 3

Emfulwni

STATUS

Amount Forfeited

Amount Forfeited

Amount Forfeited

Amount Forfeited

Amount Forfeited

Amount Forfeited

Amount Forfeited

Amount Forfeited

Amount Forfeited

Amount Forfeited

Amount Forfeited

Amount Forfeited

Amount Forfeited

Amount Forfeited

Amount Forfeited

Amount Forfeited

Amount Forfeited

Amount Forfeited

Amount Forfeited

Amount Forfeited

Amount Forfeited

Amount Forfeited

AMOUNT

R25 000

R7 500

R15 000

R5 000

R5 000

R5 000

R50 000

R1 000

R 200 000

R5 000

R18 700

R25 000

R1 000

R1 000

R1 000

R500

R2 000

R100 000

R4 000

R50 000

R1 000

R7 500

DETAILS OF ADMISSION OF CONTRAVENTIONS
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MARITIME GOVERNANCE

PROGRAMME
Effective maritime governance includes all the 

systems, instruments, processes and institutions 

by which coastal and ocean areas are managed 

by authorities in association with communities, 

industries, partners, NGOs and other stakeholders 

through national, regional and international laws, 

policies, processes and programmes in order

to improve and sustain the socio-economic 

conditions of all communities and the protection 

of maritime resources. 

The broader maritime sector is the lifeblood 

of South Africa and requires the effective 

implementation of governance frameworks 

and a coherent system to enable greater levels 

of accountability and oversight on the functioning 

as well as the sustainable socio-economic 

development of South Africa.

  

The programme aims at 

strengthening maritime governance 

with a focus on collaborative 

stakeholder participation and 

the sharing of responsibilities 

and actions at national, regional 

and international perspectives 

of governance to ensure effective 

implementation of the South African 

Maritime agenda. 

SHIFTING CURRENTS  |  Maritime Governance Programme
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In June 2013, the government ratified with the 

International Labour Organisation four international 

labour conventions. These are the Labour Inspection 

Convention, 1947 (No.81), the Maritime Labour 

Convention, 2006 (MLC, 2006), the Work in Fishing 

Convention, 2007 (No. 188), and the Domestic 

Workers Convention, 2011 (No. 189).

In 2013, South Africa amended the Merchant 

Shipping (Radio Installation) Regulations, 2002 

to align it to the recent ITU Regulations and 2010 

STCW Convention. Those amendments were signed 

into law on 2 July 2013 under the Merchant Shipping 

(Radio Installation) Regulations, 2013.

South Africa acceded to the 1969 Civil Liability 

Convention (CLC). In 2004, South Africa denounced 

the Convention and acceded to the 1992 CLC Protocol 

as well as the 1992 Protocol to the International 

Oil Pollution Compensation Fund Convention, 

1971 (IOPC Fund Convention). However it had not 

passed legislation to give effect to both Protocols.  

The Bills were presented before Parliament 

and adopted by both the National Assembly 

and National Council of Provinces. 

APPROVAL & RATIFICATION 
OF KEY LEGISL ATION, 
CONVENTION, BILLS,  
PROTOCOLS & SUBSIDIARY 
INSTRUMENTS 

After years of campaigning I am pleased to report 

that the Treasury has provided a tax regime granting 

tax exemption to qualifying shipping companies. 

The new regime commenced on 1 January 2014, 

and includes exemption from income tax, capital 

gains tax, dividends tax and withholding tax on 

interest. Officers and crew of South African flagged 

ships designed for international traffic have been 

wholly exempted from tax regardless of the number 

of days they spend abroad. This was done to avoid 

the potential issues of pay-as-you-earn withholding 

for employers of South African Officers and crew.

Qualifying shipping companies 

are now allowed to use currencies 

other than the rand as their functional 

currency. They will not be subjected 

to tax on currency gains and losses.

TAX RELIEF FOR THE 
MARITIME INDUSTRY

We are optimistic that the new shipping provisions 

in the tax regulations will assist in reviving the 

maritime sector. Our aim is to create the right 

environment and ensure that there are incentives 

in place which would not only encourage owners 

to register their ships in South Africa, but to 

provide an attractive location for businesses 

owning and operating ships. 

SHIP REGISTRY

SAMSA continues to come under pressure 

from stakeholders regarding the promulgation 

of legislation. Some of the legislation was promulgated 

in 2013 and we expect that the pieces of legislation 

and global conventions which are still outstanding 

will be done in the near future. 

OUTSTANDING LEGISLATION
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We aim to be a well-oiled ship. 

Efficient governance and risk management 

sets us sailing in the most efficient direction 

toward our destiny of prosperity. It is critical, 

like high tide needs low tide. We need efficient 

systems and audits to ensure we are sailing 

with the wind, not against it.

S  33° 54’ 06’’   |   E  18° 24’ 00’’

GREEN POINT LIGHTHOUSE
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The entity understands and respects its fiduciary 

role to the Shareholder and is fully committed to 

complying with King III on Corporate Governance, 

the provisions Public Finance Management 

Act 1999, the Transport Agencies General Laws 

Amendment Act of 2008,  the Companies Act

(as enjoined by the SAMSA Act) as well as governance 

and compliance directives from the Department 

of Transport and National Treasury. The SAMSA 

Board supervises the management of the entity’s 

business and affairs. The Board is responsible 

for the strategic direction and success of the entity, 

its values and its governance. 

It provides the leadership necessary to enable 

the entity’s business objectives to be met within 

the framework of the internal controls, while also 

ensuring that the entity’s obligations to the 

Shareholders are met.

SAMSA believes in adopting and adhering to all recognised corporate 

governance practices and benchmarks itself against such practice.

GOVERNANCE & RISK

OVERVIEW

112’
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SAMSA is a schedule 3A public entity in terms of the Public Finance 

Management Act of 1999, and fully state-owned. It reports to the Honourable 

Minister Dipuo Peters of the Department of Transport as 

a Shareholder Minister.

GOVERNANCE

STRUCTURE

MARITIME INDUSTRY
COMMITTEE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Mr. F. Jacobs (Chairperson)

Dr. M. Hendricks

REMUNERATION
COMMITTEE

Ms. N. Syms (Chairperson)

Adv. B.M. Madumise

Dr. M. Hendricks

AUDIT & RISK
COMMITTEE

Mr. B. Naidoo (Chairperson)

Mr. R. Mkhwanazi

Ms. N. Syms

* As at 31 March 2014

Adv. B.M. Madumise (Acting Chairperson)

Ms. N. Syms (Deputy Chairperson)

Mr. R. Mkhwanazi

Mr. F. Jacobs

Mr. B Naidoo

Dr. M. Hendricks

Mr. T. Mokhele (CEO)

HIGH & LOW TIDE  |  Governance Structure



SAMSA Board, including the CEO, is appointed 

by the Minister of Transport in terms of the SAMSA 

Act of 1998 as amended. The board has delegated 

certain of its functions to subcommittees. 

The following committees were established: 

1.  Audit & Risk Committee, 

2. Remuneration & Human           

 Resources Committee and

3. Maritime Industry Committee.  

Following each Committee meeting, the board 

receives a report from that Committee on its 

deliberations, conclusions and recommendations. 

Each Committee operates in accordance with 

a written Charter approved by the board. The board 

appoints the members and the Chairperson(s) 

of each Committee. The role, Charter, and membership 

of each Committee are reviewed each year.

On the 31st March 2014, the Board comprised 

of six independent non-executive directors and 

one executive director (CEO). In line with best 

practices in corporate governance (King III), 

the duties of the executive directors are separate 

from those of the non-executive directors. 

BOARD & 
BOARD SUBCOMMITTEES
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AUDIT & RISK COMMITTEE

REPORT

115’

HIGH & LOW TIDE  |  Audit & Risk Committee

We are pleased to present our report 

for the financial year ended 31 March 

2013, as required by section 27.1.7 

and 27.1.10 of the Treasury Regulations.

AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE RESPONSIBILITY

The audit and risk committee has adopted the same 

terms of reference as its audit and risk committee 

charter, and has regulated its affairs in compliance 

with this charter. It has discharged all its responsibilities 

as contained therein. A summary of our role includes 

the following:

- oversee integrated reporting;

- ensure that a combined assurance model 

 is applied to provide a coordinated approach 

 to all audit activities;

- review the expertise, resources and experience  

 of the entity’s finance function, and disclose 

 the results of the review in the integrated report;

- is responsible for overseeing of internal audit;

- is an integral component in overseeing 

 of the risk management process;

- is responsible for overseeing the external 

 audit process.

AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE MEMBERS
AND ATTENDANCE:

The audit and risk committee consists of the 

members listed hereunder following their appointment 

in January 2014. One meeting was held during 

the remaining period of the financial year.

The members are as follow:

AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE MEMBERS
Name of Member  

Mr B Naidoo   

Mr R Mkhwanazi  

Ms N Syms  

OTHER INVITEES TO THE AUDIT AND RISK 
COMMITTEE

The chief executive officer, chief financial officer 

and representatives from internal and external 

auditors have standing invitations. Other assurance 

providers, professional advisors and board 

members may be in attendance at the committee 

meetings by invitation, but only audit and risk 

committee members have voting rights.
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THE EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERNAL CONTROL

The system of internal control is designed to 

provide cost effective and reasonable assurance 

that assets are safeguarded and that liabilities 

and working capital are effectively managed. In line 

with the PFMA and the King III Report on Corporate 

Governance requirements, Internal Audit provides 

the audit and risk committee and management 

with the assurance that the internal controls 

are appropriate and effective. This is achieved 

by means of the risk management process, 

as well as the identification of corrective actions 

and suggested enhancements to the control 

process. From various reports submitted by the 

internal and external auditors, including the audit 

report of the external auditors on the financial 

statements, as well as the report on predetermined 

objectives, except for the non-compliance issues 

identified and are in the process of being addressed 

by management to ensure that SAMSA in future 

does comply with all sections applicable in

the Public Finance Management Act read together 

with the Treasury Regulations and no deficiencies 

in internal which were considered sufficiently 

significant for inclusion in this report.

INTERNAL AUDIT

The audit and risk committee fulfils an oversight 

role regarding the Public Entity’s internal audit 

function. It is responsible for ensuring that the 

internal audit function is independent and has 

the necessary resources, standing and authority 

within the organisation to enable it to discharge 

its duties. Furthermore, the audit and risk committee 

oversees cooperation between the internal and 

external auditors, and serves as a link between 

the board of directors and these functions. 

During the period that the audit and risk committee 

was appointed and sat, it did not make a conclusion 

as to the effectiveness of the internal audit 

function and whether it has addressed any risks 

pertinent to SAMSA during the year under review.

EVALUATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
AND INFORMATION ON PREDETERMINED 
OBJECTIVES

The audit and risk committee has:

-  reviewed and discussed the audited financial  

 statements to be included in the annual report,  

 with the Auditor-General and the Accounting Authority,

- reviewed the Auditor-General’s management report,

- reviewed any changes in accounting policies 

 and practices, and

- reviewed the information on predetermined  

 objectives to be included in the annual report, and

- reviewed any significant adjustments resulting  

 from the audit.

The audit and risk committee furthermore concurs 

with the opinions of the Auditor-General of South 

Africa with respect to the annual financial statements. 

The financial statements are accepted and should 

be read together with the report of the Auditor-General 

of South Africa.

MR BRETT NAIDOO

Chairperson of the Audit and Risk Committee
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BOARD AND COMMITTEE

MEETINGS

05/04/2013

10/04/2013

26/02/2014

26/03/2014

BOARD

12/05/2014

AUDIT & RISK
COMMITTEE

17/03/2014

REMCO

28/03/2014

MARITIME INDUSTRY 
COMMITTEE 

05/12/2013

AGM

In line with best practice in corporate governance 

(King III), the board and its subcommittees should 

meet at least once a quarter. Details of the Board 

and subcommittee meetings for the year under 

review can be seen in the table above.

NB: From April 2013 up to

December 2013 the SAMSA 

Board was not quorated due 

to resignations of two Board 

members, Mr. C. Ngidi and 

Prof. L. Feris. The Shareholder 

appointed board members 

on the 1st January 2014.

HIGH & LOW TIDE  |  Board & Committee Meetings
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Mr. Comfort Ngidi

Ms. Nadeema Syms

Mr. John Martin 

Mr. Ronny Mkhwanazi 

Prof. Loretta Feris

Cdr. Tsietsi Mokhele

Ms. Hamida Fakira

Adv. B. Madumise

Mr. F. Jacobs

Mr. B. Naidoo

Dr. M. Hendricks

Mr. L. Fikizolo

MEMBER 05/04/2013 10/04/2013 26/02/2014 26/03/2014
AGM
03/12/2013

TOTAL ATTENDANCE

N/A Not yet appointed as Board Member

Absent with apology

Not invited

Absent

Resigned

Term ended

N/A N/A N/A

N/A N/A N/A

N/A N/A N/A

N/A N/A N/A

N/A N/A N/A N/A

2

4

1

3

2

5

1

2

2

1

0

0

AUDIT & RISK COMMIT TEE

Mr. B. Naidoo

Mr. R. Mkhwanazi

Ms. N. Syms

Cdr. T. Mokhele 

REMUNERATION COMMIT TEE (REMCO)

MEMBER 05/04/2013 TOTAL 
ATTENDANCE

1

1

1

1

Ms. N. Syms

Adv. B. Madumise

Dr. M. Hendricks

Cdr. T. Mokhele

MEMBER 05/04/2013 TOTAL 
ATTENDANCE

1

1

0

1

MARITIME INDUSTRY COMMIT TEE

Mr. F. Jacobs

Dr. M. Hendricks

Cdr. T. Mokhele

Mr. L. Fikizolo

MEMBER 05/04/2013 TOTAL 
ATTENDANCE

1

1

1

0
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ENTERPRISE RISK MANAGEMENT

REPORT
SAMSA began its journey towards 

implementing a risk management 

plan in line with best practice 

methodologies incorporating 

ISO 3001, COSO methodology 

and National Treasury guidelines. 

This approach to risk management has enabled 

the organisation to adopt a risk management 

strategy that is fit-for-purpose adapted to SAMSA’s 

unique environment as a maritime regulator.

As the organisation is in the early stages of its 

implementation journey, setting risk parameters 

and conducting initial audits across the Centres, 

the following risk profile depicts an organisation 

that is making progress as it moves up its risk 

maturity curve. The organisation is currently 

operating outside the set risk tolerance. However 

this is an improvement from the previous financial 

year where there was little systematic assessment 

of risk.

 

For the upcoming financial year we have identified 

the following risk management activities:

•  Quarterly review of centre risks and monitoring 

 of actions items followed by adjustments 

 to the risk profile;  

•  Combined assurance mapping annually 

 to facilitate audit planning in conjunction 

 with the external and internal auditors;

• Quarterly reporting per centre to the Audit 

 and Risk Committees; 

• Road-shows on risk framework and policies 

 to the centres management and personnel;

• Electronic Risk Management system 

 implementation and training for all staff;

• Compliance checklist relevant to risk universe; 

• Review of internal controls and contingency  

 plans for all the high risk areas;

• Conduct risk and control self-assessment  

 workshops with management and personnel.
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This is our ocean, these are our seas. 

This is our passion, the deep blue is our 

tomorrow. Whatever we do, we fiercely protect 

our potential, destiny and our natural heritage. 

Over our oceanic environment we stand mighty 

and steadfast, guardians of what should 

last forever. And like the best coastguard, 

we will never drop our watch. 

S  34°11’12’’  |  E  22°09’30’’

CAPE ST.  BL AIZE LIGHTHOUSE

KEEPING THE TIDES TURNING  |  SAMSA Annual Report

CFO’s Report

Auditor-General Report 

on the Financial Statements

Annual Financial Statements

Budget Variances

Aditor-General Report 

on the Maritime Fund

Maritime Fund
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2013

R ’000

%

change

Revenue – exchange transactions

Revenue – non-exchange transactions

Expenditure

Deficit

Interest Income

Total Assets

Fixed Assets

Total Liabilities 

Cash & cash equivalents

Cash from operating activities

42 376

263 424

{448 600)

(134 647)

3 944

128 155

52 114

94 302

30 509

(119 353)

50 216

301 901

(423 274}

(61 640)

9 477

251 055

53 669

82 555

164 687

(26 508)

-16%

-13%

6%

118%

-58%

-49%

-3%

14%

-81%

-350%

2014

R ’000

The Authority’s financial performance goals, as set out in its strategic plan, 

are underpinned by its strategic focus of delivering its maritime mandates  

at the lowest sustainable cost. This report is intended to provide additional 

insight into the financial performance and position of the Authority. The 

report needs to be read in conjunction with the annual financial statements 

of the Authority.

The table below shows only a few set of selected of figures and full financial information is disclosed 

in the annual financial statements:

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER’S

REPORT

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

The organisation’s deficit increased to – R134.6 million (2012/13: 61.6 million) which has resulted in a significant decrease 

in the cash reserves of the organisation. The key explanations of the financial performance of the Authority have 

been covered in some detail in the Chapter 6 of the annual report.

  

06˚CHAPTER 



125’

FINANCIAL POSITION

The Authority’s Financial Position has declined in the current year, primarily as a result of the significant deficits 

incurred in the Authority. This is reflected in a 49% decline in total assets and a decrease in cash and cash 

equivalents to R30.5 million (2012/13: R164.7 million). The decrease in total assets was largely due to the decline 

in cash and cash equivalents which were used to finance deficits during the financial year.  The decrease in cash 

and cash equivalents resulted in a significant drop in interest income to R3.9 million (2013/14: 9.5 million). 

Accumulated surplus declined to R33.9 million from R168.5 million in the prior year.

Non-current assets decreased to 52.1 million from R53.7 million mainly due to the high depreciation amount 

on the SA Agulhas which is being depreciated over a 5-year period. Employee benefit obligation arising from 

the post medical retirement fund decreased to R15.5 million (2012:13: 17.6 million) as a result of favourable change 

in actuarial assumptions.

KEY INTERNAL INITIATIVES

A number of initiatives are being taken by the board and management to ensure that the organisation returns 

to a sound financial footing.  The Authority’s largest spend is on staff compensation and it is a cost which goes 

up each and every financial year, and the same applies to other operational expenditure.  The Authority has 

approached the Department of Transport for an annual tariff review to cushion the organisation against rising 

business operating costs.  The tariff application for the year beginning 1 April 2014 is still being processed 

which will impact the organisation negatively as the tariff increase cannot be applied retrospectively when 

it is finally approved.

To ensure the sustainability of the organisation the Authority will maintain a diversified funding mix, with a solid 

block of core financing and programme funding to cover key services. This approach will ensure that funding 

of projects will be done only through funding obtained from fund raising activities of the organisation. Projects

will therefore be funded only to the extent to which project funding is available and the organisation’s core revenue 

will not be used.  The SA Agulhas and the cadetship projects, which contributed significantly to the deficits 

will soon no longer be funded by SAMSA. 

The Authority has also begun to implement a revenue enhancement strategy which seeks to address 

the misalignment between the increasing cost of service provision with the charges for current services 

and identifying new potential sources of alternative revenue from SAMSA operations. 

The implementation of cost containment measures including initiatives which are over and above the ones 

in the National Treasury Regulation 1 of 2013/14 has already begun.  The exercise has gone further to the 

implementation of cost optimisation initiatives which include the lean operations and the efficient utilisation 

of organisational resources. 
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KEY FOCUS

The Authority’s focus will continue to be on ensuring that it delivers its maritime mandates at the lowest sustainable 

cost.  In doing so we will move to ensure that going forward, the Authority generates modest surpluses so that 

a reserve can be maintained for unexpected expenses, general contingency planning and infrastructure development.

COMPLIANCE WITH GRAP STANDARDS

Revenue from SAMSA Levies and Contributions has been reclassified under non-exchange transactions 

to comply with GRAP 23. As a result of this, prior year figures have been adjusted to reflect this change. 

CONCLUSION

As we close this financial year, the board and management have put the decline of the Authority’s financial 

resources high on the agenda. They are therefore taking bold measures to ensure that the situation is redressed 

through implementation of corrective measures. 

TUDOR HUNGWE

Acting Chief Financial Officer
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REPORT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL ON
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REPORT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL TO PARLIAMENT 
ON SOUTH AFRICAN MARITIME SAFET Y AUTHORIT Y
REPORT ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1.    INTRODUCTION

 I have audited the financial statements of the South African Maritime Safety Authority set out on pages 140 

 to 183 which comprise  the  statement of financial position as at 31 March 2014, the  statement of financial 

 performance, statement of changes in net assets and the cash flow statements and statement of comparison

 of budget information with actual information for the year then ended, and the notes, comprising a summary 

 of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. 

2.   THE ACCOUNTING’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

 The accounting authority is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements 

 in accordance with South African Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting Practice (SA Standards 

 of GRAP) and the requirements of the Public Finance Management Act of South Africa,1999 (Act No.1 of 1999) 

 (PFMA), and for such internal control as the accounting authority determines is necessary to enable 

 the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

3.   AUDITOR-GENERAL’S RESPONSIBILITY

 My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on my audit. I conducted 

 my audit in accordance with the Public Audit Act of South Africa, 2004 (Act No. 25 of 2004) (PAA), 

 the General Notice issued in terms thereof and International Standards on Auditing. Those standards require 

 that I comply with ethical requirements, and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 

 whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

4.   An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures 

 in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including 

 the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud 

 or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s 

 preparation and fair presentation of the  financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are 

 appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness 

 of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies 

 used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 

 presentation of the financial statements. 

5.   I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 

 for my audit opinion. 

6.   OPINION

 In my opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the South  

 African Maritime Safety Authority as at 31 March 2014 and its financial performance and cash flows for the year  

 then ended, in accordance with SA Standards of GRAP and the requirements of the PFMA. 
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7.   EMPHASIS OF MATTER

 I draw attention to the matters below. My opinion is not modified in respect of these matters.

8. GOING CONCERN

 With reference to note 30 to the financial statements, the entity incurred deficits during the course 

 of the financial year resulting in a reduction in its cash reserves. 

9.   RESTATEMENT OF CORRESPONDING FIGURES

 As disclosed in note 2 to the financial statements, SAMSA levies and contributions have been re-categorised  

 as non-exchange revenue and the corresponding figures for 2013 financial year have been restated as a result  

 of an error discovered during 2014 in the financial statements of South African Maritime safety Authority at, 

 and for the year ended, 31 March 2013.

10. As disclosed in note 17 to the financial statements additional cost line items have been added for SA Agulhus 

 expenses and scholarship programmes in the current year affecting the comparative figures

11. MATERIAL UNDER-SPENDING OF THE BUDGET 

 As disclosed in Appendix 1 to the annual financial statements the entity materially underspent on the budget 

 for capital expenditure to the amount of R10,787,000.  The main reason for the under spending was 

 the decision to delay the purchase of capital expenditure due to the financial situation of the organisation.  

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS
12.    In accordance with the PAA and the General Notice issued in terms thereof, I report the following findings 

 on the reported performance information against predetermined objectives for selected programmes

 presented in the annual performance report, non-compliance with legislation as well as internal control. 

 The objective of my tests was to identify reportable findings as described under each subheading but not 

 to gather evidence to express assurance on these matters. Accordingly, I do not express an opinion or

 conclusion on these matters.

13.   PREDETERMINED OBJECTIVES

 I performed procedures to obtain evidence about the usefulness and reliability of the reported performance  

 information for the following selected programmes presented in the annual performance report of the entity  

 for the year ended 31 March 2014:

 - Maritime Sector Development on pages 65 to 66

 - Maritime Safety on pages 68 to 70

 - Maritime Environmental Protection on page 71

 - Maritime Governance on page 72

 - Maritime Security on page 70

14. I evaluated the reported performance information against the overall criteria of usefulness and reliability. 

15. I evaluated the usefulness of the reported performance information to determine whether it was presented 

 in accordance with the National Treasury’s annual reporting principles and whether the reported performance

  was consistent with the planned programmes. I further performed tests to determine whether indicators and 

 targets were well defined, verifiable, specific, measurable, time bound and relevant, as required by the National

  Treasury’s Framework for managing programme performance information (FMPPI).
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16. I assessed the reliability of the reported performance information to determine whether it was valid, accurate  

 and complete.

17. The material findings in respect of the selected programmes are as follows:

USEFULNESS OF REPORTED PERFORMANCE INFORMATION

18. MARITIME GOVERNANCE

 The FMPPI requires the following:

 - Performance targets must be specific in clearly identifying the nature and required level of performance. 

  The planned target was not specific. This is 100% of the targets

 - Performance targets must be measurable. We could not measure the required performance 

  for the planned target 

 - The period or deadline for the target must be specified. The planned target was not time bound

 - Performance must be well defined by having clear data definitions so that data can be collected consistently  

  and is easy to understand and use. The planned target was not well defined

 - This is because there was inadequate review performed on the annual performance plan

19. MARITIME SECURITY

 The FMPPI requires the following:

 - Performance targets must be specific in clearly identifying the nature and required level of performance.  

  A total of 67% of the targets were not specific

 - Performance targets must be measurable. We could not measure the required performance for 67% 

  of the planned targets

 - The period or deadline for the target must be specified. A total of 33% of the targets were not time bound

 - This is because there was inadequate review performed on the annual performance plan

RELIABILITY OF REPORTED PERFORMANCE INFORMATION

20. MARITIME SECTOR DEVELOPMENT 

 The FMPPI requires auditees to have appropriate systems to collect, collate, verify and store performance 

 information to ensure valid, accurate and complete reporting of actual achievements against planned 

 objectives, indicators and targets. Significantly important targets were not reliable when compared 

 to the source information and evidence provided. This was due to the fact that the entity could not provide 

 sufficient appropriate evidence in support of the reported performance information.

21. MARITIME SAFETY, MARITIME GOVERNANCE AND MARITIME SECURITY

 The FMPPI requires auditees to have appropriate systems to collect, collate, verify and store performance 

 information to ensure valid and accurate reporting of actual achievements against planned objectives, 

 indicators and targets. The reported performance information was not valid, accurate and complete when 

 compared to the evidence provided. This was due to the fact that there were inadequate reviews 

 by the responsible executive on the evidence submitted against the reported targets.

22. ADDITIONAL MATTER

 I draw attention to the following matter:
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23. ACHIEVEMENT OF PLANNED TARGETS

 Refer to the annual performance report on page 64 to 72 for information on the achievement of the planned  

 targets for the year. This information should be considered in the context of the material findings 

 on the usefulness and reliability of the reported performance information for the selected programmes  

 reported in paragraphs 18 to 21 of this report.

24. COMPLIANCE WITH LEGISLATION

 I performed procedures to obtain evidence that the entity had complied with applicable legislation regarding  

 financial matters, financial management and other related matters. My findings on material non-compliance  

 with specific matters in key legislation, as set out in the General Notice issued in terms of the PAA, 

 are as follows:

INTERNAL AUDIT

25. The internal audit function was not under the control and direction of the audit committee as required 

 by section 51(1)(a)(ii) of the Public Finance Management Act.

26. The purpose, authority and responsibility of the internal audit function were not formally defined in an audit  

 charter, as required by Treasury Regulation 27.2.5.

27. The internal audit function did not evaluate the effectiveness and efficiency of controls / give recommendations  

 for their enhancement and improvement, as required by Treasury Regulation 27.2.10.

28. The internal audit function did not submit reports, detailing the performance against the annual internal audit  

 plan, to the audit committee, as required by Treasury Regulation 27.2.7(d).

29. The internal audit function did not evaluate the compliance with laws and regulations, as required 

 by Treasury Regulation 27.2.10(e)

30. AUDIT COMMITTEE

 An audit committee was not in place for the first 11 months of the financial year as required 

 by section 51(1) (a) (ii) of the Public Finance Management Act and Treasury Regulation 27.1.1. Members were only

 appointed one month before year-end and did not meet in the current year under review.

31. ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, PERFORMANCE AND ANNUAL REPORTS

 The accounting authority did not submit the financial statements for auditing within two months after the end  

 of financial year, as required by section 55(1) (c) (i) of the Public Finance Management Act.

32. PROCUREMENT AND CONTRACT MANAGEMENT

 Contracts were extended or modified without the approval of a properly delegated official as required 

 by Treasury Regulation 8.2. 

33. EXPENDITURE MANAGEMENT

 The accounting authority did not take effective and appropriate steps to prevent irregular expenditure and 

 fruitless expenditure, as per the requirements of section 51 (b)(ii) of the PFMA.  
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34. ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND ANNUAL REPORT

 The financial statements submitted for auditing were not prepared in accordance with the prescribed financial 

 reporting framework as required by section 55(1) (b) of the Public Finance Management Act. The financial 

 statements were not prepared in line with SA standards of GRAP, as indicated by material misstatements that 

 were identified and furthermore sufficient appropriate evidence to support the reported performance 

 in the annual performance report was not provided.

35. INTERNAL CONTROL

 I considered internal control relevant to my audit of the financial statements, annual performance report and  

 compliance with legislation. The matters reported below are limited to the significant internal control deficiencies  

 that resulted in the basis for the findings on the annual performance report and findings on non-compliance  

 with legislation included in this report.

36. LEADERSHIP

 There was a slow response by executive authority in confirming the appointment of the board. 

 This delayed the appointment of the audit committee which resulted in them not performing effective

  oversight pertaining to financial and performance reporting, compliance and related internal controls.

37. The accounting authority did not approve policies and procedures to enable and support understanding and 

 execution of internal control objectives, processes, and responsibilities, furthermore the approved delegations

  of authority were outdated.

38. FINANCIAL AND PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT

 The accounting authority did not always prepare, accurate and complete financial and performance reports  

 that are supported and evidenced by reliable information.

39. GOVERNANCE

 The delay in the appointment of the audit committee prevented them from performing effective oversight 

 over the internal audit function.  

OTHER REPORTS

40. INVESTIGATIONS

 An investigation pertaining to a fraudulent request for change of banking details is being conducted.

Auditor-General

Pretoria

6 August 2014

Auditor General
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GENERAL INFORMATION

NATURE OF BUSINESS AND PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES:

SAMSA was established in terms of the South 

African Maritime Safety Authority Act, 1998 (Act No. 

5 of 1998), and has the objectives to ensure safety 

of life and property at sea, to prevent

and combat pollution of the marine environment 

and to promote the Republic's maritime interests, in 

accordance with Standards of Generally 

Recognised Accounting Practice and in the manner 

required by the Public Finance Management Act, 

1999 (Act No.1 of 1999) (PFMA) and the South African 

Maritime Safety Authority Act, 1998 - Act No. 5 of 

1998 (SAMSA Act).
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ACCOUNTING AUTHORIT Y’S RESPONSIBILIT Y

& APPROVAL
The Accounting Authority is required by the Public Finance Management Act (Act 1 of 1999), to maintain 

adequate accounting records and is responsible for the content and integrity of the financial statements 

and related financial information included in this report. It is the responsibility of the Accounting Authority 

to ensure that the annual financial statements fairly present the state of affairs of the entity as at the end 

of the financial year and the results of its operations and cash flows for the period then ended. The external 

auditors are engaged to express an independent opinion on the annual financial statements and were given 

unrestricted access to all financial records and related data.

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting 

Practice (GRAP) including any interpretations, guidelines and directives issued by the Accounting Standards Board.

The annual financial statements are based upon appropriate accounting policies consistently applied 

and supported by reasonable and prudent judgements and estimates.

The Accounting Authority  acknowledges that it is ultimately responsible for the system of internal financial 

control established by the entity and place considerable importance on maintaining a strong control environment. 

To enable the Accounting Authority to meet these responsibilities, the Accounting Authority sets standards 

for internal control aimed at reducing the risk of error or deficit in a cost effective manner. The standards include 

the proper delegation of responsibilities within a clearly defined framework, effective accounting procedures 

and adequate segregation of duties to ensure an acceptable level of risk. These controls are monitored throughout 

the entity and all employees are required to maintain the highest ethical standards in ensuring the entity’s 

business is conducted in a manner that in all reasonable circumstances is above reproach. The focus of risk 

management in the entity is on identifying, assessing, managing and monitoring all known forms of risk across 

the entity. While operating risk cannot be fully eliminated, the entity endeavours to minimise it by ensuring that 

appropriate infrastructure, controls, systems and ethical behaviour are applied and managed within predetermined 

procedures and constraints.
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The Accounting Authority is of the opinion, based on the information and explanations given by management, 

that the system of internal control provides reasonable assurance that the financial records may be relied 

on for the preparation of the financial statements. However, any system of internal financial control can provide 

only reasonable, and not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or deficit.

The Accounting Authority has reviewed the entity’s cash flow forecast for the year to 31 March 2015 and, 

in the light of this review and the current financial position, it is satisfied that the entity had or has access 

to adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future.

The annual financial statements are prepared on the basis that the entity is a going concern and that the South 

African Maritime Safety Authority (SAMSA) has neither the intention nor the need to liquidate or curtail materially 

the scale of the entity

Although the Accounting Authority is primarily responsible for the financial affairs of the entity, they are supported 

by the entity's external auditors.

The annual financial statements set out on pages 140 to 183, which have been prepared on the going concern basis, 

were approved by the Accounting Authority on 31 July 2014 and were signed on its behalf by:

Advocate B. MADUMISE

Acting Board Chairperson

Advocate B. MADUMISE

Acting Board Chairperson
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ACCOUNTING 

AUTHORITY’S REPORT
The Accounting Authority submits this report which forms part of its audited financial statements 

for the year ended 31 March 2014.

1.    INCORPORATION

SAMSA was incorporated under Act No 5 of 1998.

2.   REVIEW OF ACTIVITIES

Main business and operations

The South African Maritime Safety Authority (SAMSA) under the Ministry of Transport, has the primary role 

of providing the following services: 

SAMSA has been entrusted with the following core mandates:

- To ensure safety of life and property at sea

- To prevent and combat pollution from ships in the marine environment

- To promote South Africa's maritime interests

 

It has recently also been charged with the responsibility of executing the following mandates:

Administration of the Merchant Shipping (National Small Vessel Safety) Regulations, 2007, as amended (the 

Regulations). The Regulations extends SAMSA's core mandate to include inland waterways (only waterways 

accessible to the public) within the Republic. That is to ensure boating safety on our waters.

Implementing and executing the Long-Range Identification and Tracking (LRIT) of ships along the South 

African coastline. The long-range vessel monitoring system assists in securing South Africa's coastal waters 

in the midst of the rising lawlessness in the high seas with particular reference to the worrying scourge of 

pirate attacks along the east coast of Africa.

The Authority is also the custodian of the Maritime Fund.

Net deficit of the entity is R 134 647 million ( 2013: deficit R 61 640 million).



3.   GOING CONCERN

The annual financial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting policies applicable 

to a going concern. This basis presumes that funds will be available to finance future operations 

and that the realisation of assets and settlement of liabilities, contingent obligations and commitments 

will occur in the ordinary course of business.

We draw attention to the fact that at 31 March 2014, the entity's deficits for the financial year were 

R134 647 million (2012/13: R61 640 million)

4.   ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the prescribed Standards of Generally

Recognised Accounting Practices (GRAP) issued by the Accounting Standards Board as the prescribed 

framework by National Treasury.

5.   ACCOUNTING AUTHORITY

The Accounting Authority of the entity during the year and to the date of this report is as follows:

 Mr. J Martin - Board Member           

 Professor L Feris - Board Member      

 Ms. N Syms - Deputy Board Chairperson 

 Cdr. T Mokhele - Chief Executive Officer 

 Mr. R Mkhwanazi - Board Member          

 Adv. B Madumise - Board Acting Chairperson 

 Mr. B Naidoo - Board Member 

 Mr. F A Jacobs - Board Member 

 Dr. M Hendriks - Board Member 

6.   SECRETARY

 The company secretary of  South African Maritime Safety Authority (SAMSA) is Mr. Moyahabo V. Raphadu.

7. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

 General

 The Accounting Authority is committed to business integrity, transparency and professionalism 

 in all its activities. As part of this commitment, the Accounting Authority supports the highest standards 

 of corporate governance and the ongoing development of best practice.

 The Authority confirms and acknowledges its responsibility to total compliance with the Code of Corporate  

 Practices and Conduct ("the Code") laid out in the King Report on Corporate Governance for South Africa. 

 The Accounting Authority  discusses  the  responsibilities  of  management  in  this  respect, at Board  

 meetings  and  monitor  the Authority's compliance with the code.
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Resigned 23 April 2013

Term ends 31 July 2014

Reappointed 1 April 2013

Term ends 31 July 2014
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 Board of directors

 The Board:

 -  Retains full control over the Authority, its plans and strategy;

 -  Acknowledges  its  responsibilities  as  to  strategy,  compliance  with  internal  policies, external laws 

 and regulations, effective risk management and performance measurement, transparency and effective  

 communication both internally and externally by the Authority;

 -  Is of a unitary structure comprising:

 - Non-executive directors, all of whom are independent directors as defined in the Code; and

 - Executive directors.

 Chairperson and chief executive

 The Chairperson is a non-executive and independent director (as defined by the Code).

 The roles of Chairperson and Chief Executive are separate, with responsibilities divided between them, 

 so that no individual has unfettered powers of discretion.

 Audit and risk committee

 The audit committee is chaired by Mr. Brett Naidoo and is comprised of two other non-executive directors,

 Mr. Ronny Mkhwanazi and Ms. Nadeema Syms. Mr Schaafsma resigned from the Audit Committee 

 on 25 February 2013 and Ms. Nadeema Syms had been acting in that position.

 Internal audit

  SAMSA's internal audit function was outsourced to SAB & T Business Innovations Group on a three-year  

 contract which has now expired. New internal auditors, Sizwe Ntsaluba Gobodo, were appointed as new 

 internal auditors after year-end.

8.   CONTROLLING ENTITY

 The Authority reports to the Department of Transport (DOT).

9. BANKERS

 The Authority's bankers which are approved by National Treasury are ABSA and First National Bank (FNB).

10.  AUDITORS

 Auditor-General South Africa will continue in office for the next financial period in accordance with the Public

 Finance Management Act (Act 1 of 1999 as amended by Act 29 of 1999).
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 

AS AT 31 MARCH 2014
Note(s) 2014

R ’000

2013

R ’000

Assets

Current Assets

Trade and other receivables

Prepayments

Cash and cash equivalents

Non-Current Assets

Property, plant and equipment

Intangible assets

Total Assets

Liabilities

Current Liabilities

Trade and other payables

Employee benefit obligation

Unspent conditional receipts

Provisions

Non-Current Liabilities

Employee benefit obligation

Provisions

Total Liabilities

Net Assets

Net Assets

Accumulated surplus

12

22

13

7

8

14

11

25

20

11

20

45 132

400

30 509

76 041

46 269

5 845

52 114

128 155

54 381

645

-

18 113

73 139

15 459

5 704

21 163

94 302

33 853

33 853

31 593

1106

164 687

197 386

46 035

7 634

53 669

251 055

43 010

629

5 379

15 865

64 883

17 672

-

17 672

82 555

168 500

168 500
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

AS AT 31 MARCH 2014
Note(s) 2014

R ’000

2013

R ’000

Revenue - exchange transactions

Revenue - non exchange transactions

Other operating expenses

Employee Costs

Depreciation and Amortisation

Operating deficit

Interest Income

Fair value adjustments

Other income

Deficit for the year

2

2

4

3

17

5

6

27

42 376

263 424

(304 158)

(128 616)

(15 825)

(142 799)

3944

49

4159

(134 647)

50 216

301 901

(306 486)

(105 957)

(10 831)

(71 157)

9477

40

-

(61 640)

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

AS AT 31 MARCH 2014
Accumulated

surplus

R ’000

Total Net

Assets

R ’000

Balance at 01 April 2012

Deficit for the year

Total changes

Balance at 01 April 2013

Changes in net assets

Deficit for the year

Total changes

Balance at 31 March 2014

230 140

(61 640)

(61 640)

168 500

(134 647)

(134 647)

33 853

230 140

(61 640)

(61 640)

 168 500

(134 647)

(134 647)

33 853
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT

AS AT 31 MARCH 2014
Note(s) 2014

R ’000

2013

R ’000

Cash flows from operating activities

Receipts

Revenue

Interest income

Payments

Payments

Net cash flows from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment 

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment

Purchase of other intangible assets

Net cash flows from investing activities

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

15

7

7

8

13

292 049

3 944

(415 346)

(119 353)

(13 867)

-

(958)

(14 825)

(134 178)

164 687

30 509

340 562

9 477

(376 547)

(26 508)

(39 154)

199

-

(39 315)

(65 823)

230 510

164 687
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STATEMENT OF COMPARISON OF BUDGET AND ACTUAL AMOUNTS

AS AT 31 MARCH 2014
Budget on Accrual Basis

Approved 

budget

R ’000

Adjustments

R ’000

Final Budget

R ’000

Actual amounts on 

comparable basis

R ’000

Difference between 

final budget and actual

R ’000

Ref:

Statement of Financial Performance

Revenue-Exchange Transactions

Direct User Charges

Discount received

Decrease in Provisions

SA Agulhas Charter Fees

Government Service Fees

Interest received - investment

Total revenue from exchange 

transactions

Revenue from non

-exchange transactions

Taxation revenue

SAMSA Levies

Contributions

Total revenue from non

-exchange transactions

Total revenue

Expenditure

Compensation

Loss - fraudulent 

transaction

Depreciation and 

amortisation

Debt impairment

Bouquets & wreaths

Repairs and maintenance

Bank charges

Computer Expenses

Licences

Lease charges

Insurance

Legal costs

22 943

-

-

67 150

12 901

6 400

109 394

229 372

56 000

285 372

394 766

(15 2811)

-

-

-

(203)

(3 763)

(159)

(2 140)

(3 773)

(1 112)

(2 020)

(1 739)

22 943

-

-

67 150

12 901

6 400

109 394

229 372

56 000

285 372

394 766

(152 811)

–

-

–

(203)

(3 763)

(159)

(2 140)

(3 773)

(1 112)

(2 020)

(1 739)

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

20 174

5

4 154

9 302

12  901

3 944

50 480

231  781

31 643

263 424

313 904

(128 616)

(224)

(15 825)

(3 000)

(42)

(4 015)

(531)

(3 830)

(2 733)

(3 610)

(1 600)

(1 128)

(2 769)

5

4 154

(57848)

-

(2 456)

(58 914)

2 409

(24 357)

(21 948)

(80 862)

24 195

(224)

(15 825)

(3 000)

161

(252)

(372)

(1 690)

1 040

(2 498)

420

611

34

34

34

34

34

34

34

34

34

34

34

34

34

34

34

34

34

34

34
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STATEMENT OF COMPARISON OF BUDGET AND ACTUAL AMOUNTS

AS AT 31 MARCH 2014
Budget on Accrual Basis

Approved 

budget

R ’000

Adjustments

R ’000

Final Budget

R ’000

Actual amounts on 

comparable basis

R ’000

Difference between 

final budget and actual

R ’000

Ref:

Staff Recruitment

Postage

Telephone & Fax

SA Agulhas Expenses

Rent and Utilities

Implementation Costs

Awareness Programmes 

& Advertising

Audit Fees

Conferences

Consulting Fees

Contingency Fees

Donations/CSI Projects

(1 680)

(1 591)

(5 585)

(67 150)

(18 892)

(12 350)

(14 612)

(2 968)

(15 653)

(13 991)

(2 630)

(4 019)

(1 680)

(1 591)

(5 585)

(67 150)

(18 892)

(12 350)

(14 612)

(2 968)

(15 653)

(13 991)

(2 630)

(4 019)

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

(1481)

(698)

(6 725)

(73 605)

(24 726)

(13 432)

(14 078)

(2 815)

(17 796)

(15 398)

(543)

(2 545)

199

893

(1 140)

(6 455)

(5 834)

(1 082)

534

153

(2 143)

(1 407)

2 087

1 474

34

34

34

34

34

34

34

34

34

34

34

34

Office Security

Printing & Stationery

Partnership Programmes

Scholarship Programmes

Projects

Research Programme

Staff Training

Provision - onerous contract

Surveyor & mileage costs

Travel - Local

Travel - overseas

Marine Interventions

Other Expenses

Total expenditure

Deficit

Fair value adjustments

Deficit for the year

(4 177)

(4 819)

(8 330)

(2 250)

(6 000)

(2 200)

(3 140)

-

(2 061)

(16 511)

(3 916)

(2 300)

(10 221)

(394 766)

-

-

-

(4 177)

(4 819)

(8 330)

(2 250)

(6 000)

(2 200)

(3 140)

-

(2 061)

(16 511)

(3 916)

(2 300)

(10 221)

(394 766)

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

(3 474)

(5 204)

(39 660)

(9 055)

(1 789)

(120)

(2 403)

(5 704)

(2 316)

(24 815)

(3 261)

(443)

(11 360)

(448 600)

(134 696)

49

(134 647)

703

(385)

(31 330)

(6 805)

4211

2 080

737

(5 704)

(255)

(8 304)

655

1 857

(1 139)

  (53 834) 

(134 696)

49

(134 647)

34

34

34

34

34

34

34

34

34

34

34

34
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1. PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

 The financial statements have been prepared in  

 accordance with the Standards of Generally  

 Recognised Accounting Practice (GRAP), issued 

 by the Accounting Standards Board in accordance  

 with Section 91(1) of the Public Finance Management 

 Act (Act 1 of 1999).

 These financial statements have been prepared 

 on an accrual basis of accounting and are in accordance 

 with historical cost convention as the basis of measurement,  

 unless specified otherwise. They are presented 

 in South African Rand.

 A summary of the significant accounting policies, 

 which have been consistently applied in the preparation 

 of these financial statements, are disclosed below.

 These accounting policies are consistent with the  

 previous period.

1.1 SIGNIFICANT JUDGEMENTS AND SOURCES OF  

 ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

 In preparing the financial statements, management 

 is required to make estimates and assumptions that  

 affect the amounts represented in the financial  

 statements and related disclosures. Use of available  

 information and the application of judgement is inherent  

 in the formation of estimates. Actual results in the  

 future could differ from these estimates which may 

 be material to the financial statements. Significant  

 judgements include:

 Fair value estimation

 The fair value of financial instruments traded in active  

 markets (such as trading and available-for-sale  

 securities) is based on quoted market prices at the 

 end of the reporting period. The quoted market price 

 used for financial assets held by the Authority is the  

 current bid price. The fair value of financial instruments  

 that are not traded in an active market (for example,  

 over-the counter derivatives) is determined by using  

 valuation techniques. The Authority uses a variety of methods  

 and makes assumptions that are based on market  

 conditions existing at the end of each reporting period. 

 Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar   

 instruments are used for long-term debt. Other   

 techniques, such as estimated discounted cash flows,  

 are used to determine fair value for the remaining  

 financial instruments. The fair value of interest rate  

 swaps is calculated as the present value of the  

 estimated future cash flows. The fair value of forward  

 foreign exchange contracts is determined using quoted  

 forward exchange rates at the end of the reporting period.

 The carrying value less impairment provision of trade  

 receivables and payables are assumed to approximate  

 their fair values. The fair value of financial liabilities 

 for disclosure purposes is estimated by discounting 

 the future contractual cash flows at the current market  

 interest rate that is available to the Authority for similar  

 financial instruments.

 

 Provisions

 Provisions were raised and management determined 

 an estimate based on the information available. 

 Additional disclosure of these estimates of provisions  

 are included in note 20 - Provisions.

 Post retirement benefits

 The present value of the post retirement obligation  

 depends on a number of factors that are determined 

 on an actuarial basis using a number of assumptions.  

 The assumptions used in determining the net cost  

 (income) include the discount rate. Any changes in  

 these assumptions will impact on the carrying amount 

 of post retirement obligations.

 The Authority determines the appropriate discount rate 

 at the end of each year. This is the interest rate that  

 should be used to determine the present value of  

 estimated future cash outflows expected to be required  

 to settle the pension obligations. In determining the  

 appropriate discount rate, the Authority considers the  

 interest rates of high-quality corporate bonds that are  

 denominated in the currency in which the benefits will  

 be paid, and that have terms to maturity approximating  

 the terms of the related pension liability.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
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 Other key assumptions for pension obligations are  

 based on current market conditions. Additional information  

 is disclosed in Note 11.

 Allowance for doubtful debts

 On debtors an impairment loss is recognised in surplus  

 and deficit when there is objective evidence that 

 it is impaired. The impairment is measured as the  

 difference between the debtors carrying amount 

 and the present value of estimated future cash flows  

 discounted at the effective interest rate, computed 

 at initial recognition.

1.2 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

 Property, plant and equipment are tangible non-current  

 assets (including infrastructure assets) that are held  

 for use in the production or supply of goods or services,  

 rental to others, or for administrative purposes, and  

 are expected to be used during more than one period.

 The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment 

 is recognised as an asset when:

  • it is probable that future economic benefits or  

   service potential associated with the item will 

   flow to the entity; and

  • the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

 Property, plant and equipment are initially measured 

 at cost.

 

 The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is  

 the purchase price and other costs attributable to bring  

 the asset to the location and condition necessary for 

 it to be capable of operating in the manner intended 

 by management. Trade discounts and rebates are  

 deducted in arriving at the cost.

 Where an asset is acquired through a non-exchange  

 transaction, its cost is its fair value as at date 

 of acquisition.

 Where an item of property, plant and equipment is  

 acquired in exchange for a non-monetary asset or  

 monetary assets, or a combination of monetary and  

 non-monetary assets, the asset acquired is initially  

 measured at fair value (the cost). If the acquired item's  

 fair value was not determinable, it's deemed cost is the  

 carrying amount of the asset(s) given up.

 When significant components of an item of property,  

 plant and equipment have different useful lives, they 

 are accounted for as separate items (major components) 

 of property, plant and equipment.

 Costs include costs incurred initially to acquire or  

 construct an item of property, plant and equipment 

 and costs incurred subsequently to add to, replace part  

 of, or service it. If a replacement cost is recognised in  

 the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and  

 equipment, the carrying amount of the replaced part 

 is derecognised.

 The initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and  

 removing the item and restoring the site on which it 

 is located is also included in the cost of property, plant  

 and equipment, where the entity is obligated to incur such  

 expenditure, and where the obligation arises as a result  

 of acquiring the asset or using it for purposes other  

 than the production of inventories.

 Recognition of costs in the carrying amount of an item  

 of property, plant and equipment ceases when the item is  

 in the location and condition necessary for it to be capable  

 of operating in the manner intended by management.

 Major spare parts and stand by equipment which 

 are expected to be used for more than one period are  

 included in property, plant and equipment. In addition,  

 spare parts and stand by equipment which can only 

 be used in connection with an item of property, plant  

 and equipment are accounted for as property, plant 

 and equipment.

 Property, plant and equipment is carried at revalued  

 amount, being the fair value at the date of revaluation 

 less any subsequent accumulated depreciation 

 and subsequent accumulated impairment losses.
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 Reviewing the useful life of an asset on an annual  

 basis does not require the entity to amend the  

 previous estimate unless expectations differ from  

 the previous estimate.

 Each part of an item of property, plant and  

 equipment with a cost that is significant in relation  

 to the total cost of the item is depreciated separately.

 The depreciation charge for each period is  

 recognised in surplus or deficit unless it is  

 included in the carrying amount of another asset.

 Items of property, plant and equipment are  

 derecognised when the asset is disposed of or when  

 there are no further economic benefits or service  

 potential expected from the use of the asset.

 The gain or loss arising from the derecognition 

 of an item of property, plant and equipment is  

 included in surplus or deficit when the item is  

 derecognised. The gain or loss arising from the  

 derecognition of an item of property, plant and  

 equipment is determined as the difference  

 between the net disposal proceeds, if any, 

 and the carrying amount of the item.

 Assets which the entity holds for rentals to others  

 and subsequently routinely sell as part of the  

 ordinary course of activities, are transferred to  

 inventories when the rentals end and the assets  

 are available-for-sale. These assets are not  

 accounted for as non-current assets held for sale.  

 Proceeds from sales of these assets are recognised  

 as revenue. All cash flows on these assets are  

 included in cash flows from operating activities  

 in the cash flow statement.

1.2 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

 When an item of property, plant and equipment is  

 revalued, any accumulated depreciation at the date 

 of the revaluation is restated proportionately with the  

 change in the gross carrying amount of the asset so  

 that the carrying amount of the asset after revaluation  

 equals its revalued amount.

 When an item of property, plant and equipment is  

 revalued, any accumulated depreciation at the date of 

 the revaluation is eliminated against the gross carrying  

 amount of the asset and the net amount restated to the  

 revalued amount of the asset.

 Leasehold improvements for operating leases are  

 amortised over the shorter of their economic lives or  

 the lease term. Amortising lease improvements over 

 a term that includes assumption of lease renewals 

 is appropriate only when the renewals have been  

 determined to be reasonably assured.

 Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on the  

 straight line basis over their expected useful lives to  

 their estimated residual value.

 The useful lives of items of property, plant and 

 equipment have been assessed as follows:

 Item Average useful life

 Land N/A 

 Buildings 20 years

 Leasehold property 9 years

 Ship 5 years

 Furniture and fixtures 10 years

 Motor vehicles 4 years

 Office equipment 5 years

 IT equipment 3 years

 Computer software 3 years

 The residual value, and the useful life and depreciation  

 method of each asset are reviewed at the end of each  

 reporting date. If the expectations differ from previous  

 estimates, the change is accounted for as a change 

 in accounting estimate.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
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1.3 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

 An asset is identifiable if it either:

 • is separable, i.e. is capable of being separated or  

  divided from an entity and sold, transferred, licensed,  

  rented or exchanged, either individually or together  

  with a related contract, identifiable assets or liability,  

  regardless of whether the entity intends to do so; or

 • arises from binding arrangements (including rights  

  from contracts), regardless of whether those rights  

  are transferable or separable from the entity or from  

  other rights and obligations.

 A binding arrangement describes an arrangement that  

 confers similar rights and obligations on the parties 

 to it as if it were in the form of a contract.

 An intangible asset is recognised when:

 • it is probable that the expected future economic  

  benefits or service potential that are attributable 

  to the asset will flow to the entity; and

 • the cost or fair value of the asset can be measured reliably.

 The entity assesses the probability of expected future  

 economic benefits or service potential using reasonable  

 and supportable assumptions that represent management’s  

 best estimate of the set of economic conditions  

 that will exist over the useful life of the asset.

 Where an intangible asset is acquired through a  

 non-exchange transaction, its initial cost at the date 

 of acquisition is measured at its fair value as at that date.

 Expenditure on research (or on the research phase 

 of an internal project) is recognised as an expense when 

 it is incurred.

 An intangible asset arising from development (or from  

 the development phase of an internal project) 

 is recognised when:

 • it is technically feasible to complete the asset so that  

  it will be available for use or sale.

 • there is an intention to complete and use or sell it.

 • there is an ability to use or sell it.

 • it will generate probable future economic benefits or  

  service potential.

 

 • there are available technical, financial and other  

  resources to complete the development and to use 

  or sell the asset.

 • the expenditure attributable to the asset during its  

   development can be measured reliably.

 Intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated  

 amortisation and any impairment losses.

 An intangible asset is regarded as having an indefinite  

 useful life when, based on all relevant factors, there is  

 no foreseeable limit to the period over which the asset  

 is expected to generate net cash inflows or service  

 potential. Amortisation is not provided for these  

 intangible assets, but they are tested for impairment  

 annually and whenever there is an indication that the  

 asset may be impaired. For all other intangible assets 

 amortisation is provided on a straight line basis over  

 their useful life.

 The amortisation period and the amortisation method  

 for intangible assets are reviewed at each reporting  

 date. Reassessing the useful life of an intangible asset  

 with a finite useful life after it was classified as  

 indefinite is an indicator that the asset may be impaired.  

 As a result the asset is tested for impairment and 

 the remaining carrying amount is amortised over its  

 useful life.

 Internally generated brands, mastheads, publishing  

 titles, customer lists and items similar in substance 

 are not recognised as intangible assets.

 Internally generated goodwill is not recognised as an  

 intangible asset.

 Amortisation is provided to write down the intangible  

 assets, on a straight line basis, to their residual 

 values as follows:

 Item Average useful life

 Computer software, other 3 years

 Intangible assets are derecognised:

 • on disposal; 

 • when no future economic benefits or service potential  

  are expected from its use or disposal.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES 



1.4 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

 Initial recognition and measurement

 Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised  

 in the statement of financial position when the Authority  

 becomes a party to the contractual provisions of 

 the instrument. All purchases and sales of financial  

 assets are initially recognised using trade date accounting.

 Financial instruments are initially measured at fair  

 value plus, in the case of a financial instrument not at fair  

 value through statement of financial performance,  

 transaction costs that are directly attributable to the  

 acquisition or issue of the instrument

 The fair values of quoted investments are based on  

 current bid prices. If the market for a financial asset 

 is not active (and for unlisted securities), the Authority  

 establishes fair value by using valuation techniques.  

 These include the use of  recent  arm’s length  transactions,   

 reference to other instruments that are substantially  

 the same, discounted cash flow analysis, and option  

 pricing models making maximum use of market inputs  

 and relying as little as possible on entity-specific inputs.

 The Authority's principal financial assets are accounts  

 receivable and cash and cash equivalents.

 Receivables from exchange transactions

 Trade and other receivables are stated at their  

 amortised cost reduced by impairment allowance.

 Trade receivables are measured at initial recognition at  

 fair value, and are subsequently measured at amortised  

 cost using the effective interest rate method. Appropriate  

 allowances for estimated irrecoverable amounts are  

 recognised in profit or loss when there is objective  

 evidence that the asset is impaired. Significant financial  

 difficulties of the debtor, probability that the debtor will  

 enter bankruptcy or financial reorganisation, and  

 default or delinquency in payments are considered  

 indicators that the trade receivable is impaired. 

 The allowance recognised is measured as the 

 difference between the asset’s carrying amount 

 and the present value of estimated future cash flows  

 discounted at the effective interest rate computed 

 at initial recognition.

 The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through  

 the use of an allowance account, and the amount of 

 the loss is recognised in the income statement within  

 operating expenses. When a trade receivable is  

 uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance  

 account for trade receivables. Subsequent recoveries 

 of amounts previously written off are credited against  

 operating expenses in the income statement.

 Payables from exchange transactions

 Trade payables are initially measured at fair value, 

 and are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using  

 the effective interest rate method.

 Cash and cash equivalents

 Cash and cash equivalents are measured at fair value.  

 Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances  

 and call deposits.

1.5 LEASES

 A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers  

 substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to

 ownership. A lease is classified as an operating lease 

 if it does not transfer substantially all the risks and

 rewards incidental to ownership. 

 When a lease includes both land and buildings  

 elements, the entity assesses the classification of each

 element separately.

 Finance leases - lessee

 Finance leases are recognised as assets and liabilities  

 in the statement of financial position at amounts

 equal to the fair value of the leased property or, if lower,  

 the present value of the minimum lease payments.

 The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in  

 the statement of financial position as a finance

 lease obligation.
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 Minimum lease payments are apportioned between 

 the finance charge and reduction of the outstanding  

 liability. The finance charge is allocated to each period  

 during the lease term so as to produce a constant  

 periodic rate of on the remaining balance of the liability.

 Any contingent rents are expensed in the period in  

 which they are incurred.

 

 Operating leases - lessee

 Operating lease payments are recognised as an  

 expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. 

 The difference between the amounts recognised as an  

 expense and the contractual payments are recognised  

 as an operating lease asset or liability.

1.6 ROUNDING OFF

 All figures in the financial statements were rounded 

 off to the nearest thousand and are indicated by R'000.

1.7 IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS

 Cash-generating assets are those assets held by the  

 entity with the primary objective of generating a commercial  

 return. When an asset is deployed in a manner consistent  

 with that adopted by a profit-orientated entity, it generates  

 a commercial return.

 Impairment is a loss in the future economic benefits 

 or service potential of an asset, over and above the  

 systematic recognition of the loss of the asset’s future  

 economic benefits or service potential through  

 depreciation (amortisation).

 Carrying amount is the amount at which an asset 

 is recognised in the statement of financial position after  

 deducting any accumulated depreciation and accumulated  

 impairment losses thereon.

 A cash-generating unit is the smallest identifiable group 

 of assets held with the primary objective of generating a  

 commercial return that generates cash inflows from  

 continuing use that are largely independent of the cash  

 inflows from other assets or groups of assets.

 Costs of disposal are incremental costs directly  

 attributable to the disposal of an asset, excluding  

 finance costs and income tax expense.

 Depreciation (Amortisation) is the systematic allocation  

 of the depreciable amount of an asset over its useful life.

 Fair value less costs to sell is the amount obtainable  

 from the sale of an asset in an arm’s length transaction  

 between knowledgeable, willing parties, less the costs 

 of disposal.

 Recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-generating  

 unit is the higher its fair value less costs to sell 

 and its value in use.

 Useful life is either:

 (a) the period of time over which an asset is expected 

       to be used by the entity; or

 (b) the number of production or similar units expected  

       to be obtained from the asset by the entity.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
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1.8 RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT EXPENDITURE

 Expenditure on research is recognised as an expense  

 when it is incurred. An asset arising from development 

 is recognised when:

  • it is technically feasible to complete the asset so that  

    it will be available for use or sale.

  • there is an intention to complete and use or sell it.

  • there is an ability to use or sell it.

  • it will generate probable future economic benefits 

    or service potential.

  • there are available technical, financial and other  

    resources to complete the development and to use 

    or sell the asset.

  • the expenditure attributable to the asset during 

    its development can be measured reliably.

1.9 BUDGET INFORMATION

 The approved budget is prepared on a accrual basis 

 and presented by programmes linked to performance  

 outcome objectives.

 The approved budget covers the fiscal period from  

 2013/04/01 to 2014/03/31.

 The budget for the economic entity includes all the  

 entities approved budgets under its control.

 The financial statements and the budget are on the  

 same basis of accounting therefore a comparison 

 with the budgeted amounts for the reporting period  

 have been included in the Statement of comparison 

 of budget and actual amounts.

 

1.10 RELATED PARTIES

 The entity operates in an economic sector currently  

 dominated by entities directly or indirectly owned by 

 the South African Government. As a consequence of  

 the constitutional independence of the three spheres 

 of government in South Africa, only entities within the  

 national sphere of government are considered to be 

 related parties.

 Management are those persons responsible for  

 planning, directing and controlling the activities of the  

 entity, including those charged with the governance of  

 the entity in accordance with legislation, in instances  

 where they are required to perform such functions.

 Close members of the family of a person are considered  

 to be those family members who may be expected 

 to influence, or be influenced by, that management 

 in their dealings with the entity.

 Only transactions with related parties not at arm’s  

 length or not in the ordinary course of business  

 are disclosed.

1.11 USE OF ESTIMATES

 The preparation of financial statements in conformity  

 with Generally Recognised Accounting Practice requires 

 the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also  

 requires management to exercise its judgement in the  

 process of applying the entity's accounting policies. 

 The areas involving a higher degree of judgement 

 or complexity, or areas where assumptions and  

 estimates are significant to the financial statements 

 are disclosed in the relevant sections of the financial  

 statements. Although these estimates are based 

 on management’s best knowledge of current events 

 and actions they may undertake in the future, 

 actual results ultimately may differ from those estimates.
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 Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed 

 on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates 

 are recognised in the period in which the estimates are  

 revised and in any future periods affected.

1.12   FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

 The Authority has exposure to the following risks from  

 its use of financial instruments:

  • Credit risk

  • Liquidity risk

  • Interest Rate risk

  • Cashflow risk

 The Audit Committee oversees how management  

 monitors compliance with the Authority's risk management  

 procedures and reviews the adequacy of the risk management  

 framework in relation to the risks faced by the Authority.

 Credit risk

 Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Authority 

 if a customer to a financial instrument fails to meet its  

 contractual obligations, and arises principally from the  

 Authority's receivables. The Authority's exposure to  

 credit risk is influenced by the individual characteristics  

 of each customer. There is however, no concentration  

 of risk among the current SAMSA customers.

 The Authority limits its exposure to credit by only  

 investing in liquid securities (on call deposit) and with  

 counterparties approved by the Treasury. Management  

 does not expect the counterparty to fail to meet 

 its obligations.

 Liquidity risk

 Liquidity risk is the risk that the Authority will not be  

 able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. 

 The Authority's approach to managing its liquidity is 

 to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have  

 sufficient liquidity to meet its liaibilities when they fall  

 due, under both normal and stressed conditions, 

 without incurring unacceptable losses or risking  

 damage to the Authority's reputation.

 

 

 Interest Rate Risk

 Interest rate risk is the risk (variability in value) borne  

 by an interest-bearing asset, such as a loan or a bond,  

 due to variability of interest rates.

 Cashflow Risk

 This is the risk that a entity's available cash will not be  

 sufficient to meet its financial obligations.

1.13   EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

 Short-term employee benefits

 Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured  

 on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as 

 the related service is provided. A liability is recognised  

 for the amount expected to be paid under short-term  

 cash bonus or profit-sharing plans if the entity has 

 a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this 

 amount as a result of past service provided by the  

 employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

 The cost of short-term employee benefits, (those  

 payable within 12 months after the service is rendered, 

 such as paid vacation leave and sick leave, bonuses,  

 and non-monetary benefits such as medical care), 

 are recognised in the period in which the service is  

 rendered and are not discounted.

 The expected cost of compensated absences is  

 recognised as an expense as the employees render  

 services that increase their entitlement or, in the case 

 of non-accumulating absences, when the absence occurs. 

 The expected cost of profit sharing and bonus  

 payments is recognised as an expense when there 

 is a legal or constructive obligation to make such  

 payments as a result of past performance.

 

 Provident Fund

 A defined contribution plan is a post-employment  

 benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed contributions  

 into a separate entity and will have no legal or constructive  

 obligation to pay further amounts. Employer contributions  

 to provident funds are based on a percentage 

 of pensionable earnings and charged to the  

 statement of financial position as incurred.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
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1.13   EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (CONTINUED)

 Post-retirement medical benefits

 The Authority operates both defined contribution 

 and defined benefit plans. The defined benefit plan is  

 unfunded while the defined contribution plan is funded  

 by payments from the Authority and employees, taking  

 account of the recommendations of independent  

 qualified actuaries. For defined benefit plans, the  

 defined benefit obligation, the related current service  

 cost, and where applicable, the past service cost is  

 determined by using the projected unit credit method.  

 Future benefit values are projected using actuarial  

 assumptions and the liability for in-service members 

 is accrued over expected working lifetime. This benefit  

 only applies to qualifying employees who transferred  

 from the Department of Transport on the formation of the  

 Authority on 1 April 1998. New employees are not offered  

 any post retirement medical benefits. Payments to defined  

 contribution retirement benefit plans are charged to the  

 statement of financial performance in the year 

 to which they relate.

 When the benefits of a plan are improved, the portion 

 of the increased benefit relating to past service by  

 employees is recognised in statement of financial  

 performance on a straight-line basis over the average 

 period until the benefits become vested. To the extent  

 that the benefits vest immediately, the expense 

 is recognised immediately in the statement of financial  

 performance. The entity recognises all actuarial 

 gains and losses arising from defined benefit plans  

 directly in net surplus/(deficit) directly.

1.14   PROVISIONS AND CONTINGENCIES

 Provisions are recognised when:

  • the Authority has a present obligation as a result  

  of a past event;

  • it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying  

  economic benefits or service potential will be required  

  to settle the obligation; and

  • a reliable estimate can be made of the obligation

 The amount of a provision is the best estimate of the  

 expenditure expected to be required to settle the present  

 obligation at the reporting date.

 Where the effect of time value of money is material, 

 the amount of a provision is the present value of the  

 expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation.

 The discount rate is a pre-tax rate that reflects current  

 market assessments of the time value of money 

 and the risks specific to the liability.

 Where some or all of the expenditure required to settle

 a provision is expected to be reimbursed by another  

 party, the reimbursement is recognised when, 

 and only when, it is virtually certain that reimbursement 

 will be received if the Authority settles the obligation.  

 The reimbursement is treated as a separate asset. 

 The amount recognised for the reimbursement does 

 not exceed the amount of the provision.

 Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and  

 adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. Provisions 

 are reversed if it is no longer probable that an outflow 

 of resources embodying economic benefits or service  

 potential will be required, to settle the obligation.

 Provisions are not recognised for future operating  

 deficits.

 If an entity has a contract that is onerous, the present  

 obligation (net of recoveries) under the contract 

 is recognised and measured as a provision.

 A constructive obligation to restructure arises only  

 when an entity:

 • has a detailed formal plan for the restructuring,  

 identifying at least:

  - the activity/operating unit or part 

  of a activity/operating unit concerned;

  - the principal locations affected;

  - the location, function, and approximate number 

  of employees who will be compensated for services 

  being terminated;

  - the expenditures that will be undertaken; and

  - when the plan will be implemented; and

 • has raised a valid expectation in those affected that it  

 will carry out the restructuring by starting 

 to implement that plan or announcing its main features  

 to those affected by it.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
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 No obligation arises as a consequence of the sale or  

 transfer of an operation until the entity is committed 

 to the sale or transfer, that is, there is a binding arrangement.

 After their initial recognition contingent liabilities  

 recognised in entity combinations that are recognised 

 separately are subsequently measured at the higher of:

  • the amount that would be recognised as a provision; and

  • the amount initially recognised less cumulative  

    amortisation.

 Contingent assets and contingent liabilities are 

 not recognised. 

 A financial guarantee contract is a contract that  

 requires the issuer to make specified payments 

 to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because 

 a specified debtor fails to make payment when due 

 in accordance with the original or modified terms 

 of a debt instrument.

 Loan commitment is a firm commitment to provide  

 credit under pre-specified terms and conditions.

 The entity recognises a provision for financial guarantees  

 and loan commitments when it is probable that an outflow  

 of resources embodying economic benefits and service  

 potential will be required to settle the obligation 

 and a reliable estimate of the obligation can be made.

 Determining whether an outflow of resources is  

 probable in relation to financial guarantees requires 

 judgement. Indications that an outflow of resources  

 may be probable are:

  • financial difficulty of the debtor;

  • defaults or delinquencies in interest and capital  

    repayments by the debtor;

  • breaches of the terms of the debt instrument that  

    result in it being payable earlier than the agreed 

    term and the ability of the debtor to settle its  

    obligation on the amended terms; and

  • a decline in prevailing economic circumstances 

    (e.g. high interest rates, inflation and unemployment) 

    that impact on the ability of entities to repay their obligations.

 Where a fee is received by the entity for issuing

 a financial guarantee and/or where a fee is charged 

 on loan commitments, it is considered in determining  

 the best estimate of the amount required to settle the  

 obligation at reporting date. Where a fee is charged and  

 the entity considers that an outflow of economic resources 

 is probable, an entity recognises the obligation at the  

 higher of:

  • the amount determined using in the Standard 

    of GRAP on Provisions, Contingent Liabilities 

    and ContingentAssets; and

  • the amount of the fee initially recognised less, 

    where appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised 

    in accordance with the Standard of GRAP on Revenue  

    from Exchange Transactions.

1.15 REVENUE FROM EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS

 Revenue is recognised when it is probable that future  

 economic benefits will flow to the enterprise and 

 these benefits can be measured reliably. Revenue   

 arising from  the  rendering  of  services is based 

 on the stage of completion determined by reference 

 to the physical amount of work performed in relation 

 to the total project.

 Measurement

 Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration  

 received or receivable, net of trade discounts 

 and volume rebates.

 Rendering of services

 When the outcome of a transaction involving the  

 rendering of services can be estimated reliably, revenue  

 associated with the transaction is recognised by  

 reference to the stage of completion of the transaction  

 at the reporting date.

 The outcome of a transaction can be estimated  

 reliably when all the following conditions are satisfied:

  - the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

  - it is probable that the economic benefits or service  

    potential associated with the transaction will flow 

    to the entity;

  - the stage of completion of the transaction at the  

    reporting date can be measured reliably; and

  - the costs incurred for the transaction and the costs  

    to complete the transaction can be measured reliably.
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 When the outcome of the transaction involving the  

 rendering of services cannot be estimated reliably, revenue  

 is recognised only to the extent of the expenses recognised  

 that are recoverable.

 Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration  

 received or receivable and represents the amounts

 receivable for goods and services provided in the normal  

 course of business, net of trade discounts and volume  

 rebates, and value added tax. Interest is recognised, in the  

 Statement of Financial Performance, using the effective  

 interest rate method.

 Service fees included in the price of the product are  

 recognised as revenue over the period during which 

 the service is performed.

 Finance income comprises interest income on funds  

 invested. Interest income is recognised as it accrues 

 in the Statement of Financial Performance, using the  

 effective interest method.

1.16   REVENUE FROM NON-EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS

 Non-exchange transactions are defined as transactions  

 where the entity receives value from another entity  

 without directly giving approximately equal value in exchange.

 Revenue is the gross inflow of economic benefits or  

 service potential during the reporting period when those 

 inflows result in an increase in net assets, other than  

 increases relating to contributions from owners.

 Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be  

 exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable, 

 willing parties in an arm’s-length transaction.

 Measurement

 Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration  

 received or receivable, net of trade discounts 

 and volume rebates.

 

 SAMSA Levies

 Revenue from SAMSA Levies is recognised in line with  

 the provision of the SAMSA Levies Act number 6 of 1998,  

 which provides as follows:

  - SAMSA Levies are payable upon first entry into the  

    territorial waters of the Republic after a voyage from 

    a port or place outside the Republic.

 Government grants

 Government grants are recognised as revenue when:

  • it is probable that the economic benefits or service  

    potential associated with the transaction will flow 

    to the Authority,

  •  the amount of the revenue can be measured reliably, and

  • to the extent that there has been compliance with  

    any restrictions associated with the grant.

 The Authority assesses the degree of certainty  

 attached to the flow of future economic benefits or service 

 potential on the basis of the available evidence. Certain  

 grants payable by one level of government to another 

 are subject to the availability of funds. Revenue from  

 these grants is only recognised when it is probable 

 that the economic benefits or service potential  

 associated with the transaction will flow to the entity. 

 An announcement at the beginning of a financial year  

 that grants may be available for qualifying entities 

 in accordance with an agreed programme may not 

 be sufficient evidence of the probability of the flow. 

 Revenue is then only recognised once evidence of the  

 probability of the flow becomes available.

 Restrictions on government grants may result in such  

 revenue being recognised on a time proportion basis. 

 Where there is no restriction on the period, such revenue 

 is recognised on receipt or when the Act becomes 

 effective, which-ever is earlier.

 When government remit grants on a re-imbursement  

 basis, revenue is recognised when the qualifying 

 expense has been incurred and to the extent that any  

 other restrictions have been complied with.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
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 Other grants and donations

 Other grants and donations are recognised as 

 revenue when:

  • it is probable that the economic benefits or service  

    potential associated with the transaction will flow 

    to the Authority;

  •  the amount of the revenue can be measured reliably; and

  • to the extent that there has been compliance with any  

    restrictions associated with the grant.

 If goods in-kind are received without conditions   

 attached, revenue is recognised immediately. If conditions  

 are attached, a liability is recognised, which is reduced 

 and revenue recognised as the conditions are satisfied.

1.17   BAD DEBTS

 It is the policy of the Authority to handle each potential  

 bad debt case or impairment allowance on merit. 

 A provision is made for all debtors over 120 days 

 and in cases where there is objective evidence and 

 indication to the impairment of a debt, such debts 

 are written off.

1.18  INVESTMENT INCOME

 Investment income is recognised on a time-proportion  

 basis using the effective interest method.

1.19  TRANSLATION OF FOREIGN CURRENCIES

 Foreign currency transactions

 A foreign currency transaction is recorded, on initial  

 recognition in Rands, by applying to the foreign currency 

 amount the spot exchange rate between the functional  

 currency and the foreign currency at the date 

 of the transaction.

 At each reporting date:

  • foreign currency monetary items are translated using  

    the closing rate;

  • non-monetary items that are measured in terms of   

    historical cost in a foreign currency are translated 

    using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction; and

  • non-monetary items that are measured at fair value  

    in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange  

    rates at the date when the fair value was determined.

 Exchange differences arising on the settlement of  

 monetary items or on translating monetary items at rates 

 different from those at which they were translated 

 on initial recognition during the period or in previous 

 financial statements are recognised in surplus or deficit  

 in the period in which they arise.

 When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is  

 recognised directly in net assets, any exchange component 

 of that gain or loss is recognised directly in net assets.  

 When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item 

 is recognised in surplus or deficit, any exchange  

 component of that gain or loss is recognised in surplus 

 or deficit.

 Cash flows arising from transactions in a foreign  

 currency are recorded in Rands by applying to the foreign  

 currency amount the exchange rate between the Rand  

 and the foreign currency at the date of the cash flow.

1.20 TAX

 The Authority is exempt from income tax in terms 

 of section 10(1)(CA)(i) of the Income Tax Act, 1962 

 (Act No. 58 of 1962).

 The Authority is registered as an employer in terms 

 of the PAYE provisions of the Income Tax Act. 

 As from 01 April2005 the Authority has been de-registered  

 from VAT.

1.21 COMPARATIVE FIGURES

 Where necessary, comparative figures have been  

 reclassified to conform to changes in presentation 

 in the current year.

1.22 UNAUTHORISED EXPENDITURE

 All expenditure relating to unauthorised expenditure 

 is recognised as an expense in the statement of financial 

 performance in the year that the expenditure was  

 incurred. The expenditure is classified in accordance with 

 the nature of the expense, and where recovered, it is  

 subsequently accounted for as revenue in the statement 

 of financial performance.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
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1.23 FRUITLESS AND WASTEFUL EXPENDITURE

 Fruitless expenditure means expenditure which 

 was made in vain and would have been avoided had 

 reasonable care been exercised.

 All expenditure relating to fruitless and wasteful  

 expenditure is recognised as an expense in the Statement 

 of Financial Performance in the year that the expenditure  

 was incurred. The expenditure is classified in accordance  

 with the nature of the expense, and where recovered, 

 it is subsequently accounted for as revenue in the  

 Statement of Financial Performance.

1.24 IRREGULAR EXPENDITURE

 FIrregular expenditure as defined in section 1 of the  

 PFMA is expenditure other than unauthorised expenditure,  

 incurred in contravention of or that is not in accordance  

 with a requirement of any applicable legislation, including -

  (a) this Act; or

  (b) the State Tender Board Act, 1968 (Act No. 86 

        of 1968), or any regulations made in terms of the Act; or

  (c) any provincial legislation providing for procurement  

       procedures in that provincial government.

 

 National Treasury practice note no. 4 of 2008/2009  

 which was issued in terms of sections 76(1) to 76(4) 

 of the PFMA requires the following (effective from 

 1 April 2008):

 Irregular expenditure that was incurred and identified  

 during the current financial and which was condoned 

 before year end and/or before finalisation of the  

 financial statements must also be recorded appropriately 

 in the irregular expenditure register. In such an instance, 

 no further action is also required with the exception 

 of updating the note to the financial statements.

 Irregular expenditure that was incurred and identified  

 during the current financial year and for which 

 condonement is being awaited at year end must 

 be recorded in the irregular expenditure register. 

 No further action is required with the exception 

 of updating the note to the financial statements.

 Where irregular expenditure was incurred in the  

 previous financial year and is only condoned in the  

 following financial year, the register and the disclosure note  

 to the financial statements must be updated with the 

 amount condoned.

 Irregular expenditure that was incurred and identified  

 during the current financial year and which was not 

 condoned by the Accounting Authority must be recorded  

 appropriately in the irregular expenditure register. 

 If liability for the irregular expenditure can be attributed  

 to a person, a debt account must be created if such 

 a person is liable in law. Immediate steps must  

 thereafter be taken to recover the amount from the person 

 concerned. If recovery is not possible, the accounting  

 officer or accounting authority may write off the amount 

 as debt impairment and disclose such in the relevant  

 note to the financial statements. The irregular expenditure  

 register must also be updated accordingly. If the irregular  

 expenditure has not been condoned and no person is liable 

 in law, the expenditure related thereto must remain against 

 the relevant programme/expenditure item, be disclosed 

 as such in the note to the financial statements and updated  

 accordingly in the irregular expenditure register.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
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2014

R ’000

2013

R ’000

Revenue

Rendering of services

The amount included in revenue arising from exchanges of goods or

services are as follows:

Direct user charges

Government Service Fees

Proceeds from ship wrecks

SA Agulhas charter

The amount included in revenue arising from non-exchange

transactions is as follows:

Transfer revenue

SAMSA Levies

Transfer of asset (ship)

Contributions

305 800

20 174

12 901

-

9 302

42 377

231 781

-

31 642

263 423

352 117

19 252

9 289

198

21 477

50 216

214 837

30 000

57 064

301 901

Depreciation, Amortisation and Impairments

Furniture and fixtures

Motor vehicles

Office equipment

IT equipment

Buildings

Computer Software

Computer Software - Intangible

SA Agulhas

Leasehold Property

1 055

419

424

2 991

112

1 666

2 747

6 065

346

15 825

792

309

301

2 671

112

1 266

357

5 023

-

10 831

In line with Regulation 57 of the Determination of Charges (Government Notice 807 of 30 July 2009), SAMSA waived charges 

(revenue to the Authority) amounting to R0.032 million (2012/13: 0.118 million) to deserving organisations.

SAMSA Levies have been recategorised under non-exchange revenue in line with GRAP 23 and prior year figures have been adjusted as well.

2.

3.

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2014
Notes to the Financial Statements
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2014

R ’000

2013

R ’000

Employee related costs

Basic

Bonus

Medical aid - company contributions

Unemployment Insurance Fund

Workmen Compensation

Skills Development Levy

Leave pay provision charge

Pension

Long-service awards

13th Cheques

Travel allowance

Housing benefits and allowances

Computer Allowance

Funeral policies

Interest Income

Interest received

Interest Revenue is made up of the following:

Interest charged on overdue accounts

Investment income

Interest from current accounts

Fair Value adjustments

Fair Value Adjustments

Fair Value Adjustments consist of:

Fair Value adjustment - debtors

Fair Value adjustment - creditors

94 304

6 378

1 358

382

664

1 086

1 795

13 786

56

7 287

1 305

189

-

26

128 616

3 944

-

3 767

177

3 944

49

65

(114)

(49)

79 994

8 925

1 129

306

196

879

769

11 999

50

-

1 456

224

4

26

105 957

9 477

180

9 125

172

9 477

40

101

(141)

(40)

The fair valuation adjustment on debtors decreased by R0.065 million from R0.218 million to R0.283 million. 

The fair valuation adjustment on creditors increased by R0.114 million from R0.215 million to R0.330 million.

 

4.

5.

6.

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2014
Notes to the Financial Statements
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Cost

 / Valuation

Accumulated 
depreciation and 

accumulated 
impairment 

Carrying

value

Carrying

value

Cost

 / Valuation

Accumulated 
depreciation and 

accumulated 
impairment 

Property, plant and equipment

Land

Buildings

Leasehold property

Furniture and fixtures

Motor vehicles

Office equipment

IT equipment

Computer software

Ship - SA Agulhas 1

Total

2 100

2 234

7 111

10 677

2 658

2 914

12 739

7 871

30 342

78 646

2 100

1 957

6 765

7 604

1 475

1 279

4 092

1 743

19 254

46 269

-

(277)

(346)

(3 073)

(1 183)

(1 635)

(8 647)

(6 128)

(11 088)

(32 377)

2 100

2 234

-

9 451

1 853

2 662

13 082

7 649

30 342

69 373

-

(165)

-

(2 531)

(859)

(1 704)

(8 434)

(4 622)

(5 023)

(23 338)

2 100

2 069

-

6 920

994

958

4 648

3 027

25 319

46 035

Opening 

balance

Additions Disposals/ 

Adjustments

Depreciation / 

Amortisation

Total

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - 2014

Land

Buildings

Leasehold property

Furniture and fixtures

Motor vehicles

Office equipment

IT equipment

Computer software

Ship - SA Agulhas 1

Total

2 100

2 069

-

6 920

994

958

4 648

3 027

25 319

46 035

-

-

-

(314)

-

(105)

(135)

-

-

(554)

-

-

7111

2 053

900

850

2 570

383

-

13 867

-

(112)

(346)

(1 055)

(419)

(424)

(2991)

(1 667)

(6 064)

(13 078)

2 100

1 957

6 765

7 604

1 475

1 279

4 092

1 743

19 254

46 269

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2014
Notes to the Financial Statements

7.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
2014 2013
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The Authority donated furniture, equipment and computers with a cost of R0.435 million to various public institutions around the country during 

the financial year. These assets were approved for disposal in line with the Authority's delegation of authority.

The useful lives of tangible and intangible assets are reviewed annually to determine whether the useful life assessment continues 

to be supportable. The Authority reviewed the useful lives of its assets and concluded that they remain the same on the date of review.

The amount of proceeds from disposed assets has been corrected to R0.199 million from R0.159 million as it was understated 

on the cashflow statement.

Opening 

balance

Additions Disposals Depreciation 

/ Amortisation

Total

Property, plant and equipment 

(continued) Reconciliation of 

property, plant and equipment - 2013

Land

Buildings

Furniture and fixtures

Motor vehicles

Office equipment

IT equipment

Computer software

SA Agulhas

Total

2 100

2 181

5 521

596

834

3 710

2 212

-

17 154

-

-

2 275

707

441

3 668

2 081

30 342

39 514

-

-

(84)

-

(16)

(59)

-

-

(159)

-

(112)

(792)

(309)

(301)

(2 671)

(1 266)

(5 023)

(10 474)

2 100

2 069

6 920

994

958

4  648

3027

25 319

46 035

7.

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2014
Notes to the Financial Statements
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Opening 

balance

Additions Amortisation Total

Reconciliation of intangible assets - 2014

Computer software

Reconciliation of intangible assets - 2013

Computer software

Financial Instruments

In the course of the Authority's business operations, it is exposed to interest rates. SAMSA is in the process of developing a comprehensive 

risk management process to monitor and control risks. The risk management process relating to each of these risks is discussed 

under the headings below:

Financial risk management

The company’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including, fair value interest rate risk, cash flow interest rate risk), 

credit and liquidity risk.

Liquidity risk

The company’s risk to liquidity is a result of the funds available to cover future commitments. The company manages liquidity risk through 

an ongoing review of future commitments and credit facilities. Cash flow forecasts are prepared and adequate utilised borrowing facilities 

are monitored.

Interest rate risk

The Authority's exposure to interest rate risk and the effective rates on financial instruments at statement of financial position date 

are as follows:

7 634

7 991

958 2 747

(357)

5 845

7 634

Cost

 / Valuation

Accumulated 
depreciation and 

accumulated 
impairment 

Carrying

value

Cost

 / Valuation

Accumulated 
depreciation and 

accumulated 
impairment 

Carrying

value

Intangible assets

Computer software 9 458 5 845(3 613) 8 500 (866) 7 634

2014 2013

8.

9.

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2014
Notes to the Financial Statements
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2014
Notes to the Financial Statements

9.

Amount

R'000

Weighted average
effective interest

rate
%

Weighted average
period for which 

rate is fixed
Years

Amount

R'000

Weighted average
period until

maturity
Years

Amount

R'000

Financial Instruments

Year ended 31 March 2014

Assets 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Trade & other receivables

TOTAL

Liabilities

Trade & other payables

TOTAL

Year ended 31 March 2013

Assets 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Trade receivables

TOTAL

Liabilities 

Trade & other payables

TOTAL

30509

-

30 509

-

-

164 687

-

164 687

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

45 132

45 132

(54 379)

(54 379)

-

31 593

31 593

(43 010)

(43 010)

30 509

45 132

75 641

(54 379)

(54 379)

164 687

31 593

196 280

(43 010)

(43 010)

Floating

rate

Credit risk

Credit risk consists mainly of cash deposits, cash equivalents and trade debtors. The company only deposits cash with major banks with high 

quality credit standing and limits exposure to any one counterparty.  Trade receivable comprise a large individual customer and numerous 

small customers. Management evaluated credit risk relating to customers on an ongoing basis. Assessment of the credit quality of the customer, 

taking into account its financial position, past experience and other factors are used to asses credit risk of trade receivables. The utilization 

of creditlimits is regularly monitored. Sales to retail customers are settled in cash or using major credit cards. Financial assets exposed to 

credit risk at year end were as follows:

Trade and other receivables - 2013/14 - R45.1  million  (2012/13 - R31.6 million)

Fair values

The Authority's financial instruments consist mainly of cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables and trade payables.

No financial asset was carried at an amount in excess of its fair value and fair values could be reliably measured for all financial assets.

The following methods and assumptions are used to determine the fair value of each class of financial instruments:

Cash and cash equivalents

The carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents approximate fair value due to the relatively short-term maturity of these 

financial assets and financial liabilities.

Trade receivables

The carrying amount of trade receivables, net of provision for bad debt, approximates fair value due to the relatively 

short term maturity of this financial asset.

Trade payables

The carrying amount of trade payables approximate fair value due to the relatively short term maturity of this financial liability.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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1 year or less Total

Financial assets & liabilities by category

The accounting policies for financial instruments have been applied to the line items below:

2014

Cash and cash equivalents

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other payables

Total

2013

Cash and cash equivalents

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other payables

Total

30 509

45 132

(54 379)

21 262

164 687

31 593

(43 010)

153 270

30 509

45 132

(54 379)

21 262

164 687

31 593

(43 010)

153 270

10.

11. Employee benefit obligations

Defined benefit plan

Post retirement medical aid plan

The Authority operates a defined benefit plan for qualifying employees. The most recent actuarial valuation of plan assets and the present 

value of the defined benefit obligation were carried out in March 2014 by an Alexander Forbes actuary.  The present value of the defined benefit 

obligation and the related current service cost were measured using the Projected Unit Credit Method.

The amounts recognised in the statement of financial position are as follows:

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2014
Notes to the Financial Statements
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2014 2013

Employee benefit obligations (continued)

Opening Balance

Opening Balance

Amounts charged to income

Total

Non-current liabilities

Current liabilities

Total

The amounts recognised in the statement of financial position are as follows:

Opening balance

Current Service Cost

Interest Cost

Actuarial Gain/(Loss)

Expected Employer Payments/(Benefit )

Total

Key assumptions used

Assumptions used at the reporting date:

Average Retirement Age rate Males - Years

Discount rate - Percentage

Expected rate of salary increases

Medical cost trend rates (Health Care Cost Inflation) 

Consumer Price Index Inflation

In service members

Continuation Membership of membership at retirement - number of employees

(18 301)

2 197

(16 104)

(15 459)

(645)

(16 104)

18 301

351

1 562

(3 457)

(653)

16 104

60

10%

10%

9%

7%

18

6

(15 211)

(3 090)

(18 301)

(17 672)

(629)

(18 301)

15 211

302

1 230

2131

(573)

18 301

60

9%

9%

9%

7%

19

7

31 March 2011

R '000

Trend Information

Present Value of obligation

Present obligations in excess of plan assets

In respect of present value obligations

12 843

12 843

505

31 March 2010

R '000

10 600

10 600

166

31 March 2012

R '000

15 211

15 211

392

31 March 2013

R '000

18 301

18 301

665

31 March 2014

R '000

16 104

16 104

2 169

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2014
Notes to the Financial Statements
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Health Care Cost Inflation

 Central Assumption -1% +1%

 8.90%

Accrued liability 31 March 2014 (R'm) 16.104 13.961 18.787

% change - -13.3% +16.7%

Current Service Cost + Interest cost (R'm) 1.750 1.492 2.078

% change  -14.7% +18.7%

Sensitivity Results from Central Assumption -1% +1

Previous Valuation 8.50%

Current Service Cost + Interest

Cost 2013/14 (R' million) 1.913 1.619 2.288

% change - -15.4% +19.6%

 

 Central Assumption +5% +10%

 8.90% for 5 yrs for 5 yrs

Accrued Liability 31 March 2014 (R' m) 16.104 19.707 23.973

% change - +22.4% +48.9%

  

  Discount Rate

 Central Assumption -1% +1%

 9.60%

Accrued Liability 31 March 2014 (R' m) 16.104 18.830 13.965

% change - +16.9% -13.3%

 

  

 Central Assumption     Expected Retirement Age 

 60 years 1 year younger 1 year older 

Accrued Liability 31 March 2014 (R' m) 16.104 16.371 15.859

% change - +1.7% -1.5%

2014 2013
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2014

R ’000

2013

R ’000

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables 38 070 31 000

Deposits 2 437 1 328

Investment Income Accrued - 3

Other receivables 7 030 3 552

Provision for doubtful debts (2 371) (4 328)

Staff Travel Advances 249 256

Discounting of receivables (283) (218)

 45 132 31 593

There was a significant decrease in provisions for doubtful debts to due to the fact that the  contribution for the job summit invoice of 

R3 million due from KZN Department of Economic Development & Tourism was deemed not collectable and was written off as a bad debt.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of:

Cash on hand 89 87

Bank balances 30 420 164 600

 30 509 164 687

Bank balances and cash comprise cash and short-term, highly liquid investments that are held with registered banking institutions with 

maturities of three months or less and that are subject to insignificant interest risk.  The carrying amount of these assets approximates 

their fair value.

As required in Section 7(3) of the Public Finance Management Act and Treasury Regulation 31.2.1, the National Treasury has approved the

 local bank where the bank accounts are held.

Trade and other payables

Trade payables 19 266 11 848

Lease liability 3 002 148

Accruals 24 562 22 766

Purchase order accruals 261 335

Other payables 3 830 2 092

Creditors discounting (330) (215)

Travel credit card 3 790 6 036

 54 381 43 010

12.

13.

14.
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2014

R ’000

2013

R ’000

Cash used in operations

Deficit (134 647) (61 640)

Adjustments for:  

Depreciation and amortisation 15 825 10 831

Fair value adjustments (49) (40)

Debt impairment 3 000 -

Movements in retirement benefit assets and liabilities (2 197) 3 090

Movements in provisions 7 952 1 681

Other non-cash items 605 -2

Changes in working capital:  

Trade and other receivables (16 538) (14 829)

Prepayments 706 (896)

Trade and other payables 11 369 29 918

Unspent conditional receipts (5 379) 5 379

 (119 353) (26 508)

Operating lease

Office Equipment

The Authority has commercial leases on certain office equipment. These leases have an average of between 2 and 5 years with 

no renewal option included in the contracts. There are no renewal restrictions placed upon the lessee by entering into these leases.

Office Buildings

Port Nolloth

The Authority entered into a lease agreement with SA Post Office for its offices in Port Nolloth.  The initial lease is for 5 years 

and the escalation rate is 8%.

Pretoria

The lease agreement with Ozmik Property Investments for the Lynnwood offices expired on 30 September 2013. The Authority entered 

into a new lease agreement with All Top Properties, and the lease agreement is for 9 years 11 months. The lease agreement commenced 

on 1 September 2013 and the termination date is 31 June 2023, with an escalation rate of 7.5%.  Another lease agreement is in place with 

Encha Properties for the lease of Hillcrest Offices. This lease agreement commenced in December 2012 and runs for 5 years with 

an escalation rate of 9%.  As these offices are no longer required, negotiations to terminate the lease agreement are underway and are 

expected to be concluded soon. The lease agreement gives SAMSA the option of buying the building.

Saldanha

The Authority entered into a lease agreement with Transnet National Ports Authority for its offices in Saldanha. The lease agreement 

expired on 30 September 2013 and the initial lease agreement was for 5 years, with an escalation rate of 9%. The Authority is on 

a month to month agree with Transnet pending the finalisation of the new lease agreement.

Durban

The lease agreement with Old Mutual Properties expired on 30 June 2013 and a new lease agreement for a differentt building 

was entered into and commenced on 1 August 2013.  The termination date is 30 September 2016 with an escalation of 8% per annum.

15.

16.
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2014

R ’000

2013

R ’000

Richards Bay

The lease agreement with Tuzi Gazi Waterfront expired on 31 December 2013 and a new agreement commencing on

1 January 2014 was finalised. The lease agreement if for 3 years and has an escalation rate of 9% with an renewal option of 1 year.

Mossel Bay

The Authority entered into a lease agreement with Plaza Aquada for the Mossel Bay offices for a period of 3 years at an escalation 

rate of 8%.

Port Elizabeth

The lease agreement with UMMI Properties expired on 30 June 2013 for the PE port offices. Authority entered into a new lease 

agrement with Rickett Sales for a period of 5 years at an escalation rate of 10%. A separate lease agreement is in place for the 

PE Regional offices for a period of 3 years, three months at an escalation rate of 10%.

Ngqura

The lease agreement with Transnet Port National Authority expired on 31 May 2013 and a new agreement was signed for a period 

of 2 years, 6 months at an escalation rate of 9%.

Cape Town

The Authority has two lease agreements for the SAMSA offices in Cape Town for two floors. The first lease agreement commenced 

on 1 April 2012 and expires on 31 March 2016 at an escalation rate of 10%. The second lease agreement commenced on 1 April 2013 

and will run up to 31 March 2016 at an escalation rate of 10%.

East London

The Authority owns the building which houses the SAMSA offices in East London.

MRCC Cape Town

The lease agreement with Parkdev expired on 31 January 2014 and it was extended for one year up to 31 January 2015.

Future minimum lease rentals payable  under non-cancellable  operating leases as at 31 March 2014 are as follows:

 

Up to 1 year 20 186 8 452

2 to 5 years 80 232 5 819

5 to 10 years 58 745 -

 159 163 14 271
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2014

R ’000

2013

R ’000

Operating deficit

Operating deficit for the year is stated after accounting for the following: 

 

Awareness Programmes & advertising 14 078 32 111

Auditors Remuneration 2 815 3 374

Computer Expenses 3 830 2 706

Consulting Fees 15 398 16 843

Conferences & Seminars 17 796 54 543

Telephone & Fax 6 725 5 305

Training 2 403 2 765

Travel - overseas 3 261 7 003

Travel - local 24 815 22 965

Internal audit fees 186 646

Depreciation 15 825 10 831

Employee costs 128 616 105 957

Research & Development 120 371

Printing & Stationery 5 204 3 106

Repairs & Maintenance 4 015 1 917

Partnership programmes 39 660 34 936

Projects 1 789 3 354

Commission paid on SAMSA Levies 6 705 6 228

Marine Interventions 443 584

Surveyor/mileage costs 2 316 2 370

Insurance 1 600 1 022

Donations 2 545 6 000

Implementation costs 13 432 8 111

Rentals 24 726 14 695

SA Agulhas expenses 73 605 56 055

Scholarship Programmes 9 055 487

Other expenditure 27 637 18 989

 448 600 423 274

This note has been adjusted to disclose more expenditure items in the current year which has affected the comparative figures.  

Additional cost line items which have been added are SA Agulhas expenses and scholarship programmes.

17.
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2014

R ’000

2013

R ’000

Related Party Transactions

During the year, the Authority continued to provide maritime and rescue coordination and other related services on behalf of the 

Department of Transport as agreed in the memorandum of understanding signed between the agency and the department. 

Fees for those services received from the department amounted to R12.9 million in the current financial year (2013: R9.3 million). 

There were no outstanding amounts at year-end. The Authority also has an agreement with the Transnet National Ports Authority 

(TNPA) for the collection of SAMSA levies. TNPA charges a commission of 2.5% for the collection of the levies and the revenue 

collected during this period was R232.9 million (2013: R214.8 million). Commission charged on the transactions amounted to 

R6.7 million (2013: R6.2 million). The transcation handled on behalf of the Department of Transport which relates to our administration 

of the Maritime Fund and the financial statements are disclosed as part of this annual report. Emoluments and other payments made 

to executives and board members are shown on the tables below:

The Authority also received R30.6 million (2013: R56.4 million) from the National Skills Fund (NSF) for the funding of maritime skills 

development and part of this amount has been recognised as revenue. Funds for maritime skills development amounting to 

R2.9 million (2013: R1.6 million) were also received from the Transport, Education and Training Authority (TETA).

The invoices from the Department of Transport for the IMO diplomatic conference held in Cape Town in 2012 are still outstanding 

and the amount is shown on the table below.

External related parties

National Skills Fund 30 682 56 391

Department of Transport 12 901 9 289

Transnet National Ports Authority 231 781 214 800

Human Resource Development Council of South Africa (HRDCSA) - 1 000

TETA 2 908 1 557

KZN Department of Economic Development & Tourism - 3 000

Department of Transport 22 322 22 322

 300 594 308 359
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TotalPensionBonus

Executive Remuneration    

2014

Tsietsi Mokhele 2 497 1 089 417 - - - 218 - 4 221

Chief Executive Officer

Sobantu Tilayi 1 397 67 215 - 1 27 112 - 1 819

Chief Operations Officer

Karl Otto 1 206 67 217 - - - 112 - 1 602

Executive Head (Centre for Sea Watch & Response)        

Pule Mashiloane 788 39 127 84 1 - 64 - 103

Acting Chief Human Capital Officer

Ayanda Mngadi 1 206 67 217 - - - 112 328 1 930

Executive Head (Corportate Affairs)

Boetse Ramahlo 1 206 67 217 - - - 112 109 1 711

Executive Head (Office of the CEO)

Tudor Hungwe 997 42 - 82 1 8 71 - 1 201

Acting Chief Financial Officer

Francis Chilalika 898 49 152 - - 4 83 - 1 186 

Executive Manager (Inland Region)

Collins Makhado 1 198 57 - - - 60 94 - 1 409

Executive Head (Strategy)

Moyahabo Raphadu 816 45 146 - - - 76 - 1 083 

Company Secretary

Mosala Mosegomi 1 066 59 192 - - - 98 - 1 415

Chief Information Officer

Sindiswa Nhlumayo 1 232 65 183 - - - 109 - 1 589

Executive Head (Centre for Excellence)

Nigel Campbell 1 166 50 192 - - - 82 - 1 490

Executive Head (Centre for Ships)

Saroor Ali 950 50 148 - - - 82 - 1 230

Executive Manager (Eastern Region)

Benard Bobison-Opoku 713 39 124 - - - 64 - 940

EXCO Secretary & General Counsel

Daniel Vuma  630 32 104 115 - - 54 - 935

Acting Chief Procurement Officer

Dave Colly (Resigned)  899  50 149 - - 27 83 - 1 208

Executive manager (Western Region)

 18 865 1 934 2 800  281 3 126 1 626 437 26 072
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TotalPensionBonus

Related Party Transactions (continued)

2013

Tsietsi Mokhele 2 018 - 377 - 1 61 2 457

Chief Executive Officer

David Colly (Resigned)  846 94 155 - - 51 1 146

Executive Manage (Western Region)

Sobantu Tilayi - Executive Head  1 259 124 201 - - 6 1 590

(Centre for Ships)

Karl Otto - Executive Head  1111 124 211 - - - 1 446

(Centre for Sea Watch)

Pule Mashiloane  641 71 120 98 - 4 934

Acting Chief Human Capital Officer

Ayanda Mngadi - Executive Head  1 111 124 210 - - 6 1 451

(Corporate Affairs)

Boetse Ramahlo - Executive Head  1 111 124 211 - - 3 1 449

(Office of the CEO)

Tudor Hungwe - Acting Chief Financial Officer 925 79 - 96 - 23 1 123

Francis Chilalika - Executive Manager  829 92 147 - - 1 1 069

(Inland Waters)

Collins Makhado - Executive Manager 1112 105 - - - 27 1 244

(Strategy)

Moyahabo Raphadu - Company Secretary 751 84 142 - - 27 1 004

Mosala Mosegomi - Chief Information Officer 983 110 186 - - - 1 279

Sindiswa Nhlumayo - Executive Head  1 112 121 176 - - 35 1 444

(Centre for Excellence)

Nigel Campbell - Executive Manager  824 92 154 - - 14 1 084

(Southern Region)

Saroor Ali - Executive Manager  833 92 143 - - 49 1 117

(Eastern Region)

Benard Bobison-Opoku - EXCO Secretary  640 71 120 - 1 3 835

& General Counsel

Daniel Vuma

Acting Chief Procurement Officer 538 60 101 111 - 10 820

 16 644 1 567 2 654 305 2 320 21 492
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Non-executive remuneration

2014

Brenda Madumise - Chairperson 46 9 55

Nadeema Syms - Deputy Chairperson 140 25 165

Ronny Mkhwanazi - Board member 140 7 147

John Martin - Board member 83 - 83

Brett Naidoo - Board Member & Audit Committee Chairperson 35 9 44

Michael Hendriks - Board Member - - - 

Frederick Jacobs - Board Member & MIC Chairperson 35 9 44

 479 59 538

Non-executive remuneration

2013

Comfort Z Ngidi - Board Chairperson 168 309 477

Nadeema Syms - Deputy Board Chairperson 135 183 318

Ronny Mkhwanazi - Board member 135 237 372

John Martin - Board member 135 160 295

Martin Schaafsma - Audit & Risk Committee Chairperson - 30 30

Lorreta Ferris - Board member 135 108 243

Lily Zondo - Board member - 4 4

 708 1 031 1 739

Guarantees

81059816160 SA Mutual Life Assurance 36 36

81059926905 Portnet Saldanha 3 3

81059928876 Tuzi Gazi Waterfront 5 5

81059928877 Lofty Nel Eiendomme 3 3

TOTAL  47 47

These guarantees are held with ABSA Bank and they were taken up for office rentals as a susbsitute for the deposits system.  

The Authority however, still uses the deposits systems for the bulk of its lease agreements for office space.

Member’s

fees

Committees

fees

Total
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Provisions

Reconciliation of provisions - 2014

Onerous contract - 5 704 - 5 704

Leave Provision 5 606 1 795 (715) 6 686

Bonus Provision 10 259 6 378 (5 210) 11 427

 15 865 13 877 (5 925) 23 817

Reconciliation of provisions - 2013

Leave pay provision 5 498 768 (660) 5 606

Bonus Provision 8 686 8 898 (7 325) 10 259

 14 184 9 666 (7 985) 15 865

Leave pay, service bonus and onerous contract

The leave pay provision and service bonus provisions are based on the liability for the current leave cycle not utilised and bonuses payable 

respectively. The onerous contract provision is based on the signed lease agreement.

Irregular expenditure

Opening balance   6 214 6 083

Irregular Expenditure - current year   28 847 131

   35 061 6 214

Irregular expenditure of 28,8 million was incurred during the year due to the following reasons:

-  Challenges experienced in the management of contracts;

-  Non ratification of contracts entered into during periods when the organisation did not have a fully constituted board;

-  Unsolicited bid process not being adequately followed.

Prepayments

The amount represents goods and services which were paid for in advance and were delivered or provided for after year-end respectively. 

In each and every instance, there was a requirement for payment to be made in advance.

The prepayments were for fixed assets which had been paid for but not yet delivered, and for insurance for the assets and resources of 

the organisation.

AdditionsOpening

Balance

Utilised during

the year

Total

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2014
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 In-kind donations and assistance

Donations 2 545 6 000

SAMSA's donations and CSI budget dropped from R6 million to R2.5 million mainly due to reprioritisations done during the course of the 

financial year.

As disclosed in note 7 on property, plant and equipment, the Authority also donated assets to public institutions.

In line with Regulation 57 of the Determination of Charges (Government Notice 807 of 30 July 2009), SAMSA waived charges to deserving 

organisations as disclosed in note 2.

New GRAP pronouncements

At the date of authorisation of these financial statements, there are GRAP standards and interpretations which were gazetted by 

the Minister of Finance but were not effective for the financial year under review.  These standards are as follows:

o  GRAP 32    Service Concession Agreements: Grantor

o  GRAP 105   Transfer of Functions Between Entities Under Common Control

o  GRAP 106   Transfer of Functions Between Entities Not Under Common Control o  GRAP 107 Mergers

o  GRAP 108   Statutory Receivables

o  GRAP 20    Related Party Disclosures 

o  GRAP 18     Segment Reporting

Unspent conditional receipts

Movement during the year 

 

Balance at the beginning of the year 5 379 -

Additions during the year - 5 379

Income recognition during the year (5 379) -

 - 5 379

The nature and extent of conditional receipts recognised in the financial statements and an indication of other forms of government 

assistance from which the entity has directly benefited; and

 

Unfulfilled conditions and other contingencies attaching to government assistance that has been recognised. The Authority received 

funding from the National Skills Fund (NSF) and the amount disclosed for the previous financial year was for the balance for conditional 

receipts at year-end. All funds received in the current financial year were utilised.

These amounts are invested in a ring-fenced investment until utilised.
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2014

R ’000

2013

R ’000

Fruitless and Wasteful Expenditure

A fraudulent request for change of banking details on the account of Smit Amandla, which provides management services on the 

SA Agulhas 1, resulted in R1.875 million being transferred to a bogus bank account during the financial year. An amount of 

R1.6 million was recovered and R0.224 million which had already been withdrawn was lost. The amount lost has been recognised 

as an expense in the statement of financial performance. To tighten up controls, the banking system has been changed from the 

ABSA Cash Focus system which had security flaws to the ABSA Business Integrator, which is a more secure banking system.  

Police investigations into the matter are still continuing. An additional R0.888 million was incurred on a lease agreement for a

building which had to be vacated when a bigger building which could accommodate all head office staff members was secured.  

Efforts are still underway to have the lease agreement cancelled.

Fruitless & wasteful expenditure

Additions for the year 1 112 -

Income  

 

Discount received 5 -

Decrease in Provisions 4 154 -

 4 159 -

The decrease in provisions  were attributed to the reduction in provisions for bad debts and post medical retirement fund.

Provision for bad debts decreased by R1,95 million, and provision for post retirement medical fund decreased by R2,2 million.

Debt Impairment

Debts impaired 3 000 -

The Authority has written off the amount owing from KZN Department of Economic Development and Tourism as efforts to 

recover the debt have failed.

29.  Auditors' remuneration

Fees 2 815 3374

Going concern

The financial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting policies applicable to a going concern. This basis presumes 

that funds will be available to finance future operations and that the realisation of assets and settlement of liabilities, contingent 

obligations and commitments will occur in the ordinary course of business. However, the Authority incurred huge deficits during the 

course of this financial year which has seen a significant reduction in its cash reserves to an extend that some projects will only be 

executed in the new financial year subject to availability of funds. Austerity measures and cost optimisation measures are being 

implemented to ensure that the decline is stopped and the financial situation improved.
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2014

R ’000

2013

R ’000

Events after the reporting date

Sizwe Ntsaluba Gobodo has been appointed as SAMSA's new internal auditors.

The terms for board members, Mr. Ronny Mkhwanazi and Ms. Nadeema Syms, ended on 31 July 2014. Vice Admiral Johannes Mudimu 

was appointed as SAMSA's Board Chairperson, and Ms. Nomsa Margaret Cele was appointed as a board member.

Current Commitments

At the end of the financial year, the Authority had current commitments of R101.3 million (2013: R34.9 million) for which contracts 

had been signed for. The Authority will be able to honour these contractual commitments.

Reconciliation between budget and statement of financial performance

Reconciliation of budget surplus/deficit with the surplus/deficit in the statement of financial performance:

Net deficit per the statement of financial performance (134 647) (61 640)

Adjusted for:

Fair value adjustments (49)    (40)

Increase in provisions  (2 148) (5 807)

Under/(over) spending of expenditure (53 834) (102 039)

(Under)/over recovery of income (80 813)  (31 462)

Actuarial gains and losses   (2 197) (3 090)

Net surplus per approved budget                                                  -                    - 

Budget variances

Material differences between budget and actual amounts

The material budget material variances are explained in Budget Variances on page 179 to the annual financial statements.

Trade Debtors - Age Analysis

Current  25 428

31 - 60 days  9 372

61 - 90 days  59

91 - 120 days  822

Over 120 days  2 599

Total  38 280
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EXPL ANATIONS FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31  MARCH 2014
BUDGET VARIANCES
INTRODUCTION

The Authority incurred a deficit of R134.6 million, which 

resulted in a significant reduction of cash and cash 

equivalents since this was financed from cash reserves. 

The deficits were a result of less revenue being collected 

and over expenditure being incurred in some cost line 

items. This appendix explains the material budget actual 

variances which are shown on the Statement 

of Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounts.

REVENUE

Overall, revenue collected was less than the budgeted 

amount by R80.9 million and the biggest shortfall was 

on the SA Agulhas charter fees which had an under collection 

of R57.8 million. The first factor for the revenue 

underperformance was the late approval of tariff adjustments 

by Ministry of Finance. The 5.3% tariff adjustment 

was approved in June 2013 and was implemented from 

1 November 2013. The tariff increase should have been 

implemented from 1 April 2013, if approval was granted on time.

The second issue affected charter fees revenue for the SA 

Agulhas, which was significantly less than projected and 

led to a small percentage of the budgeted amount being 

collected. A significant amount of charter fees expected 

from the SA Agulhas was lost due to the calling off of the 

“Seeing is Believing Antarctica Project”. As a result of this, 

the contract for the use of the SA Agulhas had to be 

cancelled as it was no longer necessary for the ship 

to undertake the second leg of the voyage.

In addition to this, revenue from contributions was less 

than projected mainly as a result of the fact that counterparties 

who have partnered with SAMSA, were not able to release 

funds in line with the projected amounts. The amounts 

which had been committed from the National Skills Fund 

(NSF) and Transport Education and Training Authority (TETA) 

were honoured. However part of the contributions which 

was motivated for as part of new funding was not approved 

for release to SAMSA, as expected.

 This was further complicated by the difficulties experienced 

in the hiring of a fundraising specialist, who was expected 

to drive the initiatives of increasing revenue from contributions. 

Two previous attempts to fill the position resulted 

in resignations and a suitable person was identified 

and appointed after year-end.

For direct user charges, there was a R2.8 million shortfall 

on the actual revenue against budgeted revenue. The main 

reason behind this has been found to be that the revenue 

projections were based on the time series analysis of 

the revenue figures since 2008. However, it has now come 

to light that the trend has been affected positively by the 

Merchant Shipping (National Small Vessel Safety) Regulations 

of 2007 which entered into force on 08 August 2007. 

The Certificate of Competence’s holders were given a grace 

period of 12 months to comply with the requirements stipulated 

on the regulations. As a result, there was an increase 

in demand for the certificates during the 2008-2011. 

By the end of 2011 most skippers were complying with the 

regulations and the result was a decrease in demand for 

these certificates. Since then we have only been issuing 

new applications as these certificates do not expire and 

are valid for a lifetime.

The second factor which affected direct user charges 

was that during this was that during the years 2010 and 2011 

(South Africa was hosting the Soccer World Cup in 2010) 

most seafarers took sabbatical leave to be ashore during 

the 2010 academic year simply because they wanted to 

be a part of the World Cup history. This group of people then 

qualified academically in December 2010 and sat for their 

oral examinations at SAMSA during January-December 

2011, hence the number of certificates issued are higher 

for that period.

The Authority received R2.4 million more from SAMSA 

Levies due to more ship tonnage from ships calling on 

South African ports.
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The revenue shortfalls had a huge negative impact on 

the financial performance and position of the organisation 

and contributed significantly to the huge deficits incurred. 

The reality of the situation was that as the revenue under 

performance persisted, projects like the SA Agulhas 

1 Training project could simply not just be called off due

to contractual obligations and commitments.

EXPENDITURES

Despite savings of R24.2 million from staff compensation, 

the entity still incurred over expenditures of R53.8 million. 

Material variances were recorded in the following areas:

3.1  SA AGULHAS EXPENDITURE

 Expenditure on the Agulhas exceeded the budgeted   

 amount by R6.5 million. This was mainly due to the fact 

 that the costs of dry docking were more than budgeted.   

 The ship was due for dry docking during the month 

 of March 2013 and the work was carried out in East   

 London as it could be accommodated at that port 

 during that period. The work overlapped into the new   

 financial year and as the ship is old, more work had 

 to be done on the ship than originally expected. The over   

 expenditure was exacerbated by the fact that revenue   

 collections from charter fees significantly underperformed   

 as discussed above.

3.2  RENT AND UTILITIES

 The over expenditure of R5.8 million was mainly due 

 to the fact that the head office in Pretoria had to move 

 to a bigger building so all staff members who were   

 now working from three buildings could be accommodated   

 in one. Due to a significant increase in the staff   

 complement, three buildings were being leased in Pretoria. 

 A decision was then taken to move to a bigger building   

 which would accommodate all the staff members. The   

 extra space became an extra cost for the Authority which   

 increased rentals. In addition to this, one lease agreement   

 for one of the three buildings could not be immediately   

 terminated when the lease agreement for the new bigger   

 building was signed.

 

3.3 IMPLEMENTATION COSTS

 This cost goes towards the Long Range Tracking and   

 Identification of Ships (LRIT) and Automatic Identification   

 of Ships (AIS) systems. The costs incurred are for the   

 purchase of data, as well as system maintenance costs.   

 The overspend of R1.08 million was mainly due to the   

 weakening of the rand as costs are mostly incurred in   

 foreign currency (Canadian dollars). Therefore as the   

 rand weakened, the Authority had to pay more than what   

 had originally been anticipated.

3.4 CONFERENCE FEES

 A cost overrun of R2.1 million was incurred on conference 

fees. This was mainly because the cost of holding the 

Job Summit and Careers Expo cost more than had been 

originally planned. In addition to this, it had been 

expected that the cost of holding the event would be 

reduced by the selling of exhibition space and contributions 

from partners. However, the Authority was not able to sell 

exhibition space and no contributions to the event were 

received from partners which meant that the total costs 

of holding the events had to be financed internally.

3.5 CONSULTING FEES

 Actual costs exceeded budget amount by R1.4 million. 

The main reason for the cost overrun was the move to 

the new head office building which required consultants 

to be engaged in so they could assist in setting up the 

new IT infrastructure of the organisation. The cost of 

carrying out this work was more than what had been 

anticipated. In addition to this, significant costs were 

incurred on the implementation of the SAMSA 

 Integrated Operations Management Systems (SIOMS) 

Project (operations computer system) and the 

 continuing automation of the supply chain management 

environment. More work had to be carried out in the SCM 

environment for the automation of requisitions and 

 travel management.
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3.6 CONTINGENCY FEES

    The savings of R2.09 million on contingency fees were 

due to the fact that there were no significant unforeseen 

events during the financial year. The budget is based 

on risks associated with the operational and administrative 

environments in the organisation and the budget is 

projected to stay relatively high despite the low spend 

due to the necessity of being adequately covered 

should it become necessary to implement mitigation 

measures in the event of a unforeseen occurrence.

3.7   DONATIONS/CSI PROJECTS

   Reprioritisations done during the course of 

   the financial year led to savings of R1.47 million in the 

donations/Corporate Social Investment (CSI) spend. 

   The reprioritisations were done as a result of revenue 

underperformance and over-expenditure in some 

areas. The organisation however, still managed to meet 

its CSI objectives for the financial year.

3.8    PARTNERSHIP PROGRAMMES

    The high spend on partnership programmes was mainly 

  on the cadetship programmes which are being run in 

partnership with the South African Maritime Training 

Academy (SAMTRA) and Marine Crew Services (MCS). 

The over spend on this cost line item was R28.5 million 

which contributed more than 72% to the overall 

overspend. The reason for the overspend was that 

more cadets than originally planned were recruited 

  and given berths on the programme than had been 

originally planned and projected. Full details of the 

cadetship programmes and the numbers involved are 

fully covered in the maritime skills development report. 

The over-performance was made possible by the fact 

that there were many candidates on the market who 

needed these opportunities so they could be able to 

graduate as this had been a missing link for so many 

years. There also had been an expectation of getting 

some funding for the programme through contributions 

and this did not produce the desired projected results 

during the financial year.

3.9    SCHOLARSHIP PROGRAMMES

 The biggest part of the over-spend was on the World   

 Maritime University (WMU) students scholarship.   

 Although it was not budgeted for, it was wholly   

 financed by the National Skills Fund (Fund) through   

 NSFAS and the amount received has been recognised   

 under – revenue (contributions). This was therefore 

 a wholly funded budget overrun.

3.10  PROJECTS

 The underspend on projects of R4.2 million was mainly  

 due to the reprioritisations done during the course 

 of the year and some programmes had to be either  

 moved forward or cancelled.

3.11  LOCAL TRAVEL

  A significant over spend of R8,3 million was incurred   

  during the course of the financial year. More local trips than   

  had been originally planned were undertaken to a number   

  of business commitments like the shipping incidents along   

  the coast line which had to be attended to. Apart from the   

  normal business travel the high travel spend was due 

  to projects and activities which had high travel

    requirements such as:

  •  Port State Control Conference;

  •  Cape Town Sea Pledge Tour;

  •  Visit of the President of the World Maritime University;

  •  EC Ports and Maritime Conference;

  •  Ports & Harbours 2013 Conference;

  •  Careers Expo & Job Summit;

  •   2nd meeting of the Heads of African Maritime

     Administrations

  •  Cape Town Boat Show;

  •  Dusi Canoe Marathon;

  •  SIOMS Training and implementation

3.12  MARITIME INTERVENTIONS

  The cost saving of R1.9 million was achieved the  

  despite some major shipping incidents along the  

  South African coastline. This is mainly attributed to the  

  fact that the incidents were adequately insured.  

  There were two major shipping incidents during the  

  financial year, one in Richards Bay involving the MV  

  Smart, which ran aground and broke into two, and the  

  other one in Knysna involving the Kiani Satu. 
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  Although the work on these two incidents required 

substantial amounts of money, they were adequately 

covered by insurance, and the Authority was paid 

  for some of the work it carried out on the incidents.

3.13  COMPENSATION

  There was a R24 million saving on staff compensation  

  during the financial year. This saving was a result of a  

  decision which was made to delay appointments in  

  some sections of the organisation. This decision was  

  made after careful consideration that it would not  

  materially affect the operations of the organisation.

3. 14  BANK CHARGES

   The over spend of R0.372 million on bank charges was a 

result of the opening of the travel lodge card for company 

travel purposes. As systems were still being implemented 

to control the use of the card, some transactions were not 

settled during the interest free period which resulted in 

charges being levied.

3.15  COMPUTER EXPENSES

    The cost overrun of R1.7 million was the result of the 

expenses incurred in moving buildings at head office 

in Pretoria. Significant computer expenses had to be 

incurred in setting up the new computer infrastructure 

at the new building.

3.16  LICENSES

    The R1 million saving on the licences was the result of the 

reprioritisation decision which was made during the 

financial year. As a result, the implementation of some 

IT projects which would require licences for use of 

software were postponed.

3.17  LEASE CHANGES

    The lease of office equipment had a cost overrun 

    of R2.5 million. In a bid to reduce printing expenses, 

additional shared printers and other equipment were 

leased. This was done to ensure that the use of 

individual office printers is reduced. This is expected 

    to reduce printing costs in the long run.

3.18  INSURANCE

           There was a R0.420 million saving on insurance 

      costs which was a result of the fact that the 

organisation was able to negotiate its insurance 

coverage costs better.

3.19  LEGAL COSTS

      Legal costs exceeded the budgeted amount by R0.611 

which was a direct result of expenditure incurred on 

board matters regarding the appointment of the CEO. 

The additional costs were therefore incurred due to 

the legal issues which were referred to the legal 

firms.

3. 20  POSTAGE & COURIES

      The effectiveness of the organisation’s drive to increase 

the use of technology so as to reduce postage costs 

      is reflected on savings made amounting to R0.893 million.

3.21    TELEPHONE & FAX

      There was an R1.1 million overspend on telephone and fax. 

This significant variance was mainly the result of the 

fact that when we moved offices in Durban and 

Pretoria, it took a while to have telephones reconnected 

to the new buildings. During those periods, staff 

members had to rely on using cellphones to 

communicate which was a more expensive alternative. 

In addition to this, the increase in the staff complement 

has also meant that the organisation now have more 

people which also contributed to the cost overrun. 

There was also a plan to change the telephone 

infrastructure to a more cost effective alternative 

which would have resulted in cost savings which

      was not implemented due to the move to new offices. 

This is now expected to be implemented in the new 

building during the 2014/15 financial year.

3.22  RESEARCH PROGRAMME

      The R1 million saving on the licences was the result of the 

reprioritisation decision which was made during the 

financial year. As a result, the implementation of 

some IT projects which would require licences for 

      use of software were postponed.
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3.25      PROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENT

  

  Computer Equipment 7 374 2 570 4 804

  Computer Software 10 762 1 341 9 421

  Furniture 4 084 2 053 2 031

  Motor Vehicles 1 400 900 500

  Office Equipment 1 992 850 1 142

  Leasehold Property 0 7 111 (7 111)

  Total 25 612 14 825 10 787

  As per the table above, there was an underspend on capital expenditure of R10.7 million. This was  

  because a decision was taken at EXCO to delay the purchase of some capital expenditure items due 

  to the financial situation of the organisation.

3.26 CASH FLOWS

  The negative amount on the cash flow from operating activities (cash flow statement) was a result 

  of the fact that the deficits which the organisation incurred was financed from reserves. This resulted 

  in a negative cash flows from operating activities of R119.4 million arose as a result of revenue projections   

  not being met. This also affected interest income as reserves had to be used to finance the shortfall. 

  As a result of negative cash outflows, cash and cash equivalents decreased by R134.2 million during 

  the financial year.

3.23       STAFF TRAINING

  There were savings of R0.737 million on staff training which was mainly a result of the fact that staff take up 

  of training courses was not in line with the budget.

3.24      SURVEYOR & MILEAGE COSTS

  This cost line item is mainly dependent on travel by surveyors and other staff members for business   

  purposes and it’s paid in line with the rates provided by the Department of Transport. The cost overrun   

  was mainly a result of increased travel activity in instances where staff members were using their cars.
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REPORT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL TO PARLIAMENT 
ON SOUTH AFRICAN MARITIME SAFET Y AUTHORIT Y
REPORT ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1.    INTRODUCTION

 I have audited the financial statements of the Maritime Fund set out on pages 189 to 195 which comprise 

 the statement of financial position as at 31 March 2014, the statement of financial performance, statement 

 of changes in net assets, and the cash flow statements and statement of comparison of budget information  

 with actual information for the year then ended, and the notes, comprising a summary of significant 

 accounting policies and other explanatory information. 

2.   THE ACCOUNTING’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

 The accounting authority is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements 

 in accordance with South African Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting Practice (SA Standards 

 of GRAP) and the requirements of the Public Finance Management Act of South Africa,1999 (Act No.1 of 1999)  

 (PFMA), and for such internal control as the accounting authority determines is necessary to enable the  

 preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

 AUDITOR-GENERAL’S RESPONSIBILITY 

3. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on my audit. I conducted 

 my audit in accordance with the Public Audit Act of South Africa, 2004 (Act No. 25 of 2004) (PAA), the General  

 Notice issued in terms thereof and International Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that I comply  

 with ethical requirements, and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 

 the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

4. An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures 

 in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the  

 assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the  financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

 In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation 

 and fair presentation of the  financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate 

 in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s  

 internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the  

 reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation 

 of the financial statements. 

5. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my 

 audit opinion.
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6.   OPTION

 In my opinion, the  financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position 

 of the Maritime Fund as at 31 March 2014 and its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended, 

 in accordance with SA Standards of GRAP and the requirements of the PFMA.

7.   COMPLIANCE WITH LEGISLATION

 I performed procedures to obtain evidence that the entity had complied with applicable legislation regarding  

 financial matters, financial management and other related matters. My findings on material non-compliance  

 with specific matters in key legislation, as set out in the General Notice issued in terms of the PAA, 

 are as follows:

8.    ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, PERFORMANCE AND ANNUAL REPORTS

 The accounting authority did not submit the financial statements for auditing within two months after 

 the end of financial year, as required by section 55(1)(c)(i) of the Public Finance Management Act.

9.    AUDIT COMMITTEES

 An audit committee was not in place for the first 11 months of the financial year as required by section 

 51(1) (a) (ii) of the Public Finance Management Act and Treasury Regulation 27.1.1. Members were only appointed  

 one month before year-end and did not meet in the current year under review.

 INTERNAL AUDIT

10. The internal audit function was not under the control and direction of the audit committee as required 

 by section 51(1)(a)(ii) of the Public Finance Management Act.

11. The purpose, authority and responsibility of the internal audit function were not formally defined in an audit  

 charter, as required by Treasury Regulation 27.2.5.

12. The internal audit function did not evaluate the effectiveness and efficiency of controls/give recommendations 

 for their enhancement and improvement, as required by Treasury Regulation 27.2.10.

13. The internal audit function did not submit reports, detailing the performance against the annual internal audit  

 plan, to the audit committee, as required by Treasury Regulation 27.2.7(d).  

14. The internal audit function did not evaluate the compliance with laws and regulations, as required by Treasury  

 Regulation 27.2.10(e)
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15.  INTERNAL CONTROL

 I considered internal control relevant to my audit of the financial statements compliance with legislation. 

 The matters reported below are limited to the significant internal control deficiencies that resulted 

 in the findings on non-compliance with legislation included in this report.

16.  GOVERNANCE

 There was a slow response by executive authority in confirming the appointment of the board. This delayed 

 the appointment of the audit committee which resulted in them not performing effective oversight pertaining  

 to financial reporting, compliance and related internal controls.

Auditor-General

Pretoria

6 August 2014

  

  

Auditor-General
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Statement of Financial Performance

Statement of Changes in Net Assets

Cash Flow Statement

Accountiing Policies

Notes to the Financial Statements
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 

AS AT 31 MARCH 2014
Note(s) 2014

R ’000

2013

R ’000

Assets

Current Assets   

Cash and cash equivalents 2 6 511 4 833

Accrued Interest 3 25 19

  6 536 4 852

Equity and Liabilities

   

Accumulated Surplus  3 510 3 114

Uncleared deposits  3 026 1 737

  6 536 4 852

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE 

AS AT 31 MARCH 2014
Note(s) 2014

R ’000

2013

R ’000

Revenue 1 133 762

Interest Received  267 189

Gross Income  400 951

Operating Expenses  5 6

Bank Charges  5 6

Net surplus/(deficit) for the year  395 945
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT

AS AT 31 MARCH 2014
Note(s) 2014

R ’000

2013

R ’000

Cash flow from operating activities

Cash receipts from customers  1 422 1 626

Cash paid to suppliers and employees  (5) (6)

Cash generated from operations  1 417 1 621

Interest received  261 189

Cash flow from investing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents  1 678 1 809

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the period  4 833 3 024

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the period 2 6 511 4 833

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS 

AS AT 31 MARCH 2014
Accumulated

surplus

R’000

 

Balance at 31 March 2012 2 169

Surplus for the period 945

Balance at 31 March 2013 3 114

Surplus for the period 395

Balance at 31 March 2014 3 509
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES
ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2014  
1. PRESENTATION OF ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

 The annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with South African Statements of 

 Generally Recognised Accounting Practice (GRAP), the PFMA and the Treasury Regulations.

1.1 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

 Initial recognition and measurement

 Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the statement of financial position when the 

 Authority becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. All purchases and sales of financial 

 assets are initially recognised using trade date accounting.

 Financial instruments are initially measured at fair value plus, in the case of a financial instrument not at fair 

 value through statement of financial performance, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the 

 acquisition or issue of the instrument.

 The fair values of quoted investments are based on current bid prices. If the market for a financial asset is not

 active (and for unlisted securities), the Authority establishes fair value by using valuation techniques. These 

 include the use of recent arm's length transactions, reference to other instruments that are substantially the 

 same, discounted cash flow analysis, and option pricing models making maximum use of market inputs and 

 relying as little as possible on entity-specific inputs.

 The Fund's principal financial assets are cash and cash equivalents.

 Cash and cash equivalents

 Cash and cash equivalents are measured at fair value. Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances 

 and call deposits.

1.2 ROUNDING OFF

 All figures in the financial statements were rounded off to the nearest thousand and are indicated by R'000.

1.3 INVESTMENT INCOME

 Investment income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using the effective interest method.

1.4 CURRENCY

 The currency used in these financial statements is South African Rand (ZAR) which is the Authority's 

 functional currency.

1.5 COMPARATIVE FIGURES

 Where necessary, comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to changes in presentation in the 

 current year.
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1.6 RECOGNITION OF REVENUE

 Revenue is recognised when it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the fund and these 

 benefits can be measured reliably.

 Finance income comprises interest income on funds invested. Interest income is recognised as it accrues in 

 the statement of financial performance, using the effective interest method.

1.7 MARITIME FUND

 The activities of the Maritime Fund (The Fund), established under the control of the Minister of Transport, are

 accounted for separately in terms of the section 9.38 (2) of the SAMSA Act.

 Amounts paid into the The Fund are received by way of penalties, fines or forfeitures for contraventions in 

 terms of laws administered by SAMSA.

 In terms of the SAMSA Act, money in the fund may be applied only for the purpose of furthering the objectives 

 of the Fund. Money not required for immediate use may be invested with a bank under the Banks Act, 1990

 (Act No. 94 of 1990), and money in the Fund at the end of the financial year must be carried forward to the 

 ensuing year.

1.8 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

 The Fund has exposure to the following risks form its use of financial instruments:

 • credit risk;

 • liquidity risk;

 • interest rate risk;

 • cash flow risk

1.9 INVESTMENT INCOME

 Investment income is recognised on a time proportion basis using the effective interest method.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2014  

MARITIME FUND |  SAMSA Annual Report
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2014

R ’000

2013

R ’000

2. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

 Maritime Pollution Fund Account 0 1

 Maritime Fund Fines Current Account 1 7

 Maritime Fund Investment Account Money 6 495 4 699

 Maritime Fund Deposit Account 15 126

 Cash and cash equivalents 6 511 4 833

 Bank balances and cash comprise cash and short-term, highly liquid investments that are held with registered

 Banking Institutions with maturities of three months or less and that are subject to insignificant interest risk.

 The carrying amount of these assets approximates their fair value.

 As required in Section 7(3) of the Public Finance Management Act and Treasury Regulation 31.2.1, the National

 Treasury has approved the registered Banking Institution where the bank accounts are held.

3. ACCRUED INTEREST

 Accrued interest represents investment interest that was due at year end but which paid into the Fund's bank 

 accounts after year end.

 Accrued interest - ABSA 25 19

4. UNALLOCATED DEPOSITS

 Unallocated deposits represent deposits received on cases which have not been finalised, they will only be 

 recognised as revenue once the outstanding issues are finalised.

 Unallocated Deposits 3 026 1 737

1. REVENUE

 Revenue arising from exchanges of goods or services

 (included in revenue) comprises: 133 762

 Revenue - Admission of Contravention 133 2

 Revenue - Pollution Admission Contravention - 550

 Revenue - Crew Fines Adm of Contravention - 210

 The Board considers that the carrying amount of trade and other receivables approximates to their fair value.

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2014
Notes to the Financial Statements

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2014

R ’000

2013

R ’000

1 year or less

6.  RELATED PARTIES

 The Department of Transport is the sole related party for the Maritime Fund.

7. NEW GRAP PRONOUNCEMENTS

 At the date of authorisation of these financial statements, there are GRAP standards and interpretations 

 which were gazetted by the Minister of Finance but were not effective for the financial year under review. 

 The standards are as follows:

 • GRAP 32 - Service Concession Agreements: Grantor

 • GRAP 105 - Transfer of functions between entities under common control

 • GRAP 106 - Transfer of functions between entities not under common control

 • GRAP 107 - Mergers

 • GRAP 108 - Statutory Receivables

 • GRAP 20 - Related Party Disclosures

 • GRAP 18 - Segment Reporting

8. GOING CONCERN

 The financial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting policies applicable to a going concern. 

 This basis presumes that funds will be available to finance future operations and the realisation of assets and 

 settlement of liabilities, contigent obligations and commitments will occur in the ordinary course of business.

9. EVENTS AFTER BALANCE SHEET

 The terms for board members, Mr. Ronny Mkhwanazi and Ms Nadeema Syms, ended on 31 July 2014. 

 From 1 August 2014 Vice Admiral Johannes Mudimu was appointed as SAMSA Board Chairperson, and Ms.  

 Nomsa Margaret Cele was appointed as a board member.

MARITIME FUND |  SAMSA Annual Report

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

 The fund is exposed to interest rates. The Fund’s exposure to interest rate risk and the effective rates on 

 financial instruments at statement of financial position date are as follows:

 Cash and cash equivalents 6 511 4 833

 Uncleared Deposits (3 026) (1 737)

   3 484 3 096

 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2014
Notes to the Financial Statements

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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ADB

AHTS

AIM

AIMS 

AAMA

AMD

AU

BCC

CIF

CSI

CLC

CEO

COLREGs

DAFF

DTV

FDI

GDP

DHA

DHET

DoT

DTV

DCoC

ECIC

EEA

EEZ

ECIC

ETI

FAO

FDI

FPSO

FSOS

GDP

IALA

ICC

ICT

ICS

IHO

ILO

IMB

IMF

IMO

IOPC

ITU

African Development Bank

Anchor Handling Tug Supply Vessels

Africa’s Integrated Maritime

Africa’s Integrated Maritime Strategy

Association of African Maritime Administration 

Africa’s Maritime Domain

African Union

Benguela Current Commission

Cost, Insurance and Freight

Corporate Social Investment

Civil Liability Convention

Chief Executive Officer

The International Regulations for Preventing Collisions at Sea

Department of Agriculture Forestry and Fisheries

Dedicated Training Vessel

Foreign Direct Investment

Gross Domestic Product

Department of Home Affairs

Department of Higher Education and Training

Department of Transport

Dedicated Training Vessel

Djibouti Code of Conduct

Export Credit Insurance Corporation

Employment Equity Act

Exclusive Economic Zone

Export Credit Insurance Corporation

Enabling Trade Index

Food and Agriculture Organisation of the UN

Foreign Direct Investment

Floating Production Storage Offload Vessels

Floating Storage Offload Vessels

Gross Domestic Product

International Association of Marine Aids to Navigation and Lighthouse Authorities

International Chamber of Commerce

Information Communication and Technology

International code of Signals

International Hydrographic Organisation

International Labour Organisation

International Maritime Bureau

International Monetary Fund

International Maritime Organisation

International Oil Pollution Compensation

International Telecommunication Union

A - I

LIST OF ABREVIATIONS



LCD

LTFS

LNG

MARPOL

MET

MV

MHQs

MP 

MLC

MIS

MMIS

MOCs

MoU

MRCC

MSAC

MSDS

NEDLAC

NFP

NMTSS

NMTSS

NPCC

NTP

PFMA

PCC

RECs

RCS

SADC

SAMSA

SANDF

SIOMS

SOLAS

SSA

STCW

TEU`s

TVET

UN

UNCTAD

USA

VTMIMS

Least developed countries

Long term Financial Sustainability

Liquefied Natural Gas 

International Convention for the Prevention of Marine Pollution from Ships

Maritime Education and Training

Merchant Vessel

Maritime Headquarters

Member of Parliament

Maritime Labour Convention

Management Information Systems

Maritime Incident Management Systems

Maritime Operating Centres

Memorandum of Understanding

Maritime Response Coordination Centre

Maritime Security Advisory Committee

Military Skills Development System

National Economic Development and Labour Council

National Focal Point

National Maritime Transport Security Strategy

Nelson Mandela Metropolitan University

National Ports Consultative Committee

National Transport Policy

Public Finance Management Act

Port Consultative Committees

Regional Economic Communities

Risk, Compliance and Sustainability

Southern African Development Community

South African Maritime Safety Authority

South African National Defense Force

SAMSA Integrated Operational Management Systems

Convention for Safety of Life at Sea

Sub-Saharan Africa

International Convention on Standards of Training,

Twenty foot equivalent unit

Technical Vocational Educational and Training

United Nations

United Nations Conference on Trade and Development

United States of America

Vessel Traffic Management and Information Management Systems

L - Z
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